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CEQ Michacl Andlauer
congratulfates Leni Sanci, Toronto’s
Emplovee of the Year 2006.

T8X Opening Bell
Seprember 30, 2005

ATS “stare of the art’ logistics faciliny in

- “Moritresl upenctt in-¥ebruary 2005




“We're Number One!” ‘

Steve Bartolomeo and Ryan Brockway
cefebrate as Toronto Branch Huockeéy
upsets Montreal, May 2006,

ATS continues to display
a powerful drive for progress

without sacrificing core ideals. -

Tom Hennig, Laith Al-Durrah and
Mautizio Lelli celebrate the World
Cup by \{'earing their national colours,
Toronto, Summer 2006,
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ATS Healthdare Services -

taunched in 2006 35 4 separate
brand, Shown here is the
‘Turnpike Double dombination
destined for healthcare

.. - deliveries in Albere, |
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ON THE COVER:

Colleen Oliver is an Owner Operator working for ATS in
courier services at the Toronte branch. She is responsible for
delivering appointment and morning freight to various clients
across the Greater Toronto Area. She was awarded Owner
Operator of the Year in 2003 after only two years of service.
Colleen is shown here wearing her pink ATS har in support of
Breast Cancer Awareness.
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Corporate Profile

The ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the “Fund”™} is a leading single
source, full-service transportation solutions provider providing
integrated trucking, courier, airfreight and value added transporta-
tion and distribution services to major consumer companies in
Canada. The Fund provides a broad range of transportation serv-
ices designed to deliver reliable, Hexible, and cost-effective distri-
bution services that fulfill its customers’ specific needs.

Visit our websites at www.atsincomefund.ca and ats.ca

On our websites you will find relevant investor information,
including industry trends and answers 10 frequently asked ques-
tions, links to financial information and up to date news releases.
Our complete story is presented in a simple, easy to access format.
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Dear Fellow Unitholders

/ e a
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I was in a meeting the other day and 1 heard something that
. " . .
caught my attention... "Sometimes you have to run faster jusr

to stay still”,

Change and speed of execution are business concepts consid-
ered to be inevitable these days. | have always liked the ad
which showed a rear view mirror and, visible within it, a car
fast approaching. Instead of saying 'Objects are closer than
they appear’, the text at the borrom of the mirror reads

‘Competitors are closer than they appear.’

These are the things that keep us here at ATS awake at night
and so we are continuously trying to find better ways to make
ATS the best transportation organization in the country. 2007
will not be any different.  Reflecting on 2006 I realize we have

accomplished quite a bit.

Fiscal 2006 yielded a solid operational performance for ATS.
While revenue growth was 2% and EBITDA slighdy underper-
formed 2005, we stayed focused and increased monthly disrri-
butions by approximarely 20%, while maintaining an approx-
imate 80% payout ratio. We did learn 2 grear deal and we pro-
gressed as an organization to the point where 2007 now

appears as a year Of grcat opporrunity.

a e 7 s



On the quality side, our en-time performance continually
improved throughour the year and thar is of great benefir 1o
our customers. This is an area in which we cannot ever lose
focus and | am proud of our accomplishments in this depart-

menrt in 2006.

2007 sces more change on the horizon, particularly in the
form of reorganization. It will mark the year that our Toronto
operations will move to its new state of the arr facility and
this, combined with the new terminals in Monrcreal {(2005) and
Vancouver (2006), will position ATS 1o handle additional
capacity resulting from acquisitions and organic growth. We
will begin to further define and separate our Healthcare
Division to bring added focus to customer requirements. By
the time this report is published, many of these transitions will
be well underway. Change is a good thing and cur ability to
quickly adapt will make us a better organization for our cus-
tomers and unitholders and open more possibilities in the long

un.

To that end, we can use zll the clichés in the world. "Change is
inevitable’. 'Change is the only constant’. Despite all of ous
transformations one thing remains true. We will not change

our core ideology. our core ATS vision of being the most reli-

able and the most cost effective transporiation service in
Canada, for those industries in which we choose ro serve. We
will continue to explore opportuniries ro acquire complemen-
tary or competing businesses, within the limits set by rhe pro-
posed tax legislation, and we will always display a powerful
drive to progress that enables us to move forward and 10 adap:
to whatever change may come, without ever compromising our

ideals.

Here’s to a successful 2007

s

Michael Andlauer
President and Chief Executive Officer
ATS Andlaucr Transportation Scrvices GP Inc.

Administraror to ATS Andlaver Income Fund
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2006

The following management’s discussion and analysis ("MDGA") as of
February 13, 2007, is a review of the conselidated financial condi-
tion of ATS Andiauer Income Fund (“the Fund") for the periods
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of operations of
the Fund for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2006
compared to the results of aperations of the Fund for the three month
period ended December 31, 2005 combined with the pre-acquisition
results of operations of the Business, as defined below, for the nine
month period ended September 30, 2005. The consolidated results
include the accounts of the Fund, and its subsidiaries, ATS Andlauer
Operating Trust ("ATSOT”), ATS Andlauer Transportation Services
GP Inc. (the “GP"), and ATS Andlauer Transportation Services
Limited Parinership ("ATS Andlauer LP"). It should be read in con-
Junction with the audited consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes of the Fund for the year ended December 31,
2006. The financial statemenss of the Fund are prepared in accor-
dance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) and are reported in Canadian dellars.

The following discussion contains certain forward looking statements,
which are subject to a variety of factors that could cavse acrual results
to differ materially from those contemplated by these statements. See
“Forward Looking Statements” for a discussion of the risks, uncertain-
ties and assumptions relating to those statements. Some of the factors
that could cause results or events to differ from current expectations
include, but are not limited 1o, the factors described under “Risk
Facters”. This discussion alse refers 1o certain non-GAAP measures to
assist in assessing the Funds financial performance. Non-GAAP meas-
ures do not have standard meanings prescribed by GAAP and are
therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by
other issuers. See “Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA,
Distributable Cash and Non-GAAP Measures”.

8  ATS Andlauer Income Fund

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. All statements
other than statements of historical fact contained in this MD&A
are forward-looking statements, including, withour limitation,
statements regarding the future financial position, cash distribu-
tions, litigation, projected costs, and proposed investments and
plans and objectives of or involving the Fund and the business
strategy, proposed acquisitions and budgers of ATS Andlauer LI
You can identify many of these statements by locking for words

ELTS

“will”, "intends”, “projects”, “antici-

» o »n
)

such as “believe”, “expects
pates”, “estimates”, “continues” or similar words or the negative
thereof. These forward-looking statements include sratements
with respect to the amount and tining of the payment of distribu-
tiens of the Fund. There can be no assurance that che plans, inten-
tions or expectations upon which these forward-looking state-
ments are based will occur. Forwaid looking statements are subject
to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including, but not limit-
ed 1o, those discussed elsewhere in this MD&A. There can be no
assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Some of
the factors that could affect furure results and could cause results
to differ marerially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements contained herein include, bur are nor limited o, those
discussed under “Risks Factors™.

The information contained in this MD&A, including the infor-
martion set forth under “Risk Factors”, identifies addirional factors
that could affect the operating results and performance of the
Fund and ATS Andiaver LP.

The forward-locking statements contained herein are expressly
qualified in their entirety by this cautionary starement. The for-
ward-looking statements included in this MD&A are made as of
the date of this MD&A and the Fund assumes no obligation o
update or revise them to reflect new events or circumstances
excepr as expressly required by applicable securities law.

c 0



OVERVIEW OF THE FUND

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust governed by the
laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant 1o the Declaration of
Trust dated August 22, 2005. The Fund’s activities are limited ro
making certain investments including its investment in the securi-
ties of its subsidiaries. The Business, as defined below, is carried

on by ATS Andlauer LI

On September 30, 2005, the Fund completed an initial public
offering {the “IPO”) of 9,324,200 trust units (“Units™) for $10.00
per Unit, for gross proceeds of $93.2 million. Concurrent with
the closing of the IPO, the Fund used the gross proceeds from the
sale of its Units ro indirectly acquire an 80.1% interest in ATS
Andlauer LP, comprising 9,324,200 Ordinary LP Units, and its
general partner, the GE ATS Andlauer LP used cash and the
issuance of Exchangeable LP Units to acquire certain of the net
assets of the Canadian rtransportarion solutions business (the
“Business”) of ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc. (the
“Vendor™), for an aggregare purchase price of $121.6 million. The
Vendor, controlled by the President and Chief Executive Officer of
the GP, holds the remaining 19.9% inrerest in ATS Andlauer LP
comprising 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units. The acquisition
was accounted for by the purchase method.

ATS Andlauer LP is a leading single source transportation solu-

tions provider in Canada, providing integrated trucking, courier,
air freight and value added transportation and distribution serv-
ices to consumer product companies. It operares facilities in 23
terminals across Canada and serves approximarely 1,400 diversi-
fied customers.

BASIS OF MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To provide more meaningful information to the reader, the fol-
lowing MD&A refers to the consolidated operating results of the
Fund for the three month period ended December 31, 2006
compared to the three month period ended December 31, 2005
and the consolidated operating results of the Fund for the twelve
month period ended December 31, 2006 compared ro the oper-
ating results of the Fund for the three month period ended
December 31, 2005 combined with the pre-acquisition operating
results of the Business for the nine month period ended
September 30, 2005. The pre-acquisition operating results of
the Business are unaudited and readers are cautioned thar the
operating results presented for the rwelve month period ended
December 31, 2005 are nor the cesults of the Fund. The com-
bined results have been presented only to provide the reader with
additional information to enhance rthe usefulness of this MD&A.

m € n 1
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Management’s Discussion and Anatysis

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING INFORMATION
For the three and twelve month periods ended December 31, 2006 compared to three month peviod ended December 31, 2005
and results of the Business for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2005,

Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
’ ) ’ 2006 2005 2006  2005"
(unaudited) {audited) {audited) {unaudited)
($ thousands) ($ thousands)
Earnings Statement Highlights
Revenue 50,789 51,053 175,678 171,967
Gross margin®™ 19,462 20,913 66,214 66,350
Gross margin percentage™ 38.32% 40.96% 37.69% 38.58%
Income before non-comro]]ing_imcrcst T T T Te96 7750 15,002 15238
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA™ 799,369 21,750 22,366
Income per Unit
Basic 0.534 0.666 1.293 0.666
Dilured 0.533 0.666 1.290 0.666
Balance Sheet Highlights
To1al Assers 129,650 132,409 129,650 132,409
Total Erabilities 44,553 46,355 44,553 46,355
Distributions declared 0.5722 0.6463 1.3771 0.6463

" The results of aperations for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2005 is comprised of the unaudited pre-acquisition cesubts of the Business for the nine month

period ended September 30, 2005 combined with the audired results of the Fund for the three month period ended December 31, 2005.

* Gross margin is a non-GAAP measure that represents the contribution of operating activitics to carmings. It is considered a key measure by management of the GI*
(“Management™) as it reflects the abiliry of the Fund to generate earnings necessary 1o fund overhead costs, capiral investment and distributions. Gross margin 2nd gross
margin percentage have been calculared as follows:

S ry € 7l
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Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Gross margin {percentage) = Gross margin/Revenue

Three Months Ended

. December3l,
o005

_ 2006 _ _
{unaudited)

{audited)

($ thousands)

50,789
31,327
19,462
38.32%

51,053
30,140
20,913
40.96%

Three Months Ended
December 31,  __ __ _
2006 __2005"__

(audited) {unaudited)

{($ thousands)

175.678 171,967
109,464 105,617
(6,214 66,350
37.69% 38.58%

" EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure that Management considers a key measure as an indicator of the ability of the Fund to meet s capital and financing commitmenis.
EBITDA is not a recognized measure under GAAP and does not have a standardized meaning under GAAP. 1t was necessary 10 adjust EBITDA of the 2005 pre-zcquisi-
tion results included in the rwelve month peried ended results to facifitate the comparability with the current period. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be com-
parable to similar measures presented by other issuers,  See “Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash and Non-GAAP Mcasures”. EBITDA and

Adjusted EBITDA have been caleulated as follows:

Income beforc non-controlling interest
Plus: Net interest
Plus: Income taxcs

Plus: Depreciation and amortization

Add: Exccutive compensation and management fees

EBITDA and Adjusied EBITDA

Three Months Ended
December 31,

2000

(unaudited)

2005
(audited)

{$ thousands)

6,196

1,734
7,932

7932

7,750
16
1,603
9.369

9,369

Three Months Ended
[ecember 31, o
wo6 2005

(:Iudih:d-) (unaudi!;:i—)
($ thousands)

15,002 15,238
63 205
. 4,233
6,685 2,101
21.750 21777
- 418
T R A
21,750 22,366

" The resubts of operarions for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2005 is comprised of the unaudired pre-2cquisition results of the Business for the nine month
peried ended Scptember 30, 2005 combined with the audited results of the Fund for the three month peried ended December 31, 2005.:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

SUMMARY OF MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY RESULTS

(3 thousands, except per unit amounis) December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005
e . Qdee) Q306 (Q2 06} Qroey — (Q405)
Revenue . 50,789 42,540 40,775 41,574 51,053
Gross margin'™ 19,462 15,828 15,289 15,635 20,913
EBITDA 7,932 5,631 4114 4,074 9.369
Income before Mﬁ'@ﬂ'ﬁl“?"&ﬁ“ﬁfi i B190 3,974 2,436 2,396 _ 7750
Income per Unit
Basic 0.534 0.342 0.210 0.206 0.666
Diluted 0.533 0.342 0.210 0.206 0.666
Cash and cash equivalents 265 32 1,024 441 264
Total assets 129,650 124,628 123,058 128,238 132,409
Total current Liabilicies 18,048 12,229 12,165 11,893 19,047
Long-term debt 3,349 3,749 3,000 7,364 3,948
Unitholders’ equity 85,097 85,401 84,780 85,705 86,054
Non-controlling inerest 23,156 23.249 23,113 23,276 23,360

W See “Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBETDA, Distributable Cash and Non-GAAP Measures™

Revenue

Revenue is gencrated from the provision of trucking, courier, air
freight forwarding and value added services to customers.
Customers pay fees to transport goods from one destination ro
another over a specified delivery period. Fees are determined and
collected based on the weighr and size of the shipment, the mode
or modes of transportation used, 2nd the provision of incremental
value added services such as remperature management, appoint-
ment deliveries, and returns management services. Revenue is gen-
erally caregorized as either ground or air, depending on the pri-
mary mode of transport. Revenue is also generated from fuel sur-
charges through which fuel price increases are passed through to
its customers.

12 ATS Andhkuer Income Fund

Cost of Goods Sold and Fxpenses

The following costs are incurred in the delivery of services 10
customers:

* Linehaul — includes ground and air freight transfers
berween terminals. A combination of third party carriers, owner-
operators and company drivers are used to facilitate the movement
of freight, keeping costs variable.

» Pickup and delivery --- relates o the pickup and sub-
sequent delivery of customer freight. Qwner-operators who own
the equipment used to deliver the: freight are used exrensively in
the provision of such services. In addition, employee drivers are
used for sorne city work using leased equipmentr and provide flex-
ibility to add rental units or use third party carriers when necessary.

* Handling costs — relates ro dock labour ar the various
terminals to handle freight. By using contract labour, the compa-
ny is able to maintain a cost variable with revenue and allows for
additional labour staffing during pezk periods.



In addition, the following costs are incurred:

* Terminal expenses, which include salaries, employee
benefits, urdilities, building rent, maintenance and equipment
expenses.

* Selling expenses, which include sales salaries, commis-
sions and travel expenses.

* Administrative expenses, which include executive
salaries, information technology, human resources, accounting
and training expenses,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Seasenality of Operations

The activities of the Fund are subject to general demand for
freight transportation. Historically, demand has been relarively
stable with the exception of the winter months, in which demand
slightly decreases, and the fall months, in which demand increas-
es. Consequently, the Fund’s activities in the last six months of
the year are usually stronger than the first six months of the year.

For the three months ended December 31, 2006 compared to the three months ended December 3/, 2005

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Thrce Months Ended
December 31,

Gross margin

Gross margin %
Terminal

Selling
Administration
Amortization

Interest Expense

Income before non-conurolling interest

2006 2005
{unaudited) (audited)
($ thousands)
50,789 51,053
31,327 30,140
T o 19,462 e T

38.32% 40.96%
7,412 7.597
1,047 1,240
3,071 2,707
1,734 1603

2 16
6,196 7,750
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

Revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2006 was
$50.8 million compared to $51.1 million for the same pertod in
20035, a decrease of $0.3 million or 0.52%. The decline in revenue
period over period was a result of a lower volume of premium
priced air shipments, offset by an increase in ground revenue.

Air freight forwarding revenue excluding fuel surcharges decreased
by $1.3 million in the three month period ended December 31,
2006 compared to the same period in 2005. This was Jargely due
ro the decline of air revenue in the enterrainment industry which
was uncharacteristically high in the last quarter of 2005. Fuel sur-
charge revenue declined by $0.8 million from $5.2 million in
2005 to $4.4 million in 2006, Ground revenue increased by $1.8
million excluding fuel surcharge revenue during the three month

period ended December 31, 2006.

Enterrainmenr revenue declined by $1.8 million for the three
months ended December 31, 2006 compared 1o the same period
in 2003, offset by increases in the Revail and Pharmaceutical ver-
ticals.

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

Cosr of sales increased from $30.1 million for the three months
ended December 31, 2005 to $31.3 million for the three months
ended December 31, 2006; cost of sales as a percentage of revenue
increased from 59.0% for the three months ended December 31,
2005 to 61.7% for the three months ended December 31, 2006.
The increase was due in part 1o a reduction in high margin week-
end revenue compared to the same quarter in 2005, Linchaul costs
as a percentage of revenue increased in 2006 mainly duc 10 a
reduction in the premium weekend acrivity. Pickup & Delivery
costs  increased partly due o the reduction of the premium week-
end activiry and increased driver wages and owner operator costs
in Western Canada..  Higher labour costs in Western Canada,
especially Alberta, resulted in higher handling costs. Competitive
pressures resulted in the lowering of prices in some verticals which
also impacted margins. As a resulr, gross margin decreased from
40.96% for the three months ended December 31, 2005 o
38.32% for the same period in 2006.

14 ATS Andlauer Income Fund

Terminal Expenses

Terminal expenses decreased slightly from $7.6 million for the
three months ended December 31, 2005 to $7.4 million for the
three months ended December 31, 2006. The decrease was main-
by due to a reduction in cargo claims and recoveries ($0.4 millien),
maintenance ($0.2million) which was offset by an increase in scaff
related costs ($0.1 million) and 1ent of ($0.3million). Terminal
expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased from 14.88% for the
three months ended December 31, 2005 to 14.59% for the three
months ended December 31, 20006.

Selling and Administrative

Sales and marketing expenses decreased from $1.2 million for the
three months ended December 31, 2005 to $1.0 milhon for the
same peniod in 2006. The decrease in selling costs was due 1o a
decrease in sales commissions as a result of restructuring sales staff
and commission levels. Selling costs as 2 percentage of revenue
decreased from 2.43% for the three months ended December 31,
2005 10 2.06% for the three months ended December 31, 2006.

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, administrative
expenses increased frem $2.7 million for the three months ended
Decermber 31, 2005 to $3.1 million for same peried in 2006. The
increase in administrative expenses in the current period com-
pared to the same period in 2005 was due to an increase in
employee costs {$0.1 million) and an increase in the incentive
plan costs ($0.6 millien), offset by Fund expenses which decreased
by $0.1 million and $0.2 million of credit wrire-offs raken into
income in 2006. Administration costs increased from 5.31% of
revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2005 to 6.05%
of revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2006.

Income before Non-controlling Interest

Income before non-controlling interest for the three month peri-
od ended December 31, 2006 was $6.2 million compared 1o $7.8
million for the same period in 2005 which was mainly due to
tower margins as a result of a reduction in high margin weekend
revenue relating to the Entertainment vertical.



EBITDA

EBITDA was $7.9 million for the three months ended December
31, 2006, down from $9.4 million in the same period in 2005,
representing a decline of 15.34%. As a percentage of revenue,
EBITDA was 15.60% for the three months ended December 31,
2006, compared to an EBITDA of 18.34% in the same period in

EBITDA for these periods are calculated as follows:

2005. EBITDA is a non-GAAP measures and may not be com-
parable to similar measures presented by other issuers.  See
“Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distriburable Cash
and Non-GAAP Measures™.

Three Months Ended
Deccember 31,
20 2005 _ _

{unaudited) {audited)
($ thousands)

2006 _

Income before non-conlm“ing interest 6,196 7,750
Add:
Interest 2 16
Depreciation and amortization o LI o heo3
EBITDA 7,932 9,369

Amoruzarion expenses increased in the three months ended December 31, 2006 due to the amortization of additions ro fixed assets

amounting to $0.1 million.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

RESULYS OF OPERATIONS

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2005

Revenue
Cost of goads sold
Gross margin

Gross margin %

Terminal
Selling
Adminisiration

Amortization_

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

Interest Expense

Provision for income 1ax_ _

Income before non-controlling interest

2006 2005
(audited) {unaudited)
($ thousands)
175,678 171,967
109,464 105,617 _
66,214 66,350
37.69% 38.58%
29,049 29,121
4,446 5,744
10,969 9,708
- - - . 6685 _ el
51,149 46,674
63 205
S S 1v.5; : S
15,002 15,238

" The results of operations for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2005 s comprised of the unaudited pre-acquisition results of the Business for the ninc
month period ended Seprember 30, 2005 combined with the audited results of the Fund for the three month period ended Decenber 31, 2005.

Revenue

Revenue for the vear ended December 31, 2006 was $175.7 mil-
lion, an increase of $3.7 million or 2.16% over $172.0 mitlion in
2005. The increase was the result of revenue growth in all major
customer categories except Entertainment which declined by $3.0
million compared 10 2005.

Ground revenue for the year, excluding fuel surcharges, increased
by $7.5 million. Fuel surcharge revenue increased by $1.5 mil-
lion compared to 2005 due to increased revenue. These revenue
increases were offset by a decrease in air freight forwarding rev-
enue, excluding fuel surcharges, of $5.1 million mainly on

16  ATS Andlauer Income Fund

account of lower revenue relating 1o the Entertainment vertical in
the last two quarters of 2006 compared ro the same quarters of

2005,
Cost of Sales and Gross Margin

Cost of sales increased from $105.6 million for the year ended
BDecember 31, 2005 ro $109.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006; cost of sales as a percentage of revenue was
higher ar 62.31% for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 compared to 61.42% for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2005. The gross margin decreased from 38.58% in
2005 ro 37.69% in 2006.



Linehaul costs increased largely due a reduction in the premium
entertainment business in 2006 compared 10 2005 and as a result
of a change in the mix of freight . Linchaul costs increased by
0.65% of revenue compared to last year. Pickup and delivery costs
increased due to the replacement of dry units with temperature
controlled units during the year resulting in higher leased costs.
Pickup and delivery costs incteased by 0.28% of revenue com-
pared to last year. Handling costs increased due to increased
labour costs in Alberta. The increase in handling costs represented
0.15% of the decrease in gross margin compared to 2005.
Competitive pressures resulted in the lowering of prices in some

verticals which also impacted margins,
Terminal Expenses

Terminal expenses declined from 329.1 million for the ycar ended
December 31, 2005 o $29.0 million in 2006. Terminal expenses
as a percentage of revenue decreased from 16.93% for the year
ended December 31, 2003 so 16.54% for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Terminal employee costs increased by $0.7
million in 2006 compared to 2005 mainly due to cost of living
increases. This increase was largely offset by a reduction in cargo
claims amounting to $0.6 million.

Selling and Administrative

Sales and marketing expenses decreased from $5.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 to $4.4 million in 2006. The
decrease in selling costs was due to decreases in sales commissions
and paymenr incentive costs as a result of a re-organization of the
sales force and changes in contractual agreements with customers.
Selling costs as a percentage of revenue decreased from 3.34% for
the year ended December 31, 2005 to 2.53% for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Administrative expenses increased from $9.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 to $11.0 million in 2006 due mainly
1o staff related costs which increased by $0.6 million year over year
and increased costs associated with being a public reporting enri-
ty {these costs did not exist for the period January to September
2003) of approximately $0.9 million of which $0.4 million refat-
ed to compensation expense recorded during the year relating to
the long-term incentive plan awarded for 2005. As a percentage
of revenue, administrative expenses increased from 5.65% for the
year ended December 31, 2005 to 6.24% for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Income before Non-controlling Interest

Income before non-conrrolling interest for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was $15.0 million compared to $15.2 million
for 2005.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

It was necessary to adjust 2005 EBITDA as it includes the pre-
acquisition operating results of the Business for the nine months
ended September 30, 2005 to facilitate the comparability with the
current period. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAD
measures and may not be comparable 1o similar measures present-
ed by other issuers.  See “Definition of EBITDA, Adjusted EBIT-
DA, Distributable Cash and Non-GAAP Measures™.

EBITDA was $21.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2006, down from $22.4 million of Adjusted EBITDA in 2005,
representing a decline of 2.75%. As a percentage of revenue,
EBITDA was 12.38% for the year ended December 31, 2000,
compared to an Adjusted EBITDA of 13.01% in 2005.
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for these periods are calculated as follows:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2006 o . E)SJ‘L o
T S T .(;;nli(:cﬂls- {unaudited}
{8 theusands)
[ncome before non-controlling interest 15,002 15,238
Add:
Interest 63 205
tncome taxes - 4,233
Depreciation and amortization 6,685 2,101
o S T e 2—1—]7—5—6— T 21,777___~
Add: Executive compensation and management fecs - 418
Onher - 171
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA 21,750 22,366

" The results of operations for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2005 is comprised of the unaudited pre-acquisition results of the Business for the nine
month period ended September 30, 2005 combined with the audited sesults of the Fund for the three month period ended December 31, 2005.

Amorrization expense increased in the year ended December 31,
2006 mainly due to the amortization of intangible assers amount-
ing to $6.1 millien and amortization of assets acquired during the
year. The intangible assets were acquired as part of the acquisition
of the Business as part of the PO process.

Income tax expense was recorded ar an effective rate of 36.15% for
the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The Fund is taxed as
a “murual fund trust” for income tax purposes. Pursuant ro the
Declaration of Trust, the trustees of the Fund {the “Trustees”)
intend to distribute or designarte all raxable income earned by the
Fund to unitholders of the Fund and to deduct such distriburions
and designations for income tax purposes. Therefore, there was no
income tax provision for the three month period ended December
31, 2005 and the year ended December 31, 2006.
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DISTRIBUTABLE CASH AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund’s policy is o distribute annually to unitholders available
cash from operations after cash required for capital expenditures,
working capital reserve, and other reserves considered advisable by
the Trustees. The policy allows the Fund to make monthly distri-
burions ro its unitholders based on its estimare of distributable
cash for the year. The Fund makes monthly cash distributions to
the unitholders of record on the last day of each month, payable
on or abour the 15¢h day of the lollowing month.

Distributable cash and payout ratio are terms that are used on
eccasion in this MD&A that are non-GAAP measures and do not
have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefere, dis-
eributable cash and payourt ratio may nor be comparable 1o similar
measures presented by other issucrs. See “Definition of EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA, Distribuiable Cash and Non-GAAP

Measures”.

The Fund reviews its historical and expected results on a regular
basis which also includes consideration of economic conditions in
order to assess the appropriatene:s of its distribution policy. The



Fund strives 1o achieve a sustainable and attractive level of distri-

burions for its unitholders.

Based on this review, and the financial performance of the Fund,

the following rable summarizes the cash distributions for the year
ended December 31, 2006:

Units __ Exchangeable LP Units Total
($ thousands cxcept per unit amounts}
Date
distribution Dreclared Paid Declared Paid Declared  Per Unit Paid
Record daie paid/payable 3 $ $ $ $ 5 $
Regular Distributions
January 31, 2006 February 15, 2006 755 755 187 187 942  0.0810 042
February 28, 2006 March 15, 2006 755 755 187 187 942 0.0810 942
March 31, 2006 April 17, 2006 755 755 187 187 942 0.0810 942
April 30, 2006 May 15, 2006 869 869 216 216 1,085 0.0932 1,085
May 31, 2006 June 15, 2006 869 369 216 216 1,085 0.0932 1,085
June 30, 2006 July 17, 2006 869 869 216 216 1,085 0.0932 1,085
July 31, 2006 August 15, 20006 877 877 218 218 1,095 0.0941 1,095
August 31, 2000 Sepember 15, 2006 877 877 218 218 1,095  0.094} 1,095
September 30, 2006 Ocrober 15, 2006 877 877 218 218 1,095  0.0941 1,095
QOcrober 31, 2006 November t5, 2006 908 908 226 226 1,134 0.0974 1,134
Navember 34, 2006 December 15, 2006 908 908 226 126 1,134 0.0974 1,134
December 31, 2006 January 15, 2007 908 226 - 1,134 0.0974 -
Special Distributions
December 29, 2006 March 15, 2007 2,611 648 . 3,259 0.2800 -
T ST T 12838 9319 3189 2315 16027 13771 11,634

Distributions are paid on Units and Exchangeable LP Units. As of February13, 2007 the following Units and Exchangeable LP Units

were outstanding;

Units outstanding

Units held by the Fund for long-term incentive plan

Total Units

Exchangeable LP Unirs™

9,293,923

30,277
9,324,200
2,316,442

11,640,642

" Each Exchangeable LP Unit has one Special Vating Unit artached thereto.
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During the first quarter 2006, the Fund made regular distribu-
tions of $0.243 per Unit in towal {$0.081 per Unit), consistent
with the mondhly distributions contemplated in the Fund’s 1PO
prospectus of $0.08]1 per Unit. During the second quarter of
2006, the Fund announced rwo consecutive increases to its regu-
lar monthly distributions raising the monthly amount from
$0.081 per Unit to $0.0941 per Unit, a 16.2% increase on a
On October 17, 2006, a third increase to
monthly distributions was announced by the Fund. Monthly dis-
triburions increased from $0.0941 per Unir to $0.0974 per Uni.
The increase was effective for the fourth quarter 2006 distribu-

cumulative basis.

tions of which the first distriburion was paid on October 15,
2006, to unitholders of record on September 30, 2006.

In 2005, the Fund declared a special cash distribution of $0.334
per Unit and a special non-cash distriburion in the form of Unis
with a value of $0.065 per Unit. The special distributions were

paid on March 31, 2006 to unithoiders of record on December
31, 2005. The Units distributed as part of the special non-cash
distribution were distributed on a pro rata basis and were includ-
the 2005 calendar

Immediately after the pro rata distribution of Units, the number

ed in unitholders’ income for year.
of outstanding Units were consolidated, such that each unithold-
er, following the consolidation, held the same number of Unics as
before the non-cash distribution, and there was no change in the

rotal number of Units ourtstanding,

On December 8, 20006, before the finalizarion of its aggregarte tax-
able income for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, the
Fund announced, in addition to its regular monthly distribution
for December, a special cash distribution of $0.2100 per Unir
payable on March 15, 2007 to Unitholders of record on December
29, 2006, Subsequent to the year end, the Fund determined that
the estimared special cash distribution announced on December 8,
2006 will increase o $0.2800 per Unit.

Distributable Cash per Unit {Fund Units, and Exchangeable LP Units)

{$ thousands except per Unit amouns)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization and non-controlling interest

Less: Net interest paid

Less: Maintenance capital expenditures™

Less: Purchase of units held for long-term incentive plan

Distributable cash

Distributable cash per uni®

Cash dislri-b_utions dccla(ed

Cash disributions declared per Unit™

Payout ratie cash distributions

Three months ended
_ .. December 31, 2005 _

Twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 _

Three months ended
_ December_ 31, 2006

9,369 7,932 21,750
16 2 63
220 297 336
- 512
9.133 7.633 20,839
0785 0656 1790
6,766 6,661 16,027
0.581 0.572 1377
74% 87% 77%

™ See “Liquidity and Capital Resources-Capiral Expenditures” for a summary of 2mounts included and explanation of each

P Calculated based on 11,640,642 units outstanding
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It is the Fund’s policy to review the monthly distribution on a
periodic basis and to maintain a payour rartio in the range of 80%-
90%. The payour ratios, or cash distributions declared expressed
as a percent of distributable cash, were 74%, 87% and 77% for the
three month periods ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 and the
rwelve month period ended December 31, 20006, respectively. The
excess of distributable cash over cash distributions to unitholders
was retained ro fund acquisitions of capiral assets and reduce exist-

ing debr.

In addition to the reconciliation of earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization and non-controlling interest o dis-
tributable cash as outlined above, the following table provides a
reconciliarion of cash flow from operating activities 1o distrib-
utable cash for the rhree and twelve month periods ended
December 31, 2006:

Reconciliation of Distributable Cash to Cash from Operating Activities

(3 thousands except per Unit amounts)

Cash from operating activities
Adjusted for non-cash items

Less: (Gatn}/loss on disposal of assets™

Less: Net change in non-cash working capital®”
Mainienance and expendirures®
Distributions paid o nen-controlling interest™
Laong-term incentive plan expense
Bistributable cash

Three months ended
December 31, 2005 HiDrecernber 31, 2006

Twelve months ended
December 31, 2006

Three months ended

11,548 4,069 14,693
- (4) 64
2,579 (3,255 (3,645)
(220) (297) (336)
384 670 3,277
(68) (376)

9,133 7625 20,839

™ Loss on disposal of assets cffectively increases the cost of maintenance capital expenditures, while proceeds on disposal of assets effectively decrease such expenditures,

Therefore losses are considered non-distributable to unitholders and proceeds considered distributable.

' Net change in non-cash working capital is not included in the calculation of distributable cash. Werking capital investments are funded through a combination of

cash flow not distributed and the Credit Facilities {see “Liquidity and Capital Resources™)

" See “Liquidity and Capital Resources-Capitzl Expenditures” for 2 summary of amounts included and explanation of each

" Distributable cash is calcelated on 2 fully dilured basis however distributions paid 10 the non-controlling interest are deducted from cash from operations in the state-

ment of cash flows.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For year ended December 31, 2006, the Fund has urilized cash
from operarions and funds under ATS Andlauer LP’s credir facil-

Net inflow (ourflow) of cash related 1o:
Operating activitics
Investing activities
Financing activities

Increase in cash resources

ities to maintain existing capacity. The following table provides
an overview of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2006:

‘Fwelve months ended
Dc.f:fnjl_bcr 31, 30_06

(S lhousand.;)
{audited)

14,693
(842)
{13.850)
1

Cash from Operating Activities

Cash from operating activities was $14.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Qperating income, adjusted for non-
cash amortization, units purchased on behalf of the long-term
incentive plan and associated compensation expense and distribu-
tions paid in excess of non-conurolling interest, contributed $18.3
million. Non-cash working captital decreased by $3.6 million.

Cash Used for Investing Activities

Cash used for investing activities related 1o the purchase and sale
of capital assets, including the purchase of in-line cameras, fork-
lifts and a power generator which amounted to $1.0 million. See
“Capiral Expenditures” below for a discussion.

Cash from Financing Activities

Cash outflow from financing activities was $13.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 and consisted of the net repay-
ment of $0.6 million relating to the Credit Facility, as described
below, during the period and $0.1 million related 1o addirional
deferred financing costs.  Distributions totaling $13.2 million
were paid on Fund Units during the period which included $3.9
million relating to distributions declared and payable at the end of

fiscal 2005 and $9.3 million relating to distributions declared in 2006.
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Credit Facilities

At the rime of its PO, ATS Andlauer LD established credit facili-
ties with a Canadian chartered bank. These credir facilities con-
sist of a three year committed $15.0 million revolving credit facil-
ity to finance general operating requirements, as well as a three
year committed $4.0 million revolving credit facility to finance
leases of operating assers, (collectively the "Credit Facility”).
Security for the Credir Facility includes a first security interest on
substantially all of the assets of the Fund and its subsidiaries,
including accounts recetvable. lnterest on the Credit Facility
varies, depending on certain financial rarios, between the lender's
Canadian prime rate plus 0% und 0.75% and berween the
bankers’ acceptance rate plus 1.5% and 2.25%. The Credit
Facility is subject to customary terms and conditions, including
limits on incurring additional indebtedness or granting encum-
brances without the consent of the lender and does not require
principal repayment until the end of the rerm. The terms of the
Credir Facility are subject to change from time to time. The Credit
Facility may in certain circumstances restrict the ability of ATS
Andlaver LP to pay distributions to the holders of its units,
including the Fund, and of the Fund 1o pay distributions ro
unitholders if the payment would result in a default under the
Credit Facility. Under the terms of the Credir Facilicy, the Fund
is required, amongsr other conditions, to meer certain covenants,
with which the Fund was in compliance as ar December 31, 2006.



As of December 31, 2006, the Fund has borrowed $3.4 million ar
an effecrive rare of 6.0% under the $15.0 million three year com-
mitted revolving credit facility.

Management believes that the credit facilities are sufficient 1o
mect the Fund’s working capital requirements.

Capital Expenditures

During the twelve maonth period ended December 31, 2006, ATS
Andlauer LP incurred minimal capital expenditures which is con-
sistent with historical levels and is a direct result of the strategic
business decision to lease rather than own equipment and facili-
ties. ATS Andlaver LP estimared 10 spend approximately $0.8
million in capiral expenditures in fiscal 2006 of which approxi-
mately $0.4 million was estimated to be mainwenance capiral. As
at December 31, 2006 the Fund has spent approximately $1.0
million in capital expendirtures of which $0.5 was related to main-

Total capital expenditure
Growth capital expenditures (not deducted from distributable cash)
Maintenance capital expenditures

Cash proceeds on disposal of capital assets

Maintenance capital expenditures deducted from distributable cash

tenance capiral expenditures. Furure capital expenditures (other
than acquisitions) will be funded from cash flow generated from
operations and lease financing.

ATS Andiauer LP considers maintenance and refurbishment of
existing factlities and trucks, and cash proceeds on disposal of cap-
ital assets as maintenance capital expenditures and appropriately
deducts these amounts from distributable cash. Growth capiral
expenditures were not included in the calculation of distributable
cash and were funded with operating cash flow not distributed and
are considered to be expenditures undertaken 1o promote business
expansion, primarily consisting of acquisitions and rerminal devel-

OPanT.

The following table provides a :ummary of maintenance capital
expenditures deducted from distributable cash for the three and
twelve month periods ended December 31, 2006:

Twelve months ended
December 31, 2006

Three months ended  Three months ended
!)cc'em!)c_l_' 31, 2005 Dcccmbc_r 31, 2006

506 763 986
{275) (446) {506}
231 317 480
(11) (20) (144)
Y T T " 336

SUMMARY OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As at December 31, 2006, the Fund did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than those contractual obligations of ATS

Andlauer LP disclosed below:

el _ 2007 2008
Premise leases "% 50,553 7,494 6,978
E‘]"_'EE"_“"‘ lE:l_sc-s_'” w 19,916_ 5,686 5,226
Total # 70,469 13,180 12,204

Payments
($ cthousands)
2009 _ _ 2000 2001 Thereafer
6,567 6,222 5,99 17,301
3,843 2,444 1,885 832
10,410 8,666 7.876 18,133

" Payments for operating leases are deducted from cash flow from vperating acrivities.

“ Premisc leases include minimum bease payment obligarions associated with keases for office and rerminal space.

» Equipment feases include minimum lease payment obligations associated with leases for trucks and trailers sequited for the transporration of freight.

“* Purchase arrangements made in the ordinary course of business have been excluded as they are discretionary.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions with related parties include ATS Andlauer LP's pur-
chase of the Business of the Vendor, a company controlled by the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP. In addition, the
Exchangeable LP Units that were issued as parc of the 1PO, and
included in Note 7 of the financial scatements, are held by the
Vendor.

Consistent with historical pracrice, the Fund entered into transac-
tions during the year with related parties that were incurred in the
normal course of business at terms similar with unrelated parties.

Revenue
Transportation scrvices
Cost of geods sold
Transportation services
Contract labourer services
Expenses (recovery)
Facility and equipment rent
Facility rent
Shared services
Payment incentive
Accounts reccivable

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

For the year ended December 31, 2006 the distriburable cash flow
per Unit exceeded the base distributable threshold by $0.30 per
Unit. In February 2007, the Compensation Commirtee granted
$551,000 of incentives to be paid in the form of Units, under the
Plan. This amount will be recognized as compensation expense
over the two year vesting period.

In March 2006, the Compensation Committee granted $512,000
of incenrives, to be paid in the form of Units, under the Plan in
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These transactions are accounted for at their exchange amount
and are expected ro continue at similar amounts in the future.

Included in the financial statements are the following transactions
and balances as ar and for the three and twelve month periods
ended December 31, 2006 with companies controlled directly or
indirectly by the President and Chief Executive Officer, his spouse

or a fund rrustee:

Three months ended  Twelve moenths ended
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2006
($ thoutands)

Three months ended
December 31, 2005

s 1,899 § 2,047 8 7.617
1,680 1,686 6,596

2,204 1,677 5,564

380 193 713

(262) (32) 18

{234} {159 (594)

4] 42 136

1,353 1,373 1,373

1,579 885 885

relation to the Plan award for fiscal 2005. In accordance with the
Plan. 45,416 Units were purchased on behalf of Plan participants.
As at December 31, 2006, 30,277 Units are held in trust by the
Fund and have not vested to Plan participants, of which 15,139
Units will vest on March 8, 2007 and will be transferred o Plan
participants. A compensation expense is recorded over the vesting
period and, accordingly, approximately $376,000 has been record-
ed as a compensation cxpense the vear ended December 31, 2006.



SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In a press release dated January 15, 2007, the Fund announced
that it had filed with Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") and
received approval to repurchase, through the facilities of the TSX
for cancellation, up to 871,436 of its outstanding Units, repre-
senting approximately 10% of the "public float” of the Units
outstanding on January 15, 2007, calculated in accordance with
the rules of the TSX. As at the date of this MD&A, the Fund
has made no repurchases of Units under the normal course issuer
bid.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

In preparing its financial statements and accounting for the underlying
transactions and balances, the Fund has applied the accounting policies
as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of the Fund.
Preparation of the Fund’s financial statements in conformiry with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosute of contingent assets and liabilities ar the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The Fund evaluates estimates and judgments on 2n ongoing
basts including those related to the determination of reserves for the
allowance for doubtful accounts, amortization expense, and evaluation
of contingent liabilities. Estimates are based on historical experience
and various other facrors believed to be reasonable under the circum-
stances. The more significant accounting estimates are as follows:

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized upon delivery of shipments. For shipments
in transit, revenue is recorded based on the percentage of service
completed at the balance sheet date. Estimates for future billing
adjustments to revenue and accounts receivable are recognized ar
the tme of shipment for certain discounts and billing correcrions.
Delivery costs are accrued for as incurred.

Accounts Receivable Valuation

ATS Andlauer LI records a valuation allowance covering its
accounts receivable. The allowance is composed of both a provi-
sion for revenue adjustments as well as potential future bad debts.
Revenue adjustments represent revisions to rates previously
invoiced to customers. The provision for revenue adjustments is
established by Management based on both actual adjusiments and
a formula based on past rate adjustment experience as a percent-
age of gross revenue. ATS Andlauer LP also performs ongoing
credit evaluarions of its customers’ financial condition with the
objective of assessing the likelihood that accounts receivable may
not be collectible from customers due to credit risk. Portenrial
credit risk can arise through industry condittens buc it is
Management’s opinion that the risk is low. A valuation allowance
of $0.7 million was recorded at December 31, 2006.

Capital Assets and Amortization

Capiral assets of ATS Andlauer LP are recorded at acquisition cost.
Amortization is provided as follows:
Computer equipment 30% declining balance
Furniture 20% declining balance
Leaschold improvements term of the lease or 60 months

for open-end leascs
Pickup and delivery equipment 20% declining balance
Allocation of Purchase Price

The allocation of fair value of rangible and intangible assets
acquired on the acquisition of the Business and the related amor-
tization periods are dependent on judgements and assumptions
which may vary from actual results.

Stock-based compensation

The Fund has a long-term incentive plan (the “Plan”) for certain
of the exccurive officers and seaior management of the GP. The
Fund uses the fair value based mcthod of accounting for stock-
based compensation. Under the Plan, Units purchased on the
open marker on behalf of the Plan participants are recorded ar cost

as a reduction of Unitholders’ equity.
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The Fund records a compensation expense over the vesting period
based on the Unirts’ fair value at the time of granting. Where the
fair value of the Units ar the time of granting is greater than the
Fund’s cost of the Units acquired under the Plan, the difference
will be recorded as contributed surplus. Where the fair value of
the Units at the time of grant is lower than the Fund’s cost of the
Units acquired under the Plan, the difference will be recorded as a
reducrion to rerained earnings.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, $0.4 million of compen-
sation cxpense was recorded based on awards granted under the
Plan during March 2006.

Financial Instruments

ATS Andlauer LP's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and are
shown at fair value. It is Management’s opinion that ATS
Andlauer LP is not exposed to significant interest rate or currency
risks.  Financial instruments that potentially subject ATS
Andlauer LP to concentrarions of credit risk consisr principally of
accounts receivable. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —Critical
Accounting Esrimates — Accounts receivable valuation”.

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Information Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures within the Fund and the GP
are designed 10 provide reasonable assurance that appropriate and
timely decisions are made regarding public disclosure. This is
accomplished through the establishment of systems that idenrify
and communicate relevant information to persons responsible for
preparing public disclosure items, in accordance with the
Disclosure Policy adopred jointly by the Trustees of the Fund and
the Directors of the GP.
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An evaluation of the effectiveness of the Fund’s and the GP’s dis-
closure controls and procedures, as defined under the rules of the
Canadian Securities Administrators, was conducred at December
31, 2006 by management, including the Chicf Executive Officer
of the GP and the Chief Financial Officer of the GP, Based on this
evatuation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer have concluded thar the disclosure controls and proce-
dures of the Fund and the GP are effecrive.

Lasily, this MD&A was reviewed by the Disclosure Officers of the
Fund {individuals authorized 10 communicate with the public
about information concerning the Fund}, the Audir and
Governance Committee and the Board of Directors of the GP and
the Board of Trustees of the Fund, all of whom approved it prior
1o irs publication.

Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

During 2006, the Fund began its documentation and assessment
of internal controls over financial reporting, leading ro the regula-
tory certification of its annual fitings. The Fund has documented
and assessed the design of the internal controls in order to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with Canadian gencrally accepted accounting prin-
ciples. This underraking has enzbled the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer to attest that internal centrols over
financial reporting are designed 1o provide reasonable assurance
that its financial reporting is reliable and that the Fund's consoli-
dated financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepied accounting principles.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, no changes ro inter-
nal controls over financial reporting had or are reasonably likely o
materially affect internal controls over financial reporting.



RISK FACTORS
General Economic Conditions

The price of fuel, equipment, and other input costs, insurance
costs, tnterest rates, fluctuations in customers’ business cycles and
national and regional cconomic conditions are economic factors
over which the Fund has litde or no control. Demand for trans-
portation services is closely linked to the state of the overall econ-
omy. Consequently, a decline in general economic growth may
adversely impact the Fund’s performance.

Reliance on Major Customers; Contract Renewals

A significant proportion of ATS Andlauer LP’s custemers are
under contract, with most of those contracts being able to be ter-
minated on short notice. In addition, most of ATS Andlauer LP’s
customer contracts are subject to renewal annually. There can be
no assurance that current customers will continue therr relation-
ships with ATS Andlauer LP or thar contracts that come up for
rencwal will be renewed or, if they are renewed, that customers
will contract for the same volume amounts to be transported or
that they will pay the same rates and surcharges as they have in the
past.

Use of Third Party Transportation Providers

As an air freight forwarder, ATS Andlauer LI purchases air cargo
capacity from aircraft operators. Changes in the availability or
price for air cargo could have a material adverse effect on ATS
Andlauer LP’s operations and financial condition thereby reducing
cash available for distribution to unitholders. ATS Andlauer LP
routinely purchases linchaul services from truckload carriers.
Changes in the availability or price of such services could have a
material adverse effect on ATS Andlauer LP’s operations and
financial condition thereby reducing cash available for distribu-
tion to unitholders.

Dependence on Personnel

The failure ro attract and retain 2 sufficient number of qualified
drivers and owncr-operators could also have a material adverse
effect on the profitability of the ATS Andlauer LP. Any shortage
of qualified drivers andfor owner-operators may result in the
inability of ATS Andlauer LP o accept new customers or the
inability of ATS Andlauer LP to mect existing customer obliga-
tions. It would be expected to result in an escalation of compen-
sation levels for drivessfowner-operators and other hourly paid
employees, which ATS Andlauer LLP may mot be successful in off-
setting through transportation rate increases. Any of the forego-
ing could result in a material adverse affect on ATS Andlauer LP
resulting in a reduction in cash available for distribution ro

Unitholders.
Information Technology

ATS Andlauer LP has made significant investments in information
technology and relies on its information systems to support its
business model. In the event that irreparable damage was caused
to ATS Andlauer LP’s information systems and darabases or the
information contatned in its information systems was lost, ATS
Andlauer LP’s operational ability would be impaired and its abili-
ty to provide service ro its customers compromised. In such event,
ATS Andlauer LPs financial condition, results of operation, and
the amount of cash available for distribution to unitholders could
be marerially adversely affected.

For a discussion of these risks and other risks associated with an
investment in Fund Units, see “Risk Factors” detailed in the
Annual Information Form of the Fund, dated March 23, 2006
available at www.sedar.com,
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OUTLOOK

2006 yielded a solid operational perfermance for the Fund. While
revenue growth was 2% and EBITDA slightly underperformed
2003, the Fund increased its monthly distributions by approxi-
mately 20%, while maintaining an approximate 80% payout ratio.
as compared 1o distriburions made immediarely following the 1PO
in September 2005 1o its unitholders. The Fund remains conser-
vatively financed with a debt-to-equity ratio of 0.19:1 and $14.8
millien of working capital. In addition, the Fund has a $15.0 mil-
lion credir facility, of which minimal amounts had been urilized as
at December 31, 2006. This provides the Fund with a high degree
of flexibility and should allow it to meet ongoing requirements for
capital expenditures, working capiral and distributions over the
next 12 months.

The Fund expects to continue to achieve organic growth with the
existing customer base and obtain new customers due 1o its com-
petitive position in the healthcare industry, in particular its abii-
ty to offer temperature management services.

In addition, the Fund will continue to explore opportunities 1o
acquire complementary or competing businesses, within the limirs
ser by the proposed rax legislation. The Fund will be moving irs
Toronto operations to a new state of the art factlity in mid 2007,
Along with new terminals in Montreal (2005) and Vancouver
(2006}, the Fund will be poised to handle additional capacity
resulring from acquisitions and organic growth.
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DEFINITION OF EBITDA, ADJUSTED EBITDA,
DISTRIBUTABLE CASH ANI NON-GAAP MEASURES

References in this MD&A 1o0:

“EBITDA” are to net income before provision for inrerest,
income taxes, depreciation and amortization and non-controlling
interest. Management believes that in addition to net income or
loss, EBITDA is a useful suppleniental measure of cash available
for disteiburion before debe service, changes in working capiral,
maintenance capital expenditures and taxes.

“Adjusted EBITDA" are 1o EBITDA adjusted for cerrain non-
recurring items thar Management believes facilitare the compari-
son of historical periods. Non-recurring items are transactions or
events that Management believes are unusual in the context of a
publicly-traded issuer in the transporration services industry and
are not expected to reoccur wichin the foreseeable furure and
include management salaries and fees (paid to owner-managers
and related parties) and other non-recurring items.

"Distributable cash” are 1o cash available for distribution to
unitholders in accordance with the distribution policies of the
Fund described in the prospecrus, Distributable cash of the Fund
is a measure generally used by Canadian open-ended trusts as an
indicator of financial performance and Management believes that
prospective investors may consider the cash distributed by the
Fund relarive to the price of the Units when assessing an invest-
ment in Units. The Fund’s method of determining distriburable
cash is derived from EBITDA, which in wrn is derived from net
income, a measure recognized under GAAP and is also reconciled
to cash from operating activities. See “Distributable Cash and
Distributions™ for a reconciliation of Distriburable cash ro cash
from operaring activities before net changes in non-cash working
capirtal.



"Gross margin™ is a non-GAAP measure that represents the con-
tribution of operating activiries to earnings. It is considered a key
measure by Management as it reflects the ability of the Business to
generate earnings necessary to fund overhead costs, capital invest-
ment and distributions. It is calculated by deducting cost of
goods sold from revenue.

“Payout ratie” is a non-GAAP measure that represents a compar-
ison of distributions declared to distributable cash. Management
believes thar the payour ratio is an indicator of the Fund’s conser-
vatism and its ability to continue to make distributions to
unitholders ac current rates.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable cash, Gross margin
and Payout ratio are measures that are nort recognized by general-
ly accepted accounting principles in Canada ("GAAP”) and do
not have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAP. Therefore,
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Distributable Cash, Gross margin
and Payout ratio may not be comparable to similar measures pre-
sented by other issuers. Investors are cautioned that EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash should not be con-
strued as alternatives to net income or loss determined in accor-
dance with GAAP as indicators of the Fund’s performance.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relative to the Fund including the Fund’s
Annual Information Form, may be found on SEDAR ar
www.sedar.com,
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The consolidated financial statements of ATS Andlauer Income Fund and all informarion in this annual reporr are the responsibility of
management of ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc., Administrator 1o ATS Andlauer Income Fund {"Management™}, and have

been approved by the Board of Trustees.

The financial statements have been prepared by Management in conformicy with generally accepred accounting principles in Canada.
They include some amounts thar are based on Management’s besi estimates and judgement. Financial informartion included elsewhere
in the annual reporr is consistent with that in the financial statements.

Management has developed and mainuins an internal accounting system and administrative controls in order to provide reasonable
assurance thar the financial transactions are properly recorded and carried out with the necessary approval, and that the consolidated

financial statements are properly prepared and the assets properly safeguarded.

The Board of Trustees carries ourt its responsibilities for the financial statements in this annual report principally through its Audit and
Governance Commirtree {the "Committee™). The Committee reviews the Fund's annual consolidated financial statements and recom-
mends their approval to the Board of Trustees.

These financial statements have been audited by the external auditors, Deloitte and Touche LLP, whose report foliows.

Michael Andlauer
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 13, 2007
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Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Unitholders of
ATS Andlauver Income Fund

We have audited the consolidared balance sheets of ATS Andlauer Income Fund as ar December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the
consolidated statements of income, unitholders’ equity and cash flows for the periods then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform an audit to obrain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of marerial misstatement.

An audir includes examining, on 2 test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audir also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluaring
the overall financral statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund

as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the periods then ended in accerdance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Deboitd < Taudhe L2P

February 7, 2007
Chartered Accountants
Toronto, Ontario
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Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at December 31, 2006
{in thousand; of dollars)

2006 .. _.2005
ASSETS
Curmnl
Cash and cash equivalents L3 265 $ 264
Accounts receivable ’ 28,649 28,182
Prepaid expenses and deposits 4,170 1,550
33,084 29,996
Deferred financing costs 63 44
Capital assets (nate 4) 2,709 2,455
Intangible assets (noze 5) 57,950 64,070
Goodwill o e . 35,844 35,844
$ 129,650 $ 132,409
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilicies 5 13,655 14,213
Discributions payable to unitholders (Noze 10} 3,519 3,872
Distributions payable to non-controlling interest (Note 10) 874 962
18,048 19,047
Long-term debt (Note 6) 3,349 3,948
21,397 22,995
Non-control_lﬁg interest (Note 7} 23,156 23,360
44,553 46,335
EQUITY
Unitholders’ equiry 85,097 86,054

3 129,650 3 132,409

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements.

On Behalf of the Board” (\
0; Z David Matheson, Director /.//‘ A Michael Andlauer, Director
l//
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Period ended December 31, 2006
(in thousand;s of dollars, except per Unit amounts)

__ 2006 e -._2005
Revenue $ 175,678 % 51,053
Cost of 5oods sold 109,464 30,140
66,214 20,913

Expenses
Terminal 29,049 7,597
Selling 4,446 1,240
Administration 10,969 2,707
Amortization of capiral assers 524 69
Amortization of intangible assets 6,120 1,530
Interest expense, net of interest income 104 20
51,212 13,163
Income before non-controlling interest 15,002 7,750
Non-c_omrolling inrerest _ 2,985 o __1_,5%2
Net income $ 12,017 $ 6,208
Basic and diluted income per Unit (Noze 9) $ 1.293 $ 0.666
Diluted income per Unic (Nete 9) $ 1290 % 0.666

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Unitholders' Equity
Period ended December 31, 2006
{in thousands of dollars)

Conrribured
Trust Units Surplus Net Income Distributions Toral

Opening, August 22, 2005 $ - & - § -3 -5 --
Unir issue proceeds (Noze 8) 93,242 -- - - 93,242
Cosr to issue Unirs (Note 8) {7,976} - .- -- (7.976)
Net income -- - 6,208 -- 6,208
Distributions {Note 10} . -- - {5,420} (54200
Balance, December 31, 2005 $ 85,266 § - & 6,208 (5,420) % 86,054
Net income - -- 12,017 - 12,017
Distributions (Nore 10 - -- - {12,838) {12,838)
Units acquired for long-term incentive plan (512) - - -- (512)
Units vested to parricipants of long-term

incencive plan 170 - - -- 170
Long-term incentive plan expense on

unvested Units -- 206 - -- 206
Closing, December 31, 2005 $ 84924 § 206 18,225 % (18,258) § 85,097

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows
Period ended December 31, 2006
(in thousands afd.'m’bn)

NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED TO THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES 2006 2005
{(Note 3 )
Operating activities
Net income $ 12,017 $ 6,208
lrems not affecting cash
Amortization 6,685 1,603
Loss on disposal of assets 64 -
Purchase of Unirts held by Fund for long-term incentive plan (512) -
Long-term incentive plan expense 376 -
Non-controlling interest (less than) in excess of distributions paid (292) 1,158
18,338 8,969
Net change in non-cash working capiral balances (Nose 13) (3,645) 2,579
14,693 11,548
Investing activities
Business acquisition (Nete 2) .- (98,407)
Purchase of capital assets {986) (506)
Proceeds on disposal of capiral assets 144 11
] (842) (98,902)
Financing acrivities
Ner proceeds from the issuance of Units - 85,266
Proceeds from long-term debt 13,514 9,543
Repayment of long-term debt (14,113) (5.595)
Deferred financing costs (60) (48)
Distributions patd to unitholders {13,191) {1,548)
‘ - (13,850 87,618
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 264
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 264 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 265 $ 264
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 154§ 37
Interest received 91 § 21

The accompanying notes are an integral component of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2006
in thousands of dollars excepr per Unit amounts

1. THE FUND

ATS Andlaver Income Fund (the “Fund”) is an unincorporated
open-ended trust governed by the taws of the Province of Onrario
pursuant to the Declaration of Trust dated August 22, 2005. The
Fund was established to invest in the freight transportation busi-
ness, through an indirecr acquisition of the controlling inzerest of
ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership (“ATS
Andlauer LP”) and its general partner, ATS Andlauver
Transportation Services GP Inc. {the "GP"). The Fund was inac-
tive priot to completing an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of
its trust units {"Units™), and through its indirect acquisition of the
controlling interest of ATS Andlauer LP acquired cerrain net
assets of the Canadian transportation solutions business (the
“Business”) of ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc. {the
“Vendor™} on Seprember 30, 2005,

The Fund is a leading single source transpottation solurions
provider in Canada, providing integrated trucking, courier, air
freight and value added transportation and distribution services to
consumer product companies.

2. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND ACQUISITION

On Seprember 30, 2005, the Fund complered the PO of
9,324,200 Units for $10.00 per Unit, for gross proceeds of
$93,242. The cost of issuing Units was $7,976 for net proceeds
of $85,266.

On September 30, 2005, in conjuncrion with the 1PO, the Fund
used the proceeds of the offering, together with a portion of the
funds drawn under its credit facilities and the issuance of
Exchangeable Limited Partnership Units of ATS Andlauer LP, to
acquire the Business of the Vendor for an aggregate purchase price
of $121,571.

The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase methed.
The allocation of the purchase price is summarized as follows:
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Net working capital $ 18,098
Capital assets 2,029
Orther intangible assets 65,600
Goodwi]l___ L o _3_5_,§£§
$ 121,571

Consideration
Cash 5 98,407
_ _El_x_gbf~rlg_e?b!e_l_.jr_l?ite_cin]’a[tnership Uni_ts_ _({l_/a::_}_)*___23,16{§_
$ 121,571

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentasion

The consolidated financial statements of the Fund have been pre-
pared by management in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

As the Fund commenced operations on September 30, 2005 with
the purchase of the Business, comparative information for the
statements of income, unitholders’ equity and cash flows is for the
period Seprember 30, 2005 to December 31, 2005.

The significant accounting policics are summarized as follows:
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial starements include the accounts of the
Fund and its subsidiaries, ATS Andlauer Operating Trust, the GP,
and ATS Andlaver LP. All significant inter-company transactions
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenuc is recognized upon delivery of shipments. For shipments

in transit, revenue is recorded based on the percentage of service
completed at rthe balance sheer date. Estimates for future billing



adjustments to revenue and accounts receivable are recognized at
the time of shipment for certain discounts and billing corrections.
Delivery costs are accrued as incurred.

Capital assets and amortization

Capiral assers are recorded ar acquisition cost. Amortization is
provided as follows:

Computer equipment...............................30% declining balance

Furniture.....o.ooovoeeeeee verereniennss 20% declining balance
ciesrennenannterm of the lease
Pickup and delivery equipment................20% declining balance

Leaschold improvements.............

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired business
over the estimated fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired.
Goodwill is not amortized and is rtested for impairment on an
annual basis or when an evens or circumstance occurs that more
likely than not reduces the fair value of a reporting unit below its
carrying amount. Goodwtll impairmenrt is assessed based on a
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying
amount, including goodwill. When the carrying amount of a
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the fair value of the reposting
unit’s goodwill is compared to its carrying amount 1o measure the
amount of the impairment loss, if any. When the carrying amount
of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the fair value of the good-
will, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the
excess.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired that have a definite life, such as cus-
tomer relationships and proprietary technology, are capitalized
and amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimared useful
lives of ten years and six years, respectively, and are further tested
for impairment if evenrs or circumstances indicate thac the assets
might be impaired.

Intangible assets acquired thar have an indefinite useful life, such
as trademarks, are not amorrized and are tested for impairment

annually, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate
thar the asset might be impaired. The impairment test compares
the carrying amount of the intangible asset with its fair value and
an impairment loss is recognized for the excess, if any.

Imparrmens of long-lived assets

The Fund reviews its long-lived assets, such as capiral assets and
intangible assets subject to amortization, for impairment whenev-
er events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. 1€ the total of the expected undis-
counted future cash flows is less than carrying amount of an asset,
a loss, if any, is recognized to the extent thar the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asser,

Deferred financing costs

Financing costs relared ro credic facilities are capiralized and amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over the term of the credir facilities.

Long-term incentive plan
i3

The Fund has a long-term incentive plan {the “Plan”} for certain
of the exccutive officers and senior management of the GP. Under
the Plan, Units purchased on the open market on behalf of the
Plan participants are recorded at cost as a reduction of
Unictholders’ equirty.

The Fund records a compensation expense over the vesting period
based on the Units fair value art the time of granting. Whete the
fair value of the Units art the time of granting is greater than the
Fund’s cost of the Units acquired under the Plan, the difference
will be recorded as contributed surplus. Where the fair value of
the Units at the time of grant is lower than the Fund’s cost of the
Units acquired under the Plan, the difference will be recorded as a
reducrion to rerained carnings.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest represents the retained interest of the
Vendor in the Fund through its ownership of exchangeable limit-
ed partnership units in ATS Andlauer LP, a subsidiary.
Exchangeable unitholdess are entitled to carnings that are eco-
nomically equivalent to distributions of the Fund. The exchange-
able units were recorded at the value which the Fund’s Units were
issued to the public through the IPO. Exchanges of exchangeable
units are recorded at the carrying value of the exchangeable units
at issuance net of net income and distributions attributable ro par-
ticipating units to the date of the exchange.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consist of the following:

Use of estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities,
as at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting peri-
od. The more significant acconnting estimates relate to rev-
enue adjustments and the allocation of the purchase price of
the acquired business to the identifiable net assets and their
related useful lives. Management believes thac the estimates
utilized in preparing the financial statements are reasonable
and prudent; however, actual results could differ from these
estimates.

December 31, 2006

Accumulated Ner Book
Cost Amortization Value
Pickup andE:livcry equipment T T T Ts 200 s 332 s 17
Leaschold improvements 628 182 516
Furniture 594 130 464
Computer equipment | . GO 1 5O SOOI ] 1
$ 3,288 § 579 s 2,709

December 31, 2005
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Pickup and delivery equipmem T T _'—*_‘_sf"'i_,ﬁs)_ N A —3_1,_2?{
Leaschold improvements 629 28 601
Furniture 590 15 575
Computer equipment 16 1 15
$ 2,524 $ 69 3 2455
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31, 2006

Accumulated Ner Book
Cost Amaortization Value
Customer rclationships $ 56,200 3§ 7,025 $ 4975
Proprietary technology 3,000 625 2,375
Trademarks 6,400 - 6,400
$ 65600 $  7.650 3 57,950

December 31, 2005
Accumulared Net Book
L L _ a } o ~ Cest_ _ Amortization ~_ Value
Customer relationships $ 56,200 5 1,405 $ 54,795
Proprietary wechnology 3,000 125 2,875
Trademarks 6,400 - 6,400
_______ - T T T 5 65600 8 1,530 § 64,070

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Fund has a three year committed credic facility maturing
September 30, 2008 consisting of a $15,000 revolving facility to
finance general operating requirements and a $4,000 revolving
facility to finance furure leases of operational assers {collecrively,
the “Credir Facility”).
depending on certain financial ratios, berween the lender’s prime

Interest on the Credit Facility varies,

rate plus 0% and 0.75% or berween the banker's acceptance rate
plus 1.5% 2nd 2.25%. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, the
Fund is required, amongst other condirions, ro meer cerrain
covenants, with which the Fund was in compliance as ar

Drecember 31, 2006. The Credit Facility is collateralized by a gen-

eral security agreement covering all present and future assets of the
Fund and its subsidiary companies, and does not require principal
repayment until the end of the term.

As of December 31, 2006, the Fund has borrowed $3,349 under
the Credic Facility at an effective interest rate of 6.00%
(December 31, 2005 - $3,948 at 4.79%).
resulting from operational assets financed under che $4,000

Lease commitments

revolving facility are included in operating lease commiiments in
Note 15 of these financial statements,
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7. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

ATS Andlaver Transportation Services LP
Exchangeable Units
Issued on inisial public offering
Allocation of income - 2005
Distributions declared
Balance, December 31, 2005
Allocation of income

Distributions declared

Closing, December 31, 2006

Number Amount

2,316,442 $ 23,614

B 1,542

- {1,346)

2,316,442 84,925

- 2,985

o - G
2,316,442 $ 23,156

ATS Andlauer Transportation Services LP Exchangeable LP Units
("Exchangeable 1P Units”)

The Exchangeable LP Unitts issued by ATS Andlauer LP have eco-
nomic and voting rights equivalent to the Units {Note 8), except
in connection with the exchangeability terms. They are exchange-
able, directly or indircctly, on a one-for-one basis for Units at the
option of the holder, under the terms of an Exchange Agreement.
The Exchangeable LP Units are not required 1o be exchanged for
Units before transferring to third parties. As a result, they have
been treated as a non-controlling interest. Each Exchangeable LP
Unit entitles the holder to receive distributions from ATS
Andizuer LP pro rata with distributions made on Units.

8. UNITHOLDERS' EQUITY

The bencficial interests in the Fund are divided into interests of
two classes, described and designated as Units and Special Voting
Units, respectively. An unlimited number of Units and Special
Voting Units may be authorized and issued pursuant to the
Declaration of Trust.

Units

Each Unit is transferable and represents an cqual undivided bene-
ficial interest in any distributions of the Fund and in the net assets
of the Fund. All Units have equal rights and privileges. Each Unit
entitles the holder ro participare equally in all allocarions and dis-
trtbutions and to onc vote ar all meetings of unitholders for cach

whole Unir held.

Number Amount

Units issued and ourstanding
Issucd on initial public offering 9,324,200 § 93,242
_ _Issuance costs. e e e S S ¥ )
Balance, December 31, 2005 9,324,200 85.266
Units acquired by Fund for long-term incentive plan (30,277} (341}
Balance, December 31, 2006 9,293,923 $ 84,925
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In January 2007, the Fund was approved by the Toronto Stock
Exchange to make a normal course issuer bid to purchase for can-
cellation up to 871,436 Units. The program will terminate on
January 16, 2008 or such carlier time as the program is complet-
ed or terminated by the Fund.

Special Voting Units

Special Voting Units are non-participating and are used solely for
providing voting rights to persons holding Exchangeable LP
Units. Special Voting Units are not transferable separately from
Exchangeable LP Units to which they relate. Special Voting Units
will autematically be transferred upon transfer of the
Exchangeable LP Uniis to which they relate. The Special Voring
Units are not entitled to any beneficial interest in any distribution
from the Fund or in the ner assets of the Fund in che event of a
termination or winding up of the Fund. Each Special Voting Unit
entitles the holder thercof to one vote at all meerings of
Unitholders.

If the Exchangeable LP Units are purchased in accordance with
the Exchange Agreement, a fike number of Special Voting Units
will be redeemed by the Fund for a neminal amount,

There were 2,316,442 Special Voting Units issued and outstand-
ing as at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.

Long-term Incentive Plan

The Fund has adopred a long-term incentive plan (the “Plan”) to
provide executive officers and key senior management of the Fund
with compensation opportunities that will enhance the ability of
the Fund to artract, retain and mortivate key personnel and reward
these key employees for significant performance and associated per
Unit cash flow growth. Fund incentive benuses, in the form of
Unirs, will be provided to eligible employces on an annual basis
where the distributable cash flow per Unit of the Fund exceeds a
pre-determined base distribution. The base distribution is sex
annually by the Compensation Committee in accordance with
terms of the Plan. The base distribution threshold was increased
by the Compensation Committec for the year ended December
31, 2006, to $1.130 per Unit from the previously disclosed
$0.975 per Unir.

If the distriburable cash flow per Unit exceeds the pre-determined
base distribution amount, a percentage of the excess distributable
cash (the “participation ratc”), as noted below, is contributed by
the Fund into a long-term incentive pool. Units will be purchased
from contributions in the pool on the open marker on behalf of
the Plan participants and will be held by a trustee until their rights
vest (“Capitalized Units”), Distributions received on Capitalized
Units will be distributed to participants when received. Vesting of
Capiralized Units will occur on the basis of one-third of the toral
grant per year with the first portion vesting ac the rime of granti-

ng.

Threshold amounts and participation rates are as follows:

Excess Percentage
5% or less Nil
Greater than 5% and up 10 10%

Grearer than 10% and up 10 20%

Greater than 20%

Proportion of excess percentage paid 1o Plan trustee

10% of any excess over 5%
10% af any excess over 5% to 10%, plus 20% of any excess over 10%

10% of any excess over 59 to 10%, plus 20% of any excess over

10% 10 20%, plus 25% of any excess over 20%
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For the year ended December 31, 2006 the distributable cash flow
per Unit exceeded the base distributable chreshold by $0.30 per
Unit. In February 2007, the Compensation Committee granted
$551 of incentives to be paid in the form of Units, under the Plan.
This amount will be recognized as compensation expense over the
two year vesting period.

In March 2006, the Compensation Committee granted $512 of
incentives, to be paid in the form of Units under the Plan in rela-

tion to the Plan award for fiscal 2005. In accordance with the
Plan, 45,416 Units were purchased on behalf of Plan participants.
As at December 31, 2006, 30,277 Units are held in trust by the
Fund and have not vested 10 Plan participants, of which 15, 139
Units will vest on March 8, 2007 and will be transferred to Plan
participants. A compensation expense is recorded over the vesting
period and, accordingly, approximately $376 has been recorded as

a compensation expense the year ended December 31, 2006.

9. INCOME PER UNIT 2006 2005
(3 months)

Net income - basic $ 12,017 3 6,208
Non-controlling intetest 2,985 1,542
Nert income - diluted 3 15,002 7,750
Units outstanding - basic 9,293,923 9,324,200
Uniis held by Fund for long-term incentive plan 19,072 -
Exchangeable LP Unis 2,316,442 2,316,442
Uniis outstanding - diluted 11,629,437 11,640,642
Inceme per Unit - basic 3 1.293 $ 0.666
Income per Unit - diluted 3 1.290 $ 0.666

10. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions 1o unitholders are determined based on earnings,
before interest and amortization, but reduced by cerrain general
and administrative expenses and maintenance capital expendi-
tures, The Fund makes regular distributions to unitholders of
record as of the last business day of each month.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Fund declared regular

distributions toralling $10,227 (2005 - $2,303) relating to Units
and 32,541 {2005 - $571) relating to Exchangeable LP Units.
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Regular distributions of $908 (2005 - $755) in relation to Units
and $226 (2005 - $187) in relation to Exchangeable LP Units
were payable as at December 31, 2006.

The Fund declared special cash distributions roralling $2,611
{2005 - $3,117) relating vo Units and $648 (2005 - $775) relating
to Exchangeable LP Units during the year ended December 31,
2006. The special cash distributions relating to Units and
Exchangeable LP Units will be paid on March 15, 2007.



Units Exchangeable LP Unis Fotal
T T T Date biswibution T TToTTTmT T
Record Date Paid/Payable Declared Paid Declared Paid Declared  Per Unit Paid
Regular Distributions
January 31, 2006 February 15, 2006 3 755 % 755§ 187 % 187 § 942 8  0.0810 3% 942
February 28, 2006 March 15, 2006 755 755 187 187 942 0.0810 942
March 31, 2006 April 15, 2006 755 755 187 187 942 0.0810 942
April 30, 2006 May 15, 2006 869 869 216 216 1,085 0.0932 1,085
May 31, 2006 June 15, 2006 869 869 216 216 1,085 0.0932 1,085
June 30, 2006 July 15, 2006 869 869 216 216 1,085 0.0932 1,085
July 31, 2006 August 15, 2006 877 877 218 218 1,095 0.0941 1,095
August 31, 2006 September 15, 2006 877 877 218 218 1,095 0.094] 1,095
September 30, 2006 Ocuober 15, 2006 877 877 218 218 1,095 0.094] 1,095
QOcrober 31, 2006 November 15, 2006 908 908 226 226 1,134 0.0974 1,134
November 30, 2006 December 15, 2006 908 908 226 226 1,134 0.0974 1,134
December 31,2006 January 15,2007 208 - 26 N 1,134 0.0974 -
$ 10227 $ 9319 0§ 2541 § 2315 % 127688 10971 $§ 11,634
Special Disuibutions
December 29, 2005 March 15, 2007 2,611 648 - 3259  _ 0.2800 -
Total Distributions $ 12,838 $ 9319 $ 3,189 $ 2315 § 16,027 % 1.3771 $ 11,634

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties include ATS Andlauer LP’s pur-
chase of the Business of the Vendor, a company controlled by the
President and Chief Exccutive Officer of the GP. In addition, the
Exchangeable LP Units thar were issued as part of the 1PO, and
included in Note 7 of these financial statements, are held by the
Vendor.

Consistent with historical practices, during the year, the Fund
entered into transactions with related parties that were incurred in
the normal course of business at terms similar with unrelated par-

ties. These transactions are accounted for at their exchange
amount and are expected to continue at similar amounts in the
future.

Included in these financial statements are the following transac-
tions and balances as at and for the periods ended December 31,
2006 and 2005 with companies controlled directly or indirectly by
the President and Chief Executive Officer, his spouse or a Fund
trustee:
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Notes to Consolidared Financial Statemenrs

Revenue
Transportation services
Cost of goods sold
Transportation services
Contract labour scrvices
Expenses (recovery)
Equipment rent
Facility rent
Shared services
Payment Incentive
Accounts receivable

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

12. INCOME TAXES

The Fund is taxed as a *“mutual fund trust” for Canadizn income
tax purposes. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the trustees
intend to distribute or designate all taxable income carned by the
Fund ro unitholders of the Fund and to deducr such distriburions
and designations for income rax purposes. Therefore, no provision
for income taxes is required.

The Fund claims the maximum amounr of capital cost allowance,
eligible capital expenditures and other deductions available in
determining its income for tax purposes annually. This, along with
other temporary differences, results in the reported amounts of the
Fund's net assets exceeding the rax bases by approximately $34
million at December 31, 2006 (2005 - $35 mallion) .

On October 31, 2006, the Department of Finance (Canada}
announced tax proposals pertaining te the taxarion of income dis-
tributed by publicly listed income trusts and the tax treatment of
trust distributions to cheir unitholders. Currently, the Fund does
not pay tax on income it distribures to its unitholders. If enacted,
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. 2006 2005
(3 months)

h1 7.617 ] 1,899
6,596 1,680

5,564 2,204

713 3s0

18 (262}

(594) (234)

136 4]

1,373 1,353

885 1,579

the proposals would apply to the Fund effective January 1, 2011
and would cesult in Fund income being subject ro a tax at the trust
level.

In addition, if the proposals are cnacted as announced, it would
alsa resulr in the Fund accounting for future income taxes under
the asser and liability method, whereby future income tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the furure rax consequences
auributable 1o differences berween the financial statement carry-
ing amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Future income rtax assets and liabilittes are measured
using cnacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those wemporary differ-
ences are expected to be recovered or sertled. The effect on furure
income 1ax assets and lLabilities of a change in wax rates is recog-
nized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
Future income tax assets would be recorded in the consolidated
financial statements 1o the extenr that realization of such benefits
is more likely than not.



13. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL BALANCES

The net change in non-cash working capital balances related to operarions consists of the following:

. 2006 _ 2005

(3 months)

Accounts receivable 3 (467) 3 {1.264)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (2,620} 526
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (558} 3,317
5 ( 3,645) $ 2,579

14, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of long-term debt approximates its carrying value as
the long-term debr bears interest at fleating rates. The fair values
of all other financial assets and liabilities approximate cheir carry-
ing values.

The Fund has long-term floating rate debt which creates an expo-
sure ro flucruarions to interest rates.

Given the Fund’s contractual terms with its customers, it is not
exposed 1o significant currency risk or commodity risk arising

from fluctuations in fuel costs.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Fund to concen-
erations of credit risk consist principally of accounts reccivable.
The Fund performs ongoing credit evaluarions of its customers’
financial condition and, generally, requires no collateral from its
customers. Concentration of eredit risk with respect to trade
receivables is limited due to the large number of customers com-
prising the Fund’s customer base. As of December 31, 2006 and
2005, the Fund had no significant concentration of credir risk.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. COMMITMENTS
Oprraring lease commitments

Furture minimum payments for operating leases that have initial or remaining terms of one year or more consisted of the following

amounts:

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011  Thereafter
Premise leases $ 50,553 § 7.494 $ 6978 3§ 6,567 $ 6,222 $ 5991 % 17,301
Equipment leases 19,916 5,686 5,226 3,843 2,444 1.885 B32

$ 70,469 % 13,180 3 12,204 35 10,410 $ 8,606 $ 7876 % 18,133

16. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Fuad manages its operations in one business segment, which is providing integrared trucking, courier, air freight and valuc added
rransportation and distriburion services to consumer product companies. All operations are conducted in Canada.
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HEAD OFFICE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

ATS Andlauer Income Fund CIBC Mecllon Trust Company
Suite 600 P.O. Box 7010
190 Atrwell Drive Adeclaide Street Postal Station
Etobicoke, Ontario MW GHS8 Toronto, Onrario, M5C 2W9
Tel: (416} 798-1379 ext 200 Answerline ar 1-800-387-0825, (416) 643-5500
Fax: (416) 798-9230 Fax: {416} 643-5660, {416) 643-3661
Internet address: www.cibcmellon,com
UNITHOLDERS AND INVESTOR CONTACTS E-mail: inquiries@cibemellon.com
Maggie Smith

Information & Governance Officer
Tel: (902) 468-6079
Fax: (902) 468-7977

E-mail: maggiesmith@ats.ca

Brian Mascarenhas

VP Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Tel: (416) 798-1379 exx 203

Fax: (416} 798-9230

Email: bmascarenhas@ats.ca

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF UNITHOLDERS
TSX Broadcast & Conference Centre

130 King Screer West

Toronto, ON

Monday, May 7, 2007

Breakfast reception: 92:00 - 10:00 am

Meeting: 10:00 - 12:00 pm

FXCHANGE LISTINGS
The Toronto Stock Exchange: Units {ATS.UN})

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Purdy's Wharf Tower Il
1969 Upper Warer Street
Suite 1500

Halifax, NS

B3] 3R7

LAWYERS

Burner, Duckworth & Palmer LLP
1400, 350 - 7th Ave, SW

Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N9
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Trustees and Officers

TRUSTEES

David Matheson Q.C.,
Chairman of the Board of Trustees

Michael Andlauer,
Trustee, President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP

Hll‘lif (Chil{ﬂ}Nanji’ [UEH]

Trustee

Brian Luborsky, ™
Trustee

_}Ohﬂ SChi"cr, &
nmt{f
OFFICERS

Michael Andlaner,
President and Chicf Fxecutive Officer

C. Robert Brogan,
Senior Executive Vice-President

Brian Mascarenhas,

Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Michel Lunardi,
Vice-President, Eastern Operations and Sales

Terry Jessup,
Senior Vice-President, Ontario Operations and Sales

Maggic Smith, CA,

Information and Governance Officer and Corporate
Secretary
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF UNITHOLDERS

TO: THE UNITHOLDERS OF ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

TAKE NOTICE chat an Annual Meeting (the "Meeting”) of the holders {"Unithelders™) of trust units and special voring
units of ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the "Fund"} will be held in the TSX Broadcast Centre, The Exchange Tower Main
Floor, 130 King Street West, Toronto, Ontario on Monday, May 7, 20067, at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) for the following
purposes:

i, to receive and consider the consolidated financial statements of the Fund for the year ended December 31,
2006 and the zuditors’ report thereon;

2. to appoint trustees of the Fund;
3. to appoint auditors of the Fund; and
4. 1o transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment chereof.

The specific details of the matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the Infornation Circular — Proxy
Statement accompanying and forming part of this Norice.

Unitholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person are requested to date and sign the enclosed Instrument of
Proxy and to mail it to or deposit it with CIBC Mellon Trust Company, P.O. Box 721 Agincourt, Ontario, M1§ 0Al,
or for those investors wishing to return their proxics in person by delivering them to CIBC Mcllon Trust Company 320
Bay Street, Banking Hall Level, Toronto, Ontario. In order to be valid and acted upon at the Meeting, forms of proxy
must be returned to the aferesaid address not less than 48 hours before the time set for the holding of the Meeting or
any adjournment thereof,

The record date for the Meeting is the close of business on March 26, 2007 {the "Record Date"}. Unitholders of record will
be entitled to vore those trust units and special voting units included in the list of Unitholders prepared as at the Record
Darte at the Meeting. No Unitholder who becomes a Unitholder after the Record Date shall be entitled to vore at the
Meeting.

DATED art Toronto, Ontario, this 26th day of March, 2007.

BY ORDER OF THE TRUSTEES OF ATS ANDI.AUER INCOME FUND

(Signed) "David Matheson™
Chair of the Trustees
ATS Andlauer Income Fund
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
INFORMATION CIRCULAR

(Conraining informarion as at March 26, 2007 unless indicated otherwise)
PROXY SOLICITATION AND VOTING MATTERS
Soliciration of Proxies

This Informarion Circular is furnished in connection with the soliciration of proxies by the trustees (the “Trustees™) of ATS
Andlauer Income Fund (the "Fund™) for use at the annual meeting (the “Meeting”) of holders (*Unitholders”) of trust units
{"Units") and special voting units {"Special Voting Units”, and together with the Units, the "Voting Units") of the Fund
to be held in the TSX Broadeast Centre, The Exchange Tower Main Floor, 130 King Street West, Toronto, Ontario ac 10:00
a.m. (Toronto time), on Monday, May 7, 2007, or at any adjournments thereof, for the purposes sct forth in the accompa-
nying Notice of Meering.

It is expected that the solicitation of proxies for the Meeting will be primarily by mail, but proxies may be solicited person-
ally, by telephone or by other means of communication by the Trustees of the Fund and by the directors, officers and reg-
ular employees of ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc. {"ATS Andlaner GP” ar the "Administrater”), as admin-
istrator of the Fund, who will not be specifically remunerated therefor. All costs of selicitation of proxies by or an behalf of
the Trusrees will be borne by ATS Andlauer GP, as administraror of the Fund.

Appointment of Proxies

The persons named in the accompanying Form of Proxy are directors and officers of ATS Andlauer GP, the administra-
tor of the Fund. A Unitholder desiring to appoint some other person, who need not be a Unitholder, to represent that
Unitholder at the Mecting has the right to do so, cither by inserting the desired person’s name in the blank space pro-
vided in the Form of Proxy or by completing another proper Form of Proxy.

A Form of Proxy must be in writing and signed by the Unitholder or by the Unitholder's attorney duly authorized in wric-
ing or, if the Unitholder is a body corporate or association, under its seal or by an officer or attorney thereof duly author-
ized indicating the capacity under which such officer or atrorney is signing. If the Form of Proxy is executed by an attor-
ney, evidence of the attorney’s authoriry must accompany the Form of Proxy. A proxy will not be valid unless the compler-
ed Form of Proxy is received by CIBC Mellon Trust Company. PO. Box 721 Agincourt, Onzario, M1S DA1, or for those
investors wishing to return their proxies in person to CIBC Mellon Trust Company 320 Bay Streer, Banking Hall Level,
Toronto, Ontario nor less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meering, or any adjournment thereof.

Revocation of Proxies

A Unitholder who has given a Form of Proxy may revoke it by an instrument in writing that is signed and delivered to CIBC
Mellon Trust Company in the manner as described above so as to arrive at any time up to and including the last business
day preceding the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, at which the Form of Proxy is to be used, or to the chair
of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, or in any other manner provided by law. A revoca-
tion of a Form of Proxy does not affect any matter on which a vore has been taken prior to the revocation,

Voting of Proxies

The Trustee representatives designated in the enclosed Form of Proxy will vote or withhold from voting the Units in
respect of which they are appointed proxy on any ballot that may be called for in accordance with the instructions of the
Unitholder as indicated on the Form of Proxy and, if the Unitholder specifies a choice with respect 10 any matter to be
acted upon, the Units will be voted accordingly. Where no choice is specified in the Form of roxy, such Units will be
voted "for" the matters described therein and in this Information Circular, other than for the appointment of an audi-
tor and the election of Trustees,
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The enclosed Form of Proxy confers discretionary authority upon the person appointed proxy thereunder to vore wirh
respect to amendments or variations of marters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to other matters thar
may properly come before the Meeting, other than for the appointment of an auditor and the election of Trustees. In the
event that amendments or variations to matrers identified in the Notice of Meeting are properly brought before the Meeting
or any other business is properly brought before the Meeting, it is the intention of the Trustee representatives designated in
the enclosed Form of Proxy to vote in accordance with their best judgment on such matrers or business. At the time of the
printing of this Informarion Circular, the Trustees know of no such amendment, variation or other matter that may be pre-
senred 10 the Meeting.

INFORMATION FOR BENEFICIAL UNITHOLDERS

These meeting materials are being sent (o both registered and non-registered Unitholders. If you are a non-registered
Unitholder and the Fund or its agent has sent these materials directly 1o you, your name and add:ess and information abour
your holdings of securities have been obtained in accordance with applicable sccurities regulatory requirements from the
intermediary/broker holding on your behalf.

The information set forth in this section is important to all Unitholders of the Fund. Unitholders who do nor hold cheir
Units in their own name are referred 1o in this Information Circular as "Beneficial Unitheldeis”. Beneficial Unitholders
should note that only a Unitholder whose name appears on the records of the Fund as a registered holder of Units or a per-
son they appoint as a proxy can be recognized and vorte ar the Meeting, Currently, all issued and ourstanding Units are in
a book-based system administered by The Canadian Depository for Securities ("CDS"}. Consequently, all Units are current-
ly registered under the name of CDS & Co. (the registration name for CDS). CDS also acts as nominee for brokerage firms
through which Beneficial Holders hold their Units. Units held by CDS can only be voted {for or against resolutions) upon
the instructions of the Beneficial Unitholder.

Applicable regularory policy requires intermediaries/brokers to whom meeting materials have been sent to seck voring
instructions from Beneficial Unitholders in advance of Unitholders’ meetings. Every intermediary has its own mailing pro-
cedures and provides is own return instructions, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial Unitholders in order 1o
ensure that their Units are voted at the Meeting. Often. the Form of Proxy supplied to a Benefictal Unithelder by its bro-
ker is identical 1o thatr provided to registered Unitholders. However, its purpose is limited to instructing the registered
Unitholder how 10 veote on behalf of the Beneficial Unitholder. The majority of biokers now delegate responsibility for
obtaining instructions from clieats to ADP Investor Communications {("TADP"}. ADP cypically prepares 2 special voting
instruction form, mails those forms to the Beneficial Unitholders and asks for appropriate instructions respecting the vot-
ing of Units 1o be represented ar the Meeting. Beneficial Unicholders are requested ro complete and return the voting
instruction form o ADP by mail or facsimile. Alternatively, Beneficial Unitholders can call a toll-free telephone number or
access ADP's dedicated voting website {each as noted on the voting instruction form) to deliver their voring instructions
and vote the Units held by them. ADP then tabulates the results of all voting instrucrions received and provides appropri-
ate instructions respecting the voring of Units to be represented at the Meeting. A Beneficial Unitholder receiving a voting
instruction form cannot use that voting instruction form 1o vote Units directly ar the Meeting. The voting instruction form
must be returned as directed by ADP well in advance of the Meeting in order to have the Units vored. Beneficial Unitholders
who receive forms of proxies or voting materials from organizations other than ADP should complete and return such forms
of proxies or voting materials in accordance with the instructions en such materials in order to properly vote their Units at
the Meeting.

In addition, the Fund has sent meeting materials directly ro certain Beneficial Unitholders. By choosing to send these marte-
rials to you dircetly, the Fund (and nor the intermediary/broker holding on your behalf) has assumed responsibility for (i)
delivering these materials to you, and (i) executing your proper voting instrucrions, Please return your instructions as spec-
ified in the request for veting instructions,

Beneficial Unitholders cannot be recognized at the Meeting for purposes of voting their Units in person or by way of deposit-
ing a Form of Proxy. If you are a Beneficial Unitholder and wish to vote in person at the Meeting, please see the voting instruc-
ttons you reccived or contact your intermediary/broker well in advance of the Meeting ta determine how you can do so.
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Beneficial Unitholders should carefully follow the voting instructions they receive, including those on how and when vot-
ing instructions are to be provided, in order to have their Units voted at the Meeting.

FUND STRUCTURE

The Fund is an unincorporated, open-ended trust established under the laws of the Province of Onrario on August 22,
2005 by the Declaration of Trust. The Fund does not carry on an active business, but indirectly holds an 80.1% interest
in ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership ("ATS Andlauer LP7), which is a full-service transportation
solutions provider across Canada {the "Business™). ATS Andlauer LP has issued ordinary ("Ordinary LP Units™) and
Exchangeable limited partnership units {"Exchangeable LP Units™). The Ordinary LP Units are held by ATS Andlauer
Operarting Trust ("ATSOT"), all of the trust units of which are owned by the Fund. The Exchangeable 1P Units are held
by ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc. (the "Vendor"}. ATS Andlaver LP acquired the Business from the Vendor
on completion of the Fund's initial public offering on September 30, 2005.

ATS Andlauer GP is the general partner of ATS Andlauer LP and also acts as the administrator of the Fund and ATSOT
pursuant to the terms of an Administration Agreement.

The affairs of the Fund are supervised by five Trustees. The affairs of ATS Andlauer GP are supervised by its five-member
board of directors who also serve as the Fund’s Trustees.

See also, "Additional Information Respecting the Fund”.

VOTING UNITS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

There are 9,324,200 Units and 2,316,442 Special Voting Units of the Fund issued and outstanding, each of which enritles
the holder to one vore on a ballor. The Special Voring Unirs have been issued in relation 1o the Exchangeable LP Units held
by the Vendor, which are exchangeable inte 2,316,442 Units. The Special Voting Units arc automatically cancetled when
such Exchangeable LP Units are exchanged for Units.

On a show of hands, every person present and entitled 1o vote at the Meeting will be entitled te one vote. Only registered
holders of Voting Units at the close of business on March 26, 2007, the record date (the "Record Date”) for the Meeting
established by the Trustees, are entitled to vore at the Meeting.

To the knowledge of the Trustees, no person beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or controls or directs Voring Units car-
rying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities, other than:

Percentage Percentage of

Name Class and Number of Sccurities of Class Voting Units

Michael Andlauer ™ 2,316,442 Special Vouing Units 100.00% 21.45%"™

180,700 Units 1.94%

Sentry Select Capital Corp. + 1,149,400 Units 12.33% 9.87%

Notes:

n Me Andlauer, President and Chief Executive Officer of ATS Andlauer GP owns beneficially, ditealy or indireaily, or exercises
control or direction over, 100% of the outsianding shares of each of ATS Andlauer Transponation Services Inc., which owns
2,316,442 Special Voting Upits, and Andlauer Management Group Inc., which owns 180,700 Units.

{2} Based solely on reports filed by these entities pursuant to Nadonal Insirument 62-103.

3) Includes votes attached 1o Special Voting Units and Units held indirectly by Mr. Andlauer, on an aggregate basis.
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MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON AT THE MEETING

Election of Trustees

The number of Trustees to be elected ar the Meeting is determined from time ro rime by resolution of the Trustees, such
number being not more than seven and not less than three, provided thar a majority of the Trustees must be residents of
Canada. The Trustees have fixed the number of Trustees to be elected ar the Meeting ar five. In accordance with the
Declaration of Trust, for so long as the Vendor holds, directly or indirectly, in the zggregate, Voiing Units representing ar
least 10% of the issued and outstanding Voting Units, the Vendor is enritled 1o appoint one nominee. Mr. Andlauer is the
Vendor's nominee and will be reappointed as a Trustee at the Meeting in accordance with the Declaration of Trust. The term
of office of each of the present Trustees expires at the close of the Meeting. Each Trustee elected at the Meeting will hold
office for a term expiring at the close of the next annual meeting of Unitholders or until his successor is appointed, unless
his office is vacated earlier in accordance with the Declaration of Trust of the Fund.

In the following rable, for each person proposed to be nominared for election as a Trusree, is stared his name, municipality of
residence, the period or periods during which he has served as a Trustee, his principal occupation, and the number of Voring
Units beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or controlled or directed by him, as at the date hereof :

Number

Name and Period of Service as Principal Occupation and, if not Previously Elected as of Voting

Municipality of Residence 'l:r_u_st_ce_ _ . a _T!'ustec,_ Occupation D_uril:lg the Past Fivg YEII_’S i" _ _Unj_l_s i"

Michael Andlauer™ Since August 2005 President and Chiel Exccutive 2,497,142

Milon, Ontario Officer of the GP

David Matheson Since September 2005 Counsel, McMillan Binch 5.000

Taronto, Ontario Mendelsohn LLP (faw firm)

Hanif (Chiko) Nanji ™ Since September 2005 President, Metro Canada Logistics 158,200

Montreal, Quebec Inc. {a warchousing, 1ransportation management

and customized supply chain solution firm)
Brian Lubersky ™ Since September 2005  President and Chief Executive 29,900
Toronto, Ontario Officer, Premier Salons (an operator of salons

and spas)

John Schiller Since Seprember 2005  Independent Businessman 4,000

Mississauga, Onuario

Notes:

m The information as 10 municipality of residence and principal occupation, not being within the knowledge of the Fund, has
been furnished by the respective Trustees individually.

(2) Nominee of the Vendor,

(3) The information as to the number of Voting Units beneficially owned, directy or indirectly, or controlled or directed, not being
within the knowledge of the Fund, has been furnished by the respective Trusiees individually. The 2,497,142 Voting Units held
indirectly by Mr. Andlauer consist of 2,316,442 Special Yoting Units and 180,700 Units. See “Vating Units and Principal
Holders Thereol ™.

(4) Member of the Audit and Governance Committee of the Fund.

(3) Member of the Compensation Commicice of the Fund.
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Unless such authority is withheld, the Trustee representatives named in the accompanying Forin of Proxy intend to vote

for the election of the nominees whose names are set forth herein.

To the knowledge of the Trustees, except as set forth below, no proposed Trustee is, or within the ten years prior to the date
hereof, has been, a director or executive officer of any other company that, while that person was acting in thar capaciry: (i)
was the subject of a cease trade order or similar order, or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemp-
tion under Canadian securities legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; (ii} was subjecr to an event thar
resulted, after the direcror or executive officer ceased 1o be a director or executive officer. in the company being the subject
of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the relevant company access 10 any exemption under securities leg-
islation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; or (iii) or within a year of thar person ceasing to act in that capac-
ity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating ro bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or insti-
tuted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed
to hold its assets. Mr. Luborsky was an officer and a directer of Premier Salons International, Inc. ("PS1"), a Delaware cor-
poration with operations in the United Stares, when it filed a petition for bankruptcy under chapter 11 of titde 11, Uniced
States Code ("Chaprer 117) in the United States Bankruptey Courrt for the District of Delaware (the "Court”) in October
1999. He was also a director of PSI's direct parent company, GEMM Holdings. Inc. ("GEMM"}, which filed for Chapter
11 at the same time as PS1. Mr. Luborsky was the indirect owner of 85% of the common stock of GEMM. The remaining
15% of GEMM’s commen stock was owned by a second shareholder. A final decree was issued by the Court in December
2002 closing the Chaprter 11 cases of each of PS1 and GEMM. Mr. Matheson was a director and officer of Balmur
Enterrainment Limited, a privare company, until November 14, 2001. Balmur Entertainment Limited filed a notice of
intention to make a proposal to creditars ar a creditors meeting which was 1o be held on August 26, 2002 and which was
adjourned to Qctober 23, 2003, at which the creditors did nor accepr the proposal. Balmur Entertainment Limited was
deemed bankrupt on Ocrober 23, 2003.

To the knowledge of the Trustees, no proposed Trustee has, during the ten years prior 1o the dare hereof, become bankrupr,
made a proposal under any legistation relating to bankruptey or insolvency. or became subject 1o or instituted any proceed-
ings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed 1o hold assets of
the proposed Trustee.

Appointment of Auditors

At the Meering, Unitholders will be called upen to appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP. Chartered Accountants, as auditors of
the Fund, 1o hold office unti! the next annual Meeting of the Fund, at a remuneration to be fixed by the Trustees. Deloitte
& Touche LLP has acted as the auditors of the Fund since the inception of the Fund on August 22, 2005,

Unless such authority is withheld, the Trustee representatives named in the accompanying Form of Proxy intend 1o vote for
the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accounrants, as auditors of the Fund, to hold office unril the next
annual meering of the Fund, at a remuneration to be fixed by the Trustees.

The Trustees recommend that the Unitholders vote for the appointmenr of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants,
as auditors of the Fund, at a remunecration to be fixed by the Trustees.

The information required by Form 52 110F1 of Multilateral Instrument 52 110 Audit Commirtees of the Canadian
Securities Administrators in¢leding information respecting the fees billed to the Fund by Deloine & Touche LLP is con-
tained in the Fund's annual information form for the year ended December 31, 2006 under the heading "Audit Commiree
Information”.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RESPECTING THE FUND

Under applicable securities legislation, the Fund is required to provide cerrain information with sespect ro the Fund, its
Trustees and officers. The Fund, however, does nor carry on business, does not have officers and is dependent for its results
on the performance of ATS Andlauer LB ATS Andlauer GP is responsible for administering the Fund and its affairs in accor-
dance with the Administration Agreement. Consequently, in addition to the information relating to the Fund and the
Trustees, this information Circular includes information relating to ATS Andlauer GP and its direcrors and officers. See
"Additional Information™.

Administration Agreement

Under the Administration Agreement, ATS Andlauer GP has agreed to provide or arrange for the provision of services
required in the administration of the Fund (and ATSOT) including those necessary to: (a) ensure compliance by che Fund
with its continuous disclosure obligations under applicable securities legislation; (b) provide investor relarions services; (c)
provide or cause to be provided 1o Unitholders all informarion to which Unitholders are entitleid under the Declaration of
Trust; (d) convene meerings of Unitholders and distribute required meeting materials; (e} provide for the calculation of dis-
triburions to Unitholders; () attend to all administrative and other matters arising in connection with any redemptions of
Units; (g) use its best efforts to ensure compliance wirth the Fund's limitations on nen-resident ownership; (h} arrend 1o all
administeative matrets in connection with the Note Indenture under which Notes of ATSOT are issued o the Fund; and
{1} provide general accounting, bookkeeping and administrative services o the Fund.

The administration of the Fund under the Administration Agreement may be terminated ar any time by the Fund upon
notice in writing to ATS Andlauer GP and upon payment to ATS Andlauer G of all costs and expenses incurred by ATS
Andlauer GP in terminating contracts entered into by ATS Andlauer GP wich the approval of the Fund for the perform-
ance by ATS Andlauer GP of its duties under the Administration Agreement. All expenses incurred by ATS Andlauer GP
and atuributable ro the exercise of its duties in the administration of the Fund are the responsibility of ATS Andlauer GP
{and are reimbursed by ATS Andlauer LP) and no fee is payable to ATS Andlauer GP for the services provided by it to the
Fund under the Administration Agreement.

Directers of ATS Andlauer GP

Pursuant to the provisions of the Securityholders Agreement, the number of directors comprising the board of direcrors of
ATS Andlauer GP must be the same as the number of Trustees and the board of directors must consist of the same individ-
uals who are the Trustees from time to time. ATSOT is required to vote its common shares of ATS Andlauer GP 1o cause
the election of the Trustees 1o the board of directors of ATS Andlauer GP. For information regarding the individuals serv-
ing as direcrors of ATS Andlauer G, see "Matrers 1o be Acted Upon at the Meeting — Election of Trustees”. Following the
election of the Trustees at the Meeting, the individuals so elected will be appointed as directors of ATS Andlauer GP by
ATSOT.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following rable provides a summary of the compensation earned by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of ATS Andlauer GP, and each of the three most highly compensated executive officers of ATS Andlauer GB other

than the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial officer, who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most
recently completed financial year and whose salary and bonus exceeds $150,000 (the "Named Fxecutive Officers”):
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Annual Compensation_ Long Term Compensation

_ (_Awards Payouts
Securities Under Units Subject
Name and Principal Fiscal Other Annuzl  Options/SARS to Resale e All Other
Position Year Salary Bonus  Compensation' Granted Restriction:  Payour” Compensation
Michael Andlauer 2006 $400,000 200,000 - - - . .

President and Chicf

Executive Officer

Brian Mascarenhas 2006 $150,000 30,000 - - - 30,716 -
Vice-President and Chief
Financial Officer

C. Robert Brogan 2006 $200,000 22,000 - - - 34,128 -
Senior Executive Vice-

President

Marcus Pryce-Jones 2006 $i50,000 30,000 : - - 30,716 -

Vice-President, Western

Operations and Sales

Michel Lunard: 2006 $150,000 30,000 - - - 30,716 -
Vice-President, Eastern

Operations and Sales

Notes:

4] Certain Named Executive Officers received perquisites (paid memberships and company vehicle allowances) during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2006, however no Named Executive Officer received other annual compensation that, in the aggre-
gate, represenied more than $50,000 or 10% of his 1otal annual salary and bonus for the financial year.

2) In March 2006, the Compensation Commitiee of ATS Andlauer GP granted awards aggregating 351,925 under ATS Andlauer
LP’s long-term incentive plan of which one-third of ihe award vested and was paid 10 participants in April 2006 and an addi-
tional 1/3 vesting award was paid to panticipants again in March 2007. tn February 2007, another award in the amount of
$550,522 was granted to participants under the long-term incentive plan of which one-third of the award vested in March
2007. Sec “LTIP Awards, Options and SARs, and Defined Bencfit or Actuarial Plans”.

Compensation of Trustees and Directors

The Board of Trustees of the Fund and the Board of Directors of ATS Andlauer GP bave each formed a Compensation
Committee thart is responsible for establishing and reviewing, at least annually, the compensation paid 1o Trusiees and direc-
tors, in each casc in accordance with their respective mandares.

Compensation for Trustees and directors of ATS Andlauer GP is currently set at $25,000 per Trustee or director per year
{without duplication) and $1,000 per Trustee or director of ATS Andlauer GP for attending meetings of the Trustees or the
boatd of directors of ATS Andlauer GP, as the case may be, provided that no compensation is paid (o the nomince of the
Vendor for serving as a director of ATS Andlauer GP or attending board or commitree meetings. The chair of the Trustees
and the chairs of cach commirtee of the Trustees or (without duplication of fees) commirtees of the board of directors receive
an additional $5,000 per year in respect of chair duries. The Fund and ATS Andlauer GP also reimburse Trusrees and direc-
tors for out-of-pocket expenses for attending meetings, During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, an aggregate
amount of $11,986 was reimbursed to Trustees and direcrors for out-of-pocket expenses. No directors’ compensation is paid
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to Trustees who are employees or members of management of ATS Andlauer GP or ATS Andlauer LI No additional com-
pensation is paid to Trustees for also serving as trustees of ATSOT. The aggregate amount earned by the Trustees and direc-
tors of ATS Andlauer GP as compensation, in their capacity as such, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 was
$ 159,000.

LTIP Awards, Options and SARs, and Defined Benefit or Actuarial Plans

The Fund and its underlying entities do not grant oprions or share appreciation rights ("SARs"), and de not have a defined
benefic or actuarial plan.

ATS Andlauer LD has established a long-term incentive plan ("LT1P") in which executive officers and other key senior man-
agement of ATS Andlaver GP and ATS Andlauer LP and the directors, officers and management of their affiliates are eligi-
ble to participate. The purpose of the LT1P is to provide eligible participants with compensation opportunities that will
encourage ownership of Units, enhance ATS Andlauer LP’s ability to atract, retain and motivare key personnel, and reward
key senior management for significant performance and associated per Unir cash flow growth of the Fund. Pursuant to the
LTIP, ATS Andlauer LP will set aside a pool of funds based upon the amount by which the Fund’s per Unit distributions
exceed certain per Unit distriburtable cash threshold amounts. Unirs will then be purchased in the market with such pool of
funds and will be held until such time as ownership vests to each participant. The Compensation Commirtee of ATS
Andlauer GP {the "Compensation Committee”) administers the LTIP. The board of directors of ATS Andlaser GP or the
Compensation Commirttee has the power to, among other things, determine (i) those individuals who will participate in the
LTIP, {ii} the level of participation of ezch participant and (iti) the time or times when ownership of the Units will vest for
each participant.

The LTIP currently provides for awards that may be earned based on the amount by which distributable cash exceeds 2 base
distriburion threshold for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 of $1.130 per Unir, which threshold was increased by
the Compensation Commitree in February 2007 from the previous threshold of $0.975. The percentage amounr of that
excess which forms the LTIP incentive pool is determined in accordance with the table below:

Excess percentage Proportion of excess percentage paid to Plan Trustee™
5% os less Nil
Greater than 5% and up 10 10% 10% of any excess over 5%

Greater than 10% and up to 20% 10% of any cxcess over 3% o 10%, plus 20% of any excess over 10%
P } P ¥

Grearer than 20% 10% of any excess over 5% 1o 10%, plus 20% of any excess over 10% 10 20%, plus
25% of any excess over 20%

The base distribution threshold is subject to adjustment by the Compensation Committee from time to rime. The board of
directors of ATS Andlauer GP or the Compensation Committee may also in the future establish other incentive based com-
pensation plans.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, the distributable cash flow per unit exceeded the increased base distribution
level by $0.302 per Unix, resulting in an available LTIP incentive pool of $550,552. In February 2007, the Compensation
Commirree granted awards under the LTIP in respect of the full amount of the $350,552 incentive pool. The Units pur-
chased with these funds will vest in the participants as to one-third on each of the dare of grant and the first and second
anniversaries of the date of grant.
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Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts

All of the Named Executive Officers are patties to employment agreements with ATS Andlaner GB which outline the terms
and condirions of their employment. Each contract stipulates a base salary thar is consistent with the amount presented, in
each case, in the summary compensation table provided previousty on page 10. The contracts also provide thar the Named
Executive Officers are entitled to participate in any long-term incentive plan {(including the LTIP) from time to time and
to receive annual discretionary bonuses.

All employment agreements, except Mr. Lunardi’s, are for an indefinite term bur may be terminated by ATS Andlauer GP
at any rime for just cause, or without cause on payment of an amount equal to one times the average annual remuneration
{(including salary, bonus, LTIP and benefits} earned during the twelve months preceding the termination date. Mr. Lunardi’s
agreement is for an indefinite term but may be terminated by ATS Andlauer GP at any time for just cause, or withour cause
on payment of an amount equal to two times his average annual remuneradion (including salary, bonus, LTIP and benefits}
carned during the twelve months preceding the termination date. No employment agreement with 2 Named Executive
Officer provides for a payment to the Named Execurive Officer upon the occurrence of a change of control of the Fund or
any of its subsidiaries.

Trustees', Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Fund, ATSOT, ATS Andlauer GP and ATS Andlauer LP maintain policies of insurance for their trustees, directors and
officers, as applicable. The aggregate limir of liabiliry applicable to the insured trustees, directors and officers under the poli-
cies is $15 million. The policy includes securities claims coverage, insuring against any legal obligation 1o pay on account
of anv sccurittes claims brought against the Fund and its subsidiaries. The total limit of lability is shared among the insured
entities and their respective trustees, directors and officers so that the limir of liability is not exclusive to any onc of the
entities or their respective rrustees, directors and officers. The premium in the rwelve month period ended December 31,
2006 was $146,628. The premiums for the policy are not allocated between the insured trustees. directors and officers as
separate groups.

Composition of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee of ATS Andlauer GP has the responsibility to review and make recommendations ro the
board of directors concerning the compensation of the executive officers of ATS Andlauer GP. The Compensation
Commirttee is comprised of two members: Hanif (Chiko} Nanji {Chair), and John Schiller. No member of the
Compensation Committee is an officer, employee or former officer or employee of the Fund or any of its subsidiaries.

Report on Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee's executive compensation philosophy is guided by its objective to obtain and retain execu-
tives critical 1o the success of ATS Andlauer LP.

The compensation of the Named Execurive Officers consists of three principal elements: salary, bonus and LTIP awards.
Base salaries are paid to the Named Executive Officers in accordance with each of their employment agreements described
under "Executive Compensation - Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Conrtracts”™,
The salaries provided for in the employment agreements were determined based on, among other things, individual per-
formance and responsibilitics, compensation paid to executives of other organizations of similay size and complexity, and,
in certain cases, the salary paid to such persons by ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc. prior to the indirect acquisi-
tion by the Fund of the Business.

In zddition, each Named Exccutive Officer, excluding Mr. Andlauer, is entitled to parricipate in the LTIP and receives a
cash bonus of up to a specified percentage of his base salary based upon achievement of certain objectives including bur not

limited to meeting budgeted operational rargets.
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On the recommendation of management the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors of ATS Andlauer G
increased the base distribution threshold under the Plan from $0.975 per Unit to $1.130 per Unit. As a result, for the
twelve month period ended December 31, 2006, under the LFIP the distriburable cash flow per unit exceeded the increased
base distribution by $0.302 per Unirt, and in February 2007, the Compensation Committee granted awards under the Plan
in respect of the $550,552 incentive pool. The Units purchased with these funds wili vest in the participants as to one-
third on each of the date of grant and the first and second anniversaries of the date of grant.

The compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Andlauer, is comprised of a base salary, and a bonus of up ro a max-
imum of fifty percent of base salary rhat is dependent on the achievement of certain objectives determined by the
Compensation Commirtee. Mr. Andlauer does not participare in the LTIP. The base salary for Mr. Andlauer was deter-
mined by the Compensation Committee, based on its assessment of the business and Mr. Andlauer’s individual contribu-
tion, in light of rates paid to principal exccutives employed by entities operating in the industry. Messrs Nanji and Schiller,
as members of the Compensation Committee, drew on their significant experience in the logistics and freight transporta-
tion industries to determine useful competitive standards against which Mr. Andlauer’s salary could be assessed. Mr.
Andlauer’s base salary did not increase during fiscal 2006, but he did earn a bonus in the amount of $200,000, compared
to no bonus paid during the three months ended December 31, 2005. The bonus paid to Mr. Andlauer reflects the deter-
mination by the Compensation Commirtee and the Board that he was successful in mecting certain goals established for
him during the period.

Submitred by:
Hanif {Chiko)} Nanji (Chair)
John Schiller

Performance Graph

The following chart compares the cumulative rotal unitholder return, including the reinvestmenr of distriburions, fram
September 30, 2005, the date upon which the Fund completed its initial public offering and the Units were first listed on
the TSX, for $100 invested in the Units of the Fund with the cumulative total return from the S&PFTSX Canadian Income
Trust Index (Total Reruen) and the S&P/TSX Composite Index:
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SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER UNIT COMPENSATION PLANS
The Fund does not have any compensation plans under which Units of the Fund are authorized for issuance.
INDEBTEDNESS OF TRUSTEES, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Aggregate Indebtedness

There is no indebredness outstanding on the date hereof owed to (i) the Fund and any of its snbsidiaries, or {ii} another
entity where that indebtedness s the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement
or understanding provided by the Fund or any of its subsidiaries, by any present or former trustees, directors, executive offi-
cers and employees, as applicable, of the Fund and its subsidiaries in connection with (i} the pucchase of securities, or (i)
all other indebtedness, other than rourine indebredness.

Indebtedness of Trustees, Directors and Executive Officers under Securirties Purchase and Other Programs

Since the commencement of the Fund’s most recently completed financial year, there has been 1o indebtedness outstand-
ing owed 10 (i) the Fund or any of its subsidiaries, or {ii) another entity where such indebredness is or has been the subject
of a guarantee, support agreement, Jetrer of credit ot other similar arrangement or understanding, provided by the Fund or
any of its subsidiaries, other than rourine indebtedness, by any individual whe is, or at any time during the Fund's most
recently completed financial year was, a Trustee, director or executive officer, as applicable, of the Fund or ATS Andlauer
GP, each proposed nominee for election as a Trustee of the Fund or a director of ATS Andlauer GI and each associate of
any such Trustee, director, executive officer or proposed Trustee or director.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Other than as ser forth below and elsewhere in this Information Circular, no informed person of the Fund, nor any pro-
posed Trustee, nor any associate or affiliate of any informed person or proposed Trustee, has any material interest, direct or
indirect, in any transaction since the commencement of the Fund's most recently completed fiscal year or in any proposed
transaction which has mazerially affected or would materially affect the Fund or any of its subsidiaries,

I ATS Andlaver LP provides rransportation services to Concord Transportation Inc. ("Concord™), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Vendor, and reccives transpertation services from Concord.

2. ATS Andlauer LP provides office and warehouse space as well as certain administration services ro Concord.

3. ATS Andlauer provides transportation services to Logisti-Solve Inc. {"Logisti-Solve”}. a company controlled by Mr.
Andlauer.

4. ATS Andlauer provides warehouse space ro Logisti-Solve.

5. ATS Andlauer receives temporary labour services from Ready Staffing Solutions Inc. ("Ready Staffing"}, a

company controlled by Mr. Andlauer’s spouse.

6. ATS Andlauer leases its Montréal terminal facilities from 9143-5271 Québec Inc., a company conrrolled by Mr.
Andlauer.

7. ATS Andtauer rents equipment from Andlauer Leasing Inc. ("AL1"), a company controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

8. ATS Andlauer provides transportation services to Spectrum Supply Chain Solutions Inc., a company for which a

trustee of the Fund serves as a director and has significant influence.
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2. ATS Andlauver leases its Hamilton and Napanee terminal facilities from Andlauer Properties Inc., a company con-
trolled by Mr. Andlauer.

For additional information on the foregoing, sec “Interests of Management and Others in Marerial Transactions” in the
annual information form of the Fund which, together with copies of the agreemenis, may be viewed on the SEDAR web-
site ar www.sedar.com.

STATEMENT OF GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate governance relates to the activities of the trustees (the “Trustees”) of the Fund who are elected by and are
accountable to the Unitholders, and the board of directors of ATS Andlauer GP (the "Board™), whose members are elecied
by ATSOT, and takes inte accounr the role of the individual members of management of ATS Andlauer GP
{(“Management”) who are appointed by the Board and who are charged with the day to day management of the Fund and
its subsidiaries. The Trustees and the Board are committed to sound corporate governance practices, which are beth in the
interest of Unitholders and contribute o effective and efficient decision making. National Policy 58-201 Corporate
Governance Guidelines (the "Guidelines”) establishes corporare governance guidelines for all public companies. Because of
the Fund's structure, its approach to the Guidelines is best addressed jointly by the Trustees and the Board. The Fund is a
trust created to hold, directly or indirectly, the securities of ATS Andlauer LP and does not conduct any active business.
The active business of ATS Andlauer LP is managed by ATS Andlauer GP, as general partner of ATS Andlauer LP. The busi-
ness of ATS Andlauer GP is overseen by the Board and its committees. The committees report and recommend actions to
the Board and, as needed, 1o the Trustees. The Trustees are also members of the Board, facilitaring reporting and informa-
tion exchange.

The Fund has developed corporate governance practices in response to the Guidelines and Navioaal Instrument 58-101
Disclosute of Carposate Governance Practices ("N1 58-1017), which mandases disclosure of corpurate governance practices
in Form 58-101F1, which disclosure is described below.

Structure of the Trustees and the Board

There are currently five (5) Trustees, being Michael Andlauer, Brian Luborsky, David Macheson, Hanif {Chiko} Nanji, and
John Schiller. The Trustees also serve as the trustees of ATSOT and as members of the Board.

Michael Andlauer

Mr. Andlauer has 18 years of experience in the Canadian transportation industry. He founded ATS Andlauer in 1991 and
has served as its Chief Executive Officer since that time. He founded Associated Logistics Solurtons Inc., a third party logis-
tics provider, in 1995, Logisti-Solve Inc., a third party logistics provider, in 2000, and he co-founded Spectrum Supply
Chain Solutions Inc., a warchousing and supply chain management company, in 2002. Mr. Andlauer also serves as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of AMG, a company he founded in 1994 ro manage and operate relared logistics and
transportation companies (including ATS Andlauver) operating throughout North America. Mr. Andlauer is also the major-
ity owner of the American Hockey League’s Hamilion Bulldogs.

Brian Luborsky

Mr. Luborsky is the Presidenr and Chief Executive Officer of Premier Salons, a private company thar he founded in 1984.
Premier Salons operates 375 salons and spas throughour Canada and the United States. Mr. Luborsky has more than 20
years experience in finance and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Toronto and received a
Chartered Accountant designation in 1982 while working at Coopers 8 Lybrand. Mr. Luborsky also, currently sits on the
Board of Trustees of General Donlee Income Trust.
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David Matheson, Q.C. (Chair)

Mr. Matheson, Q.C., has over 15 years of experience as a director in the Canadian transportation indusery, He has been a
partner and a counsel of the Toronto law firm of McMillan Binch Mendelsohn LLP for over 25 years and advises national
and international clients on various corporate and governance marters. Mr. Matheson has served as a member of numerous
audit committees and corporate governance committees and over the course of his career has acquired competence in the
review of financial statements of major public companies and a familiarity with internal controls and financial reporring
procedures. Mr. Martheson presently serves as the Chair of the Audit Commirtee of Clarke Inc. and the Chair of the Audit
and Governance Committees of both Newfoundland Capital Corporation Limired and Tonbridge Power Inc. He holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree with a major in accounting from Dathousie University and a Bachelor of Law degree from
Dalhouste Law School.

Hanif (Chiko) Nanji

Mr. Nanji has been the President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Metro Canada Logistics Inc., a private third-
party provider of warehousing, transportation managemenr and customized supply chain solutions since 1988, He is also
the Chairman of LDC Logistics Development Corporation, a privare real estate development company, the Vice-Chairman
and director of Dairy Products in Motion Inc., a private dairy logistics company, and the Vice-Chairman and a director of
Specirum Supply Chain Solutions Inc., a private supply chain management company. Mr. Nanji has a strong business back-
ground having over 20 years experience in the Canadian logistics industry serving in executive positions overseeing large
operating corporations.,

John Schiller

Mr. Schiller has over 25 years of experience in the Canadian transportation industry. He retired in 2004 from his position
as President of Kingsway Transport, an LTL, TL and specialized wransport company, a position he held since 2002. Prior
therero, he served as the Chief Operating Officer of Maritime-Onrario Freight Lines Limited, a private LTL carrier compa-
nv, from 2000 10 2002, Prior thereto, he served as the Chief Execurtive Officer of Day & Ross Inc., one of the largest trans-
portation firms in Canada, from 1992 to 2000.

The Guidelines suggest that the board of directors of every listed company should be constituted with a majority of indi-
viduals who qualify as "independent” directors under NI 58-101. A director is independent if he or she has no direct or
indirect "marerial relationship” with the reporring issuer. "Material relationship” is a relationship which could, in the view
of the reporting issuer’s board of directors, be reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of a member’s independent
judgment. The Guidelines apply ro both corporate and non-corporate entities. Reference 1o a particular corporarte charac-
teristic. such as a board of directors, includes any equivalent characreristic of a non-corporate entity. The independence of
Trustees is determined based on the results of an independence questionnaire that is complered by each Trustee. The ques-
tionnaire is intended 1o elicit certain information about each of the Trustees relating to the criceria of independence with-
in the meaning of the definition conrained in NI 58-101. The questionnaire is distributed annually by Management, and
a summary report of the results is presented 1o the Trustees. Based on the resules a determination of the independence of
each of its members is made by the Trustees as a group. Of the proposed nominees as Trustees, one (1), being Michael
Andlaver, President and Chief Executive Officer of ATS Andlauer GP and President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Vendor, is not considered "independent™ within the meaning of N1 58-101. The remaining four nominees, comprising a
majority of the Trustees and direcrors, are independent.

Under the terms of the Fund’s Declaration of Trust, the Vendor will have the right to elect one trustee {"Vendor Nominee”)
so long as the Vendor holds, directly or indirectly, Units or LP Units representing {on a diluted basis) not less than 10% of
the outstanding Units. The Vendor Nominee is Michael Andlauer.  The Chair of the Trustees, Mr. Matheson, is an inde-
pendent trustee and has served in this capacity since the Fund's inception on September 30, 2005. 1n his capacity as Chair,
Mr. Matheson leads the activities of the Trustees, facilitates communications between management and the Trustees and
speaks or acts on behalf of the Trustees, all in accordance with the terms of the Trustees’ mandarte and the Chair’s written
position description.
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The following Trustees, proposed for election at this Meeting, are directors or wrustees of other reporting issuers as follows:

Trustee Additional Memberships Additional Committee Exchange
Michacl Andlauer Clarke Inc. Audit Committee TSX
Brian Luborsky General Donlee Income Fund Audit Commiuce TSX

John Schiller - - -

David Matheson Clarke Inc. Audn Committee TSX
Newfoundland Capital Corporation Limiwed - TSX
Tonbridge Power Inc. TSX

Hanif {Chiko) Nanji - - -

The Board holds regular meerings to review, among other things, the business and affairs of ATS Andlauer LP and 1o make
decisions relating thereto. The Board, in conjunction with Management, participates in the stratepic planning process, iden-
tifies the principal risks of the business and seeks to implement appropriate systems to manage these risks, as well as seek-
ing to ensure the integrity of the disclosure controls and management information systems of ATS Andlauer LI,

The Trustees meer at least quarterly to review, among other things, the performance of the Fund and 1o approve regular cash
distributions to unitholders. Financial results are compared and measured against a previously established plan and perform-
ance in prior years and estimates of cash flow are analyzed to determine the appropriateness ot discributions. The Board
holds meeting each year to review and assess financial budgets and business plans for the ensuing year and overall strategic
objectives. This process establishes, among other things, benchmarks against which the Board may measure the perform-
ance of Management. Other meetings of the Trustees and the Board are called 1o deal with special matters as circumstances
require.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 a total of nine (9) Trustee meetings were held with all members in atten-
dance. A session of independent Trustees and a sesston without Management present are conducted at every scheduled meet-
ing of the Trustees. In additien, during the year a total of ten (10} Audit and Governance Commiuree of the Fund meet-
ings were held with all members in attendance. A session with the Fund’s auditors, Deloitte and Touche LLP withour
Management present is conducied at every meeting as well as a session with Management without the auditors present. The
Compensation Committee of the Fund held five (5) meetings during the year end with all members in auendance. The
Trustees are satisfied that their number and composition and their standing committees are well suited 1o the circumstances
of the Fund and allow for the efficient funcrioning as an independent decision-making body. The Trustees have approved
Governance Guidelines which establishes that all Trustees are required to artend all Trusree and commirree meetings in per-
son. The Governance Guidelines to permit, on an infrequent basis, for Trustees o participate in mectings by conference
call if necessary. A record of attendance of meetings for each trustee for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 is as fol-

lows:
RECORD OF ATTENDANCE BY TRUSTEES
o Number of meetings attended

Trustee e ... Trusees . . Gommiteges
Michael Andlauer® 90f9 120f12
David Matheson 9of 9 10 of 10
Hanif (Chiko) Nanji 9 of9 15 of 15
Brian Luborsky 90f9 10 of 10
John Schiller 90f9 14 of 15

Note:

{n Michae! Andlauer, President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP, atrended 10 Audit and Governance Commitiee meetings

and 2 Compensation Committee meetings held during the year in the capacity of Management and not as a commitee mem

ber. Mr. Andlauer does not sit on any of the Fund’s committees.
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(2) Johr Schiller, Trustee of the Fund, was invited and auended nine {9) Audit and Gevernance Committee mectings during the year,

LIST OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Brian Luborsky, Committee Chair

David Matheson

Hanif (Chiko} Nanji

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Hanif (Chiko) Nanji, Committee Chair
John Schiller

During the twelve month period ended December 31, 2006 a toral of nine {9} Board meetings were held with all members
in attendance. A session of independent directors of the Board and a session withour Management present are conducted at
every scheduled meeting of the Board. In addirion, during the year a total of ten (10) Audit and Governance Committee
of the Board meetings were held with all members in attendance. A session with the Board’s auditors, Deloitte and Touche
LLD, without Management present is conducted ar every meeting as well as a session with Management without the audi-
tors present. The Compensation Committee of the Board held five (5) meerings during the year end with all members in
attendance. Directors of the Board are satisfied that their number and composition and their standing commirttees are well
suited o the circumsiances of the Board and allow for the efficient funcrioning as an independent decision-making body.
A record of attendance of meetings for each director of the Board for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE BY DIRECTORS
Number of mectings atiended

Director ) Directors Commitrees
Michael Andlaver” 90of9 12 of 12
David Matheson 90of 9 16 of 10
Hanif (Chiko) Nanj 9 of 9 15 of 15
Brizn Luborsky 9of 9 10 of 10
John Schitler 90of 9 14 of 15

Note:

1) Michael Andlauer, President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP, attended 10 Audit and Governance Committee meetings
and two (2) Compensation Committee meetings held during the year in the capacity of Management and not as a commiuee
member, Mr. Andlauer does not sit on any of the Board’s committees.

{2) John Schiller, Director of the Board of the GP. was invited and aitended nine (9) Audit and Governance Committce mectings

during the year.

LIST OF BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Brian Luborsky, Committee Chair

Manif (Chiko) Nanji

David Matheson

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Hanif (Chiko} Nanji, Committee Chair
Jobn Schiller
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Mandates and Responsibilities of the Trustees and the Board

Pursuant ro the Fund's Declaration of Trust, the Trustees are responsible for supervising the acrivities and managing the
investments and affairs of the Fund. ATS Andlauer GP manages the business and affairs of ATS Andlauer LP and the Board
ts responsible for managing the business and affairs of ATS Andlauer GP. The Trustees and the Board have expressly con-
firmed their commitment to the principles set out in the Mandate of the Trustees {the " Trustees Mandare™) and the Mandate
of the Board {the "Board Mandatc™), respecrively. The Board has accepted and confirmed its recponsibility for overseeing
manzgement’s performance in the areas of strategic planning process, identification of the principal risks of the business and
the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks, as well as ensuring the integrity of the internal controls
and management information systems of ATS Andlauer LP. The Fund’s affairs are administered by ATS Andlauer GP, as
administrator of the Fund. The Board Mandate and the Mandate of the Trustees are provided in Schedule "A™ and are
reviewed annually for appropriateness by the Board and Trustees respecrively.

In carrying out its Board Mandate, the Board relies on management to provide it with regular reports on the operations of
ATS Andlaver LP and its financial position. The Board reviews and assesses these reports and other information provided
to it at meetings of the Board and its committees. Although the Board has delegated responsibility for the day-to-day man-
agement to the officers of ATS Andlauer Transportation GP, there are certain significant decision: that require the approval
of the Board before implemenration. These include decisions with respect to major capital expenditures, the appointment
of and compensation of officers of the GP, the adoption and amendment of incentive plans, unit issues and repurchases,
financing arrangements and material acquisitions. Certain decisions that invelve the Fund including unit issues and repur-
chases, certain financing arrangements and certain material acquisitions would also require the approval of the Trustees.
Significant disclosure documents are also subject to Board and Trustee review and approval, including annual and interim
financial statements. Finally, the Board is responsible for the implementation of a communication policy for the Fund, and
for the integrity of internal control, management information and public disclosure systems. The Trustees and the Board
have jointly adopted a disclosure, confidentiality and trading policy {the *Disclosure Policy™) that outlines the procedures
for communicating with the public, including analysts and unitholders. The Disclosure Policy, among other things, desig-
nates spokespersons for the Fund and prohibits and provides guidance in the area of selective disclosure and is reviewed
annually for appropriateness by the Trustees and the Board.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Trustees and the Board have developed written position descriptions, which are reviewed annually for appropriateness,
for each of the following positions: (i} the Chair of the Trustees: (ii} the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee
{Fund); (iii) the Chair of the Compensation Committee (Fund), (iv) the Chair of the Board; (v) the Chair of the Audit and
Governance Committee (GP) and (vi) the Chair of the Compensation Committee (GP). In addition, the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer have developed a writien position description for the Chief Execurive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer.

The Trusices and the Board each have two (2) standing committees: an Audit and Governance Committee and a
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of each of the committees which specify the responsibilities of each, have
been developed in conjunction with the assistance of ousside legal counsel and approved by che Trustees and the Board, as
applicable.

The Audit and Governance Committee of the Fund is comprised of Messes Luborsky (Chair), Matheson and Nanji, all of
whom are independent. The Commirtee with the administracive assistance of ATS Andlauer GP reviews the Fuad’s annual
audired financial statements, the financial content of the Fund’s annual report, unaudited quarterly financial statements
reviewed by the external auditors of the Fund, the financial content of the Fund’s annual and interim management’s discus-
sion and analysis reports, material financial press releases and any other material financial information to be publicly
released by the Fund for approval by the Trusices. The Committee also with the administrative assistance of ATS Andlauer
GP reviews and recommends to the Trustees the public disclosure requirements, standards and practices of the Fund; fol-
lows up on major findings of financial audirs; has direct access to the Fund’s external auditors to review specific issues as
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appropriate and monitors the performance and independence of the external auditors of the Fund.

The Charrer of the Audit and Governance Committee and other information relaring to the Committee required by Form
52 -110F1 can be found in the Annual Information Form of the Fund under the heading “Audit and Governance
Commtrttee”. In addition, the Commictee is responsible for developing the Fund's approach to corporate governance mat-
ters. The Committee’s mandate also includes the responsibility to assess and recommend any changes necessary to improve
trustee effecriveness.

The Audit and Governance Commitree of the Board of ATS Andlauer GP is responsible for overseeing financial reporting
matrers for the Board, and the Board is responsible for overseeing’ management’s performance in respect of the financial
reporting of the operations ATS Andlauer LP; for monitoring management’s provision of administrative services and advice
to the Fund in respect of the Fund's investment in ATS Andlauer LP, including general and investment administrative mar-
ters on behalf of the Trustees, compliance with continuous disclosure obligarions, general accounting and bookkeeping serv-
ices, preparation of financial statements and the provision of investor relations services. The Audit and Governance
Commitcee of the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities reviews ATS Andlauer LP’s financial statements, and any other
matenial financial informartion to be provided to its investors for approval by the Board.

The Compensation Committee of the Fund is comprised of Messrs Nanji {Chair) and Schiller, both of whom are independ-
ent. The Compensation Committee’s responsibilities include the review of the compensation of Trustees. In addition, the
Commitree will be respansible for reviewing and/or approving any other matters specifically delegated to the Commirtee by
the Trustees, and has undertaken on behalf of the Trustees to do such other compensarion initiatives as may be necessary or
desitable ro enable the Trustees ro contribute ro the success of the Fund.

ATS Andlauver GP also has a Compensation Commitree of independent directors which, among other things, reviews the
compensarion of the president and chief executive officer and other senior officers of ATS Andlauer GP and makes recom-
mendations on their compensation and benefits, and on director compensation to the Board, assists the Board in oversee-
ing management’s administrarive responsibilities in respect of any such compensation matters and the disclosure thereof o
the Fund, and has undertaker on behalf of its Board ro do such other compensatien initiatives as may be necessary or desis-
able to enable the Board to contribute to the success of ATS Andlauer Inc. and to the investmenr in ATS Andlauer LP by
the Fund and ASTOT. The Compensation Committec of the Board is also responsible for developing corporate goals and
objecrives for the chief executive officer and assesses the chief executive officer against these objectives on an annual basis.
A formal report to the Board is presenred.

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Fund and ATS Andlaver GP have cach adapted an Orientation and Conrtinuing Educartion Policy {the "Trustce and
Board Orientation and Continuing Education Policies”) that governs the procedures that will be used 1o orient fature
Trustees and Board members. Pursuant ro the terms of the Trustee Orienration and Continuing Education Policy, each new
Trustee will be provided with a copy of the Trusrees Mandate, and will meet telephonically or in person with each of the
Chair of the Trustees, the Chair of the Audit and Governance Commirtee (Fund) and the Chair of the Compensation
Commirttee (Fund) to discuss the rale of the Trustees and their committees. In addition, each new Trustee will be present-
ed with a package conraining all public filings made by the Fund during the preceding 24 months, and will meet in peeson
1o review the investment policies of the Fund with the Chair of the Trustees. Also pursuant to the terms of the Board
Ortentation and Consinuing Education Policy, each new Board member will be provided with a copy of the Board Mandare,
and will meer telephonically or in persan with cach of the Chair of the Board, the Chair of the Audir and Governance
Committee (GP) and the Chair of the Compensation Committee (GP) 1o discuss the role of the Board members and their
committees. 1n addition. each new Board member will be presented with a package containing all public filings made by
the Fund during the preceding 24 months, and will meer in person to discuss the nature and operation of ATS Andlauer
LP's business with each of the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Vice President and Chicf Financial Officer of
the Administrator of the Fund.
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Each new Trustee and Board member will also be given the opportunity upon request to retain independent legal counsel, at
the Fund’s expense, to advise him or her with respect to the issues raised by his or her trusteeship and board membership.

The Audit and Governance Committee of the Fund has been delegared the responsibility of maintaining a continuing educa-
tion program for Trustees, pursuant to the Trustee Orientation and Continuing Education Policy. The Audit and Governance
Committee of the GP has been delegated the responsibility of maintaining a continuing education program for Board mem-
bers and has tasked management of the Administrator to regularly provide information respecting industry trends, new regu-
lation and other factors of which Board members should be made aware. To this end, management, with the assistance of out-
side counsel, as appropriate, will deliver reports of industry trends and legal and regulatory developments relevant o the Board.
Such reports will be provided annually or more frequently if requested by Board members or considered advisable by manage-
ment.

In addition, cach year management will circulate questionnaires, which will be used to gather information that will assist in
determining whether existing Trustees and Board members demonstrate requisite levels of independence and financial literacy.
To the extent that any Trustee or Board member requires additional financial education or training to ensure compliance with
applicable legal and regulatory standards or relevant best practices, such education or training will be provided by a third party
provider. Trustees and Board members are alse permitted 1o independently arrange additional education or training intended
to improve their performance as a Trustee or as a member of the Board at the Fund’s expense, upon approval by the Chair of
the Board. Based on completed questionnaires for fiscal 2006, there were no instances of any deficiencies relating o financial
literacy amongst members of the board or trustees of the Fund.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Trustees and the Board have jointly adopred a written code of conducr and cthics (the "Joint Code of Business
Conduct” or the "Code™) that applies to the Trustees of the Fund, and directors, officers and employees of irs subsidiaries.
The Joint Code of Business Conduct enconrages reporting of breaches of its terms, and the Trustees and the Board have
adopred a Joint Whistleblower Policy which describes how reports can be made on a confidential basis. Any information
relating to a breach of the Code is presented directly to the Chair of the Audit and Governance Commirtec of the Board.
The Fund has never filed a marterial change report thar pertains to a deparwure from the Code.

The Trustees and the Board rake special precautions to ensure thar they respectively exercise independent judgment in con-
sidering transactions or agreements in respect of which a Trustee, director or exccutive officer has a material interest. The
special precautions include: {i) implementing procedures, enshrined in the Joint Code of Business Conduct, that require
full, true and plain disclosure by Trustees, directors, officers and employces of all facts and circumstances relating to a rrans-
action or agreement in which any such person has marerial interest; {ii) rthe presentation to the Trustees or the Board, as
applicable, of all facts and circumsiances relating to each material transaction or agreement in which any Trustee, director,
officer or employee has material interest; (iii} the review and approval by the Trustees or the Board, as applicable, of each
material transaction or agreement in which any Trustee, director, officer or employee has material interest, conducted in
each case in the absence of interested persons.

The Trustees and the Board intend 10 take the following additional steps to encourage and promore a culture of cthical busi-
ness conduct in the future: (i) management, under the direction of the Board, will complete an annual review of the Joint
Code of Business Conduct, 10 ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and relevant best practices; (i)
Trustees, direcrors, officers and employees will be required to sign updated versions of each of the Joint Disclosure Policy
and the Joint Code of Business Conduct on an annual basis.

A copy of the Code may be obrained upon request delivered in writing to the Information and Governance Officer for ATS
Andlauer GP, at the following address:

Informartion & Governance Officer

ATS Andlauer Transporration Services GP Inc.
109 Dorey Ave Suite # 13

Dartmouth NS B3B 0B2
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Nomination of Trustees and Directors

The Audir and Governance Committee of the Fund is responsible for identifying new candidates for nomination as Trustees.
The Audit and Governance Committee, consisting enrirely of independent Trustees, acts as a nominating committee in con-
sultation with the Trustees as a whole. The committee considers the advice and input from all Trustees regarding, among
other things, the appropriate number of Trustees, the necessary qualifications and skills of the Trustees as a whole and of
each Trustee individually, and the recommendation of new individuals willing to serve as Trustees who offer experience and
expertise in an area of strategic interest to the Fund as well as the ability 10 devote the time required. The Audit and
Governance Committec of the Board underrakes substantially the same responsibilities in respect of the Board and ATS
Andlaver GP and works in consultarion with the Audit and Governance Committee of the Fund. The responsibilitics, pow-
ers and operation of the Audit and Governance Commirtee of the Fund relaring to the nomination of Trustees are enshrined
in the Audir and Governance Committee Charrter.

Board Seif-Assessment Process

The Trustees and members of the Board conduct annual assessments of the effectiveness and contriburion, on a collective
basis, of the Trustees and the Board. In 2006, the assessment of the competency and skills of the Trustees and the members
of the Board consisted of the completion of a governance self appraisal form. Trustees and Muembers of the Board were
required to complete and return derailed questionnaires whose results were tabulated by the Chairman of the Audir and
Governance Committee and a repore submirted 10 the Trustees and to the Board for discussion. The results of the ques-
tionnaires concluded that the Trustees and the Board functioned effectively in fiscal 2006. Succession planning was high-
lighted as an area for focus in 2007 ro which the Trustees and cthe Board remain commirted.

PARTICULARS OF OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

The Trustees know of no matters to come before the Meering other than those referred to in the Norice of Meeting accom-
panying this Infarmation Circular. However, if any other matters properly come before the Meering, it is the intention of
the Trustee representatives named in the Form of Proxy accompanying rhis Information Circular to vore the same in accor-
dance with their best judgment of such marters.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Fund may be found on SEDAR ar www.sedar.com. Additional financial information
is provided in the Fund's audited consotidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis for the Fund's
most recently completed financial year. A copy of the Fund's financial statements and management's discussion and analy-
sis is available upon writren request to the Chief Financial Officer of ATS Andlauer GP at ATS Andlauer GP, Suite 600,
190 Autwell Drive, Toronto, Ontario, MW GH8.

APPROVAL OF CIRCULAR

The contents and the sending of this Information Circular have been approved by the Trustees.

DATED this 26¢h day of March, 2007.
By Order of the Trustees

(signed) "David Matheson”
Chair of the Trustees
ATS Andlauer Income Fund
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SCHEDULE "A"
ATS ANDLAUER TRANSPORTATION SERVICES GP INC.
MANDATE FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The term "GP" refers to ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc., the term "Board” refers to the board of direcrors
of the GP and the rerm "Governance Agreements” refers, collectively, to the Declaration of Trust of ATS Andlauer lncome
Fund (the "Fund"}, the Administration Agreement between the Fund, ATS Andlauer Operating Trust ("ATSOT") and the
GP, the Securityholders Agreement berween the Fund, ATSOT, the GP ATS Andlauer Transporration Services Limired
Partnership (the "LP") and others, the Exchange Agreement berween the Fund, ATSOT, the GP, the LP and others and the
Limired Partnership Agreement governing the LP.

The Board is elected by ATSOT, as the sole sharcholder of the GP, in accordance with the provisions of the Securityholders
Agreement and the Declaration of Trust and is responsible for the stewardship of the affairs of the GP. The Board seeks 1o
discharge such responsibility by reviewing and discussing the strategics and plans of senior managemenr ("Management”)
of the GP and its subsidiaries and supervising Management, monitoring the performance of the LP and its subsidiaries and
exercising its voting and management rights as the general parcner of the LP

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a culture of integrity in the conduct of the affairs of the GP and
by overseeing and monitoring Management to with the objective of maintaining a culture of integrity. The Board secks to
discharge this responsibility by satisfying itself as to the integrity of the senior management of the GP, and by oversecing
and monitoring Management,

Although directors may be nominated or elected by shareholders 1o bring special expertise or a point of view to Board delib-
erations or may be appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Declaration of Trusr or the Securityholders Agreement, they
are not chosen 1o represent a particular constituency. The best interests of the GP and the LP mnust be paramount ar all
vimes.

DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board discharges its responsibilities directly and through any standing or ad hoc committees, the Board may appoint
from time to time. In addirion 1o the Board's primary role of oversecing the affairs of the GP, its principal duties include,
but are not limited 1o the following categories, all subject to the rerms of the Governance Agreements:

Oversight of Management

1. The Board, in consultation with the trustees (the "Trustees”) of the Fund, has the responsibility for approving the
appointment of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and any other officers of the GP (collectively, the "GP
Officers™), and, in consultation with the Trustees, approving the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and other
officers and employees of the GP following a review of the recommendarions of the Compensation Committee of the Board
(the "GP Compensation Committee”).

2. The Board has delegated authority 10 the Chief Executive Officer for the overall management of the GI} including
strategy and operations designed to achieve the long-term success of the GP and the LP. This delegation is subject to the
General Authority Guidelines in Appendix "A” rhat require either prior authorizatton by the Board or periodic review by
the Board in respect of specified marrers.

3. The Board may from time to time delegate authority o the G Officers, subject to specified limirs. Matters chac
are outside the scope of the authority delegated ro the GP Officers and material transactions are reviewed by and subject to

the prior approval of the Board.
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4. The Board is responsible for monitering the performance of Management with respect to the operations of the GP
and the LP.

Monitering of Financial Performance and Other Financial Reporting Matters
5. The Board has oversight responsibility for reviewing and questioning the strategies and plans of the GP and the LP.

6. The Board has oversight responsibility for reviewing systems for managing the principal risks of the business of the
GP and the LP including insurance coverages, conduct of material litigation and the effectiveness of internal controls.

7. The Board is responsible for considering appropriate measures it may take if the performance of the GP or the LP
falls short of their goals or other special circumstances warrant.

8. The Board shall be responsible for approving the (audited) financial statements and the notes of the GP and the LP

2. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving material transaction involving the GP and those martters
which the Board is required to approve under its governing legislation and the Governance Agreements, including the pay-
ment of distributions, acquisitions and dispositions of marerial assets by the GP or the LP and material expenditures by the
GP or the LI

10, The Board is responsible for reviewing and directing how the GP will exercise its voting and managerial rights in
respect of matters relating ro the LP.

11. The Board has responsibility for effectively monitoring the principal risks of the GP and considering the principal
risks relating to the LP.

Board Organization

12 Subject to the Securityholders Agreement, the Declaration of Trust and the other Governance Agreements, the
Board retains the responsibility for managing its own affairs by giving approval for its composition, the selection of the
Chair of the Board, candidates nominarted for election to the Board, committee and committee chair appointments, com-
mittee charters and director compensation.

13, The Board may deiegate to Board committees matters for which it is responsible, including the approval of com-
pensation of the Board and Management, the approval of interim financial results, the conduct of performance evaluations
and oversight of internal concrol systems, but the Board retains its oversight funciion and ultimate responsibility for these
matters and all other delegated responsibilities.

Policies and Procedures

14. The Board is responsible for:

(a) approving and monitoring compliance with all significant policies and procedures by which the GP is
operated;
{b) approving policies and procedures designed to ensure that the GP operares ar all times within applicable

laws and regulations and ro the highest ethical and moral standards; and

{© enforcing obligations of the directors respecting confidential treatment of the proprietary information of
the GP and the LP and Board deliberations.
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15. The Board has approved a Joint Disclosure Policy respecting communications to the public.

Communications and Reporting

16. The Board is responsible for:

(a)

{b)

{c}

(D

overseeing the accurate reporting of the financial performance of the GP and the LP to securityholders on
a timely and regular basis;

overseeing that the financial results of the GP and the LP are reported fairly and in accordance with gen
erally accepred accounting standacds;

overseeing the integrity of the internal control and management information systems of the GP and the
LP; and

taking steps 10 enhance the timely disclosure to the Fund of any ather developments that have a significant and
material impact on the Fund to enable the Fund o comply with its timely disclosure obligations.
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APPENDIX "A"
ATS ANDLAUER TRANSPORTATION SERVICES GP INC.
GENERAL AUTHORITY GUIDELINES
AUTHORITY OF MANAGEMENT

The Chief Execurtive Officer is responsible for overall management of the GP, including sirategy and operations designed to
achieve the long-term success of the GP and the LP.

This responsibility ts subject to the provisions of applicable law, the articles and by-laws of the GP, the Securityholders
Agreement, the Limited Partnership Agreement and any particular direction or resolution of the Board of Directors, except
for the following matters that require the specific authorization of the Board or a Board commitiee. In addition, certain

matters identified below will be subject to periedic review by the Board or a Board committee.

The delegarion contemplared by these guidelines shall include the authority ro establish areas of responsibility and limits of
authority for members of management of the GP and the subsidiaries of the GP and the LP

MATTERS REQUIRING DIRECTORS OR COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS APPROVAL OR REVIEW
L Organizational Changes and Policy

1. Approve major changes to the organization of the GP, the LP or their respective subsidiaries such as the crearion
or divestiture of significant investments or acquisitions.

2. Approve adoption of or changes to GP policies with application 1o the conduct of directors, including the Joint
Disclosure Policy.

3. Review of adherence to the policies of the GP.

4. Approve proposed changes to the GP's articles or by-laws or the Governance Agreements.

11. Budgets, Plans and Commitments

1. Review and approve the annual budger of the LD and the annual budger for the GP, if any.

2. Approve any single capital commiunent exceeding 31 million in a year or over multiple years or any capital com-

mitment which results in expenditures in excess of the approved annual capiral expenditure budget.

3. Approve major agreements or long-term leases outside the ordinary course of business of the GP or the LP.
4. Review long range business plans.

5. Approve amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement.

It Financial and Corporate

6. Approve the annual (audited) financial statements of the GP and the LP.

7. Approve the interim financial starements of the GP and the LP.
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8. Approve the distribution policy of the GT, if any, including approving declaration of dividends.

9. Approve changes in authorized capital, issuzance or repurchase of shares, debt securities and related prospectuses or
trust indentures, if any.

10. Generally review operating and financial performance relative to budgets and objectives in the context of the gen-
eral partner of the LP.

11. Review significant changes in accounting practices or policies.
12. Approve borrowing, hedging and granting of guarantees, if any.
13. Review significant changes in accounting practices or policies.

v, External Auditors of the GP and the LP

14, Approve appointment of external auditors, if any, establishment of their fees and arnual audit plan.

i5. Review independence of external audirors.

16. Review findings of external audir review and Management's response.

V. Risk Management  *

17. Review the GP's and the LP's risk management and insurance coverages.

18. Review the GP's conducr of litigation that could materially affect the financial condition of the GP or the LP.
19. Review cffectiveness of internal control procedures.

VI Management and Human Resources

1. Approve appointment or removal of executives in positions at or above Vice President of the GP ("Senior

Executives”);

2. Confirm appeintments of other officers.

3. Evaluate performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

4, Approve compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and other Senior Executives and review performance.
5. Approve contracts with Senior Executives including special termination provisions or payments.

6. Approve adoption of unit purchase ot other unit based compensation arrangements, if any.

7.
direct activity of the GP or the LP.

Approve short-term and long-term incentive plan criteria, rargets and awards, if any, in so far as such plans are a

8. Review Senior Execurive succession plans.
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
MANDATE FOR THE TRUSTEES

The term "Fund” refers to ATS Andlauer Income Fund, the term "Trustees™ refers to the rrustees of the Fund and the term
"Governance Agreements” refers, collectively, 1o the Declaration of Trust of the Fund, the Administration Agreement
berween the Fund, ATS Andlauer Operating Truse ("TATSOT") and ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc. (the
"GP"), the Securityholders Agreement between the Fund, ATSOT, the GP, ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited
Partnership (the "LP"} and others, the Exchange Agreement between the Fund, ATSOT, the GP, the LP and others and the
Limited Partnership Agreement governing the LD

The Trustees are elected by the unitholders and are responsible for the stewardship of the affairs of the Fund. The Trustees
seek to discharge such responsibility by reviewing and discussing the Fund's investments, and in particular the Fund's indi-
rect investments in the LP and the GP, and, as an investor, monitoring the stewardship of the GI* by its board of directors
(the "GP Board™), subject to the provisions of the Governance Agreements.

The Trustees are responsible for establishing and maintaining a culture of integrity in the conducr of the affairs of the Fund.
To the extent within their authority to do so, the Trustees seek ro discharge this responsibility by satisfying themselves as to
the integrity of the senier management of the GP, including the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and other executive offi-
cers of the GP, as administrator (the "Administrator”) of the Fund pursuant ro the Administration Agreement, and, as an
investor, monitoring the integrity of the senior management of the LP and the GI

Alchough Trustees may be nominated or elected by the unitholders ro bring special expertise or a point of view to Trustee
deliberations or may be appointed pursuant ro the requirements of the Declararion of Trust, they are not chosen to repre-
sent 2 particular constituency. The best interests of the Fund must be paramount at all times.

DUTIES OF THE TRUSTEES

The Fund is a limited purpose trust and is restricted 1o acrivities thatr permit it to maintain its starus as a "unit trust” and
a "mutual fund trust” including, among other things: (a) investing its funds in securities, including securities issued by
ATSOT, the LP and the GP; (b} holding cash in interest bearing accounts, government debr and certain other permirred
investments; and (c) issuing units and other securities for cash or other consideration.

The Trustees are responsible for, among other things: (i} supervising the activities and managing the investments and affairs
of the Fund; {ii} maintaining recerds and providing reports to unitholders, (iii} effecting payment of distributions teo
unitholders, {iv) investing funds of the Fund in 2ccordance with the Declaration of Trust, (v) acting for, voting on behalf
of and representing the Fund as a securityholder, and (vi} using commercially reasonable efforts to ensure thar the Fund
complics at all times with the requirements of paragraph 108(2){a) and subsection 132(6) of the Income Tax Act (Canada)
(i.c., maintains its status as a "unit rrust” and a "mutual fund trust”). The Trustees may exercise in respect of the Fund
asscts and the business and affairs of the Fund any and all rights, powers and privileges that could be exercised by a legal

and beneficial owner thereof.

The Trustees discharge their responsibilities directly and through their commirtees, the Audit and Governance Committee
and the Compensation Committee. In addition 1o these regular commitices, the Trustees may appoint ad hoc committees
periodically to address certain issues of a more short-term nature. In addition to the Trustees” primary role of oversecing the
affairs of the Fund, their principal duties include, but are not limited ro the following categories:

Qversight of Administrator

92 In accordance with the Declaration of Trust and the Administration Agreement, the Trustees have delegared
authority for certain management and administrative matters to the Administrator bur have rerained authority for the over-
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sight of the overall management of the Fund including long rerm strategy. This delegation is summarized in the General
Authority Guidelines in Appendix "B" that require either prior authorization by the Trustees or periodic review by the
Trustees in respect of specified matters.

10. The Trustees have the responsibility for approving the appointment of any officers of the Fund (collectively, the
"Fund Officers”), approving the compensation of Fund Officers and employees, if any, and monitoring the compensarion
of officers and employees of the GI’ and the LP, which compensation is the responsibility of the GP Board.

1. The Trustees may from time to time delegare authority to the Administrator, to Fund Officers. if any, or others as
permitted by the Declaration of Trust. Matters that are outside the scope of the authority delegated to the Administrator or
others and material transactions are reviewed by and subject to the prior approval of the Trustees.

Monitoring of Investments and Related Marters

12. As an investor, the Trustees will monitor and review the Fund's investments including its investments in ATSOT
and its indirecr investments through ATSOT in the LP and the GP and may question the strategies and plans of the LP and
the GP.

13. The Trustees have the responsibility for monitoring the compliance by the LP and the GP with the Governance
Agreements to which the Fund is a party including the distribution policies ser our therein,

14. The Trustees are responsible for considering appropriate measures the Fund may take as an investor in the LP and
the GP if the performance of the LP or the G as the case may be, falls shore of its goals or other special circumstances war-
ranc or if the LP or the GP does not fulfill its obligations under the Governance Agreements to which the Fund is a party.

Financial Performance and Financial and Other Reporting Marters

5. The Trustees are responsible for approving the audited financial statements of the TFund and the notes and
Management's Discussion and Analysis accompanying such financial statements.

16. The Trusrees are responsible for reviewing and approving material transactions involving the Fund and rhose mat-
ters thar the Trustees are required to approve under the Declaration of Trust including the payment of distributions, the
issuance of frust units, acquisitions and dispositions of material assets by the Fund and material expenditures by the Fund.

Trustee Organization

7. The Trustees will respond 1o the recommendarions received from the Audit and Governance Committee and the
Compensation Commirttee, but retain the responsibility for managing their own affairs including their composition, the
selection of the Chair of the Trustees, subject to the provisions of the Declaration of Trust and other applicable Governance
Agreements, candidates nominared for election to the Trustees, commisiee and committee chair appointments, committee
charters and Trustee compensation,

18. The Trustees may delegate to Trustee commitiees matters for which they are responsible, including the approval of
compensation of the Trustees and management, if any, the approval of interim financial results of the Fund, the conducr of
performance evaluations and oversight of the Fund's internal contro! systems, but the Trusices retain their oversight func-
tion and ultimate responsibility for these marters and all other delegated responsibilities.

19. The Trustees have delegated to the Audir and Governance Committee responsibility for developing the Trustees’
approach tw corporate governance, including the development of the Governance Guidelines.
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Policies and Procedures

20. The Trustees are responsible for:

{a) approving and monitoring compliance with all significant policies and procedures by which the Fund is
operated;

{b) approving policies and procedures designed to ensure that the Fund operartes ar all rimes within applica
ble laws and regulations and to the highest ethical and moral standards and with a view to creating a cul
ture of integrity within the Fund's organization; and

() enforcing obligations of the Trustees respecting confidential treatment of the Fund's proprietary informa
tion and Trustee deliberations.

21. The Trustees have approved a Joint Disclosure Policy respecting communications to the public.

22, The Trustees have adopred the Governance Guidelines to assist them in their governance responsibilities,

Communications and Reperting

23, The Trustees are responsible for:

(a) averseeing the accurate reporting of the financial performance of the Fund to unitholders, other security
holders and regulators on a timely and regular basis;

(b) overseeing that the financial results of the Fund are reported fairly and in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards and related legal disclosure requirements;

{c) overseeing the integrity of the internal conrrol and management information systems of the Fund;

(d) taking steps to enhance the timely disclosure of any other developments that have a significant and mate
rial impacr on the Fund;

(e) reporting to unitholders on their stewardship as may be required under applicable securities laws and the
rules of any stock exchange on which the Fund's units are listed for trading;

() overseeing the investor relations and communications strategy of the Fund; and

(g) overseeing the Fund's implementation of processes that accommeodate feedback from unitholders includ
ing by receiving and responding to feedback from unitholders through:

{i) correspondence specifically addressed ro the Trustees which is received by the investor relations depart
ment via mail, email, and phone; and

{i1) communications received through the Administrator’s officers.
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APPEDIX "B"
ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
GENERAL AUTHQORITY GUIDELINES
AUTHORITY OF THE ADMINISTRATOR
The Fund does not have any officers or employees, other than the Chair of the Trustees, who is not an employee. As per-
mitted by the Declaration of Trust, the Fund has retained the GP as Administrator pursuant o the Administration
Agreement to provide or arrange for the provision of services required in the management and administration of the Fund.
An extrace from the Adminiscration Agreement setting out the specific services to be provided by the Admimstrator is
attached as Appendix "1".
The Trustees have retained responsibility for oversight of the overall management of the Fund including long term strate-
gy- This responsibility is subject to the provisions of the Declaration of Trust, the other Governance Agreements and appli-
cable law.
MATTERS REQUIRING TRUSTEE OR TRUSTEE COMMITTEE APPROVAL OR REVIEW

VIl.  Orsganizational Changes and Policy

24. Apprave major changes to the organization of the Fund such as the creation or divestiture of significant invest-
MENEs of acquisitions.

25. Approve adoption of or changes to Fund policies with application ro the conduct of Trustees, including the Joint
Disclosure Policy and the Governance Guidelines.

26. Review of adherence to the policies of the Fund.
27. Approve proposed changes to the Declaration of Frust or other Governance Agreements to which the Fund is a
party.

VHL  Financial and Corporate

28, Approve the Fund's annual audited financial statements, annual report, management proxy circular and annual
securities law filings.

29. Approve the Fund's interim financial statements and other reporting in accordance with the Fund's Joint
Disclosure Policy and the Audit and Governance Committee Charter.

30. Approve the declaration of distributions and changes wo Fund policy in respect thereof.
3L Approve any distribution reinvestment plan.
32 Approve in respect of the Fund changes in authorized capital, listing of securities, issuance or repurchase of units,

issuance, repurchase or redemption of debr securities and any prospectuses or circulars in connection therewith other than
pursuant to redemptions in accordance with the Declaration of Trust,

33. Approve borrowing, hedging and granting of guarantees by the Fund, if any.
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34. Review significant changes in the Fund's accounting practices or policies.

35. Review findings of any regulatory agencies concerning the financial informarion of the Fund and the
Administrator's response.

36. Approve adoption of unit eption, unit purchase or other unit based compensation arrangements, if any, that
involve the issuance of units by the Fund or invelve the purchase of units by the Fund.

1X. External Auditors of the Fund

37. Recommend appointment of external awditors of the Fund by unitholders and establish their fees and approve the
annual audit plan,

38. Review independence of the Fund's external auditors.

39. Review findings of external audit review and the Administrator’s response.

X Risk Management

40. Identify the principal risks of the Fund's investments and affairs and oversee the implementation of appropriate

systems to manage those risks.

41. Review the Fund's risk management and insurance coverages, if any.

42. Review the Fund's conducr of litigarion that could materially affect the financial condition of the Fund.

43, Review effectiveness of the Fund's internal control procedures.

XL Management and Administration

44, Monitor the performance of the Administrator pursuant 1o the Administration Agreement

45, As an investor, monitor and evaluate the Fund's investments including its indirecy investments in the LP and the GP
46. Approve appointment or removal of officers or employees of the Fund, if any.

47. Monitor senior executive succession plans of the Administrator.

48. Approve the adoption of unit oprion, unit purchase or other unit based compensation arrangements, if any, that

involve the issuance of units by the Fund or invelve the purchase of unirs by the Fund.
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APPENDIX 1"
EXTRACTS FROM ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

"ARTICLE 2
SERVICES

2.5 Administrative and Support Services for the Fund

Subject to and in accordance with the terms, conditions and limitacdons of the Declararion of Trust, the Fund here-
by delegates to the Administrator, and the Administrator hereby agrees to provide and be responsible for, management,
administrative and support services necessary for the operation of the Fund. including the following:

(a) undertake any matters required by the terms of the Declaration of Trust to be performed by the Trustees, which
are not otherwise delegated therein or herein and generally provide all other services as may be nccessary or as requested by
the Trustees for the management and administration of the Fund;

(b) assist the Trustees in making all determinations necessary for the discharge of the Trustees’ obligations under the
Declaration of Trust;

{c) retain and monirtor, on behalf of the Trustees, a transfer agent and other petsons serving the Fund;

(d) authorize and pay on behalf of the Fund operating expenses incurred on behalf of the Fund and negotiarte contracts
with third party providers of services (including, but not limited to, transfer agents, legal counsel, auditors and printers);

(¢ provide office space, telephone, office equipment, facilities, supplies and executive, secretarial, bookkeeping, pen-
eral accounting and clerical services;

(N deal with banks and ocher institutional lenders, including in respect of maintenance of bank records and the nego-
dation and securing of bank ﬁnancing or refinancing or onc or more czedir or debr facilities, hedging or swap facilities or
other anciltary faciliries in respect of the Fund or any entity in which the Fund holds any direct or indirect interest;

(g) provide or cause to be provided to the Trustees any services reasonably necessary for the Trustees to be able to con-
sider any future acquisitions of assers and property by the Fund or divestitures of assets and properry of the Fund;

{h) administer all of the records and documents relative to the assers and property of the Fund:

(i} prepare and provide to the Trustees for their review and approval alt annual audited and interim unaudited finan-
cial statements of the Fund, income tax returns and filings in sufficient time prior to the dates upon which they must be
delivered 1o Unitholders and/or filed so that the Trustees have a reasonable opportunity ro review and approve them, exe-
cute them and return them to the Administrator, and arrange for their delivery to Unitholders and/or filing within the time

required by applicable law;

(i assist the Trustees in computing distributions to Unitholders including calculating Cash Flow (as defined in the
Declaration of Trust) and facilitate payment of distributions properly declared payable by the Fund;

(k) provide advice and assistance to the Trusrtees with respecr to the performance of the obligations of the Fund and
the enforcement of the rights of the Fund under all agreemencs entered into by the Fund;

(1) ensure compliance by the Fund with all applicable securities laws, including continuous disclosure obligations;
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{m) ensure compliance by the Fund with stock exchange rules

{n) provide all communications and relared services 1o the Fund, including government relations services, draftiﬂg.
approval and distribution of all press releases related (o distributions to Unitholders, earnings and acher disclosable events,
in compliance with the Fund's policies on disclosure and all applicable securiries laws related to disclosure of material infor-
mation;

(o) prepare on behalf of the Fund any circular or other disclosure document required under applicable securities leg-
islation with respect to an offer to acquire securities of another person or in response to an offer to purchase Trust Unirs;

(p) provide investor relations services 1o the Fund;

(q) at the request and under the direction of the Trustees, call and hold all annual andfor special meetings of
Unitholders pursuant to the Declaration of Trust and prepare for approval by the Trustees and arrange for the distribution
of all materials {including notices of meetings, information circulars and instrument of proxy) in respect thereof;

(r} prepare and provide or cause to be provided to Unitholders on a timely basis all information 1o which Unitholders
are entitled under the Declaration of Trust and under Applicable Laws, including quarterly and annual reports, notices,
financial statements and tax informarion relating ro the Fund;

(s) obtain and pay for the costs of liability insurance for the protection of the Fund and its affiliates, and their respec-
tive trustees, directors and officer against such risks, ro such limits and with such deductibles and such other terms as are
approved by the Trusiees from time to time;

(1) artend to all administrative and other matters arising in connection with any redemptions of Trust Units or ATSOT
Units or any exchange of Exchangeable Securities for Trust Units;

(u) ensure that the Fund elects in the prescribed manner and within the prescribed time under subsecrion 132(6.1) of
the Income Tax Act (Canada) to be a "mutual fund trust” within the meaning of that Act since inceprion, assuming the
requirements for such election are met, ensure that the Fund elects under the analogous provisions of any applicable provin-
cial tax legislation, menitor the Fund's starus as a mutual fund trust and provide the Trustees with written notice when the
Fund ceases or is at risk of ceasing to be such a murual fund trust;

(v} ensute compliance with the Fund's limirations on non-resident ownership, as more particulurly set out in Section 2.6;
{w} provide advice to the Trustees with respect 1o the timing and terms of future offerings of Trust Unirs, if any;
{(x) assist the Trustees in connection with any offerings of Trust Units, including preparing any prospectus or compa-

rable documents of the Fund to qualify the distribution of securities of the Fund from rime to time; and

(y) promptly notify the Fund of any event that might reasonably be expected 1o have a material adverse effect on the
affairs of the Fund.

Upon request, the Administrator will provide quarterly reports 1o the Trustees outlining the nature and details of the fore-
going services that have been provided.

2.6 Nosn-Resident Unitholders
The Administrator shall use reasonable efforts to monitor the residence status of Unitholders. I, ac any time, the
Adnuinistrator is of the opinion thar the Trustees should require declarations as ro the residence status of Unitholders under

Secrion 14.1 of the Declaration of Trust, it shall so advise the Trustees and provide the form of the declaration therefor 10
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the Trustees. If, in the reasonable opinion of the Administrator, the beneficial owners of 49 percent or more of the Trust
Units on either a non-dituted or a diluted basis are or may be non-residents of Canada within the meaning of the Income
Tax Act (Canada) or such a situarion is reasonably possible, it shall so advise the Trustees and provide the Trustees with an
announcement thereof in a form suirable for use by the Trustees pursuant o Section 14.1 of the Declaration of Trust. If the
Administrator reasonably believes that 49 percent or more of the Trust Units on either a non-diluted or a diluted basis are
held by non-residents of Canada, it shall prepare and furnish to the Trustees notices to che non-resident Unicholders, requir-
ing them 1o sell their units or a specified portion thereof within a specified period of time of not less than 60 days, in accor-
dance with the Declaration of Trust. The Trustees shall provide the Administrator with such inferination regarding the res-
idence status of Unitholders and the order of acquisition or registration thereof as the Administraror may reasonably
request, from time to time, that the Trustees may have in their possession in order to assist the Administrator in fulfilling
its obligations under this Secrion 2.6.

4.3 Compliance

The Administrator shall deliver to the Trustees within 90 days after the end of a fiscal year and within 45 days after the end
of each Quarter a cerrificate signed on behalf of the Administrator by the chief executive officer and the chief financial ofh-
cer of the Administrator stating that a review of the activities of the Administrator and the Fund during the preceding fis-
cal year or Quarrer, as applicable, has been made under the supervision of such officers and that, based on that review and
their best knowledge, the Administrator has fulfilled all of its obligations, and complied with all of the terms of, this
Agreement in all material zespects and that no default hereunder (or evenr which, with notice or lapse of time or both, could
become a default hereunder) occurred during such fiscal year. The Adminiscrator shall contemporaneously deliver an anal-

ogous certificare ro the ATSOT Trustees in respect of the activities of ATSOT during each such period.”
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Instrument of Proxy
For the Annual Meeting of Unitholders

The undersigned holder ("Unitholder”) of trust units or
special voting units {collectively, "Units") of ATS Andlauer
Income Fund (the "Fund") hereby appoints Michael
Andlauer, President and Chicef Executive Officer of ATS
Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc. {the "GP"), the
administraror of the Fund, of the Town of Milton, in the
Provinee of Ontario, or, failing him, Brian Mascarenhas,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the GB, of
the City of Mississauga, in the Province of Onuario, or
instead of either of die foregoing,

as proxyholder of the undersigned, with full power of sub-
stitstion, to attend and act and vote for and on behalf of
the undersigned at the Annual Meeting of the Unitholders
of the Fund (the "Mecting™), to be held on May 7, 2007
and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof and on
every ballat that may take place in consequence thereof to
the same extent and with the same pawers as if the under-
signed were personally present at the Meering with auchori-
ty to vote at the said proxyholders’ discretion, except as
otherwise specified below, Without limiting the gencral
powers hereby conferred, the undersigned hereby directs
the said proxyholder to vote the Units represented by this
instrument of proxy in the following manner:

1. Election of Trustees

FOR WITHHOLD
ol. M. Andlauer O O
02. D. Matheson | J
03. H. Nanji O O
04. B. Luborsky | O
05. J. Schiller O O

2. Appointment of Deloitre & Touche LLP,
Chartered Accountants, as audicors of the Fund for the
ensuing year. FOR WITHHOLD

O O

3. At the discretion of the said proxyholder, upon
any amendment or variation of the above martters or any
other matter that may properly be brought before the
Meeting or any adjournment thereof, in such manner as
such proxyholder, in his sole judgment may determine.

FOR WITHHOLD

L O

This Instrument of Proxy is solicited on behalf of the
trustees of the Fund. The Units represented by this
Instrument of Pruay will be voted and, where e
Unitholder has specified a choice with respect to the
above martters, will be voted as directed above or, if no
direction is given, will be voted in favour of the above
matters. Each Unitholder has the right to appoint a
proxyholder, other than the persons designated above,
who need not be a Unitholder, to attend and to act for
him and on his behalf at the Meeting. To exercise such
right, the names of the nominees of management should
be crossed out and the name of the Unitholder's
appointec should be legibly printed in the blank space
provided.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxies heretofore
given.

Dated this day of » 2007,

(Name of Unitholder - pleasc print)

e ZO . %234 96N
Return this proxy
By Mail
- Complete, sign and date the left side of this proxy. .,

o ¥ oy r
- Detach and return in envelope provided. jrie iy “ ‘_\ ol D

R 23 P

NOTES:

f
4]
|
.

P
-
—_
s
[ ]
r-

e oy
1. If the Unitholder is a corporation, its corporate seal mustbe'y iy & T
affixed or it must be signed by an officer or artorney thercof duly

authorized.

2. This form of proxy must be dated and the signature hereon should
be exactly the same as the name in which the Units are registered.

3. Persons signing as executors, administrators, trustees, etc., should
so indicate and give their full dde a5 such.

4. This instrument of proxy will not be valid and not be acted upon
or voted unless it is completed as outlined herein and delivered w
CIBC Mellon Trust Company, RO. Box 721 Agincourt, Ontario,
M1S 0AL, or for those investors wishing to return their proxies in
person by delivering them to CIBC Mellon Trust Company 320
Bay Street, Banking Hall Level, Toronto, Qntario, not less than 24
hours before the time set for the holding of the Meeting ot any
adjournments chereof. A proxy is valid only at the Meeting in respect
of which it is given or any adjournment(s) of that Meeting,
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DEFINED TERMS

Please refer 1o the "Glossary of Terms” in Schedule "A™ for a list of defined terms wsed in this annual information
forin.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual information form contains forward-looking statements. Statcments other than statements of historical
fact contained in this annual information form may be forward looking statemenis, including. without limitation.
Management's expectations, intentions and beliefs concerning the transportation industry, its competitive landscape
and the general economy, statements regarding the amount and timing of the payment of distributions by the Fund
and the future financial position or resulis of the Fund, business strategy, proposed acquisitions, growth
opportunities, budgets, litigation, projected costs and plans and objectives of or involving the Fund or the
Partnership. Readers can identify many of these statements by looking for words such as "believe”, "expects”, "will",
“intends”, "projects”, "anticipates”, "estimates"”, "continues” or similar words of the negative thereof. There can be no
assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon which these forward looking statements are based will
occur. Forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions and should not be read as
guarantees or assurances of future performance. Accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on any forward looking information contained in this annual information form. Statements containing
forward looking information reflect Management's current beliefs and assumptions based on information in
its possession on the date of this annual information form. Although Management belicves that the expectations
represented in such forward looking statements are recasonable, there can be no assurance thit such expectations will
prove to be correct.

Statements comtaining forward-looking information by their nature involve numerous assumptions and significant
knuwn and unknown facts and uncertaintics of both a general and a specific nature. Some of the factors that could
affect future results and could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward looking
statements contained herein include risks relating to: general economic conditions; the competitive environment;
reliance on major customers and contract renewals; dependence on personnel; labour relations: insurance matters:
reliance on information technology: reliance on third party transporiation providers; expostre to litigation: weather
conditions; the regulatory environment in which the Partnership operates; environmental regulation and potential
environmenial liability; potential unknown liabilities; the timing and amount of capial expenditures; leverage and
restrictive covenants in agreements relating to current and future indebtedness of the Partnership; the availability of
future financing; the ability to sustain and manage growth; absence of an operating history as a public company;
dependence on external funding sources; the dependence of the Fund on ATSOT and the Partnership; absence of a
prior public market for the Units; unpredictability and potential volatility of the trading price of the Units including
the effect of market interest rates on the price of Units; the nature of the Units; cash disiributions are not guaranteed
and will fluctuate with the Partnership’s performance; cash-on-cash yield as a measure of performance; the legal
attributes of the Units; the restrictions on the potential growth of the Parinership as a consequence of the payment by
the Partnership of substantially all of its operating cash flow; income 1ax related risks; future sales of Units by the
Vendor; ability to recover from the Vendor for breaches of the Acquisition Agreement; conflicts of interest; possible
limits on Unitholder imited hability; the distribution of securities on redemption or termination of the Fund; dilution
of interests of Unitholders; and restrictions on non-resident Unitholders and hquidity of Units,

The information contained in this annual information form, including the information set forth under "Risk Factors”,
identifies additional factors that could affect the operating results and performance of the Fund and the Partnership.

The forward looking statements contained herein are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary
statement. The forward looking statements included in this annual information form are made as of the date of this
annual information form and, subject to applicable law, neither the Fund nor any other parly assumes any obligation
to update or revise them to reflect new events or circumstances.



NON-GAAP MEASURES
References in this annual information form to:

"EBITDA" are to net income before provision for interest, income taxes and depreciation and amortization and non-
controlling interest. Management belicves that in addition to net income or toss, EBITDA is a usefu! supplemental
measure of cash available for distribution before debt wervice, changes in working capital, maintenance capital
expenditures and taxes.

"Distributable cash” are to cash available for distribution to Unitholders in accordance with the distribution policies
of the Fund described in this annual information form. Distributable cash of the Fund is a measure generally used by
Canadian open-ended trusts as an indicator of financial performance and Management belicves that investors may
consider the cash distributed by the Fund relative to the price of the Units when assessing an investment in Units.
The Fund's method of determining distributable cash is derived from EBITDA, which in turn is derived from net
income, a measure recognized under GAAP.

Although the terms EBITDA and distributable cash are referred to in this annual information form, no EBITDA or
distributable cash information is presented. Where presented in other filings made on behalf of the Fund, such
measures are reconciled to the most directly comparable measure in the Fund's GAAP financial statements.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Unless otherwise indicated, the market and industry data comtained in this annual information form is based upon
information from independent industry and other publications and Management's knowledge of and cxperience in
the markets in which the Fund operates. While Management believes this data to be reliable, market and industry
data is subject to variations and cannot be verified with complete certainty due to limits on the availability and
reliability of raw data, the veluntary nature of the data gathering process and other limitations and uncertainties
inherent in any statistical survey, The Fund has not independently verified any of the data from third pany sources
referred to in this annual information form or ascertained the underlying assumptions relied upon by such sources.

TRADEMARKS

The "ATS" logo is a trademark owned by the Parinership. All other trademarks used in this annual information form
(if any) are the property of their respective owners.




CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Name, Address and Formation

ATS Andlauer Income Fund {the "Fund")

Suite 600, 190 Attwell Drive

Etobicoke, Ontario M9W 6HS8

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust cstablished under the laws of the Province of Ontario by the
Declaration of Trust. There have not been any material amendments to the Declaration of Trust since the Fund
became a reporting issuer on Scptember 22, 2005.

Intercorporate Relationships

The following chart iflustrates the structure of the Fund as at the date hereof.

100%% (Units}

ATS Andlauer
Income Fund
(Onuario)

H30% (ATSOT Units)

{013 ATS Andlauer
(GP Common Shares) Transportation Scrvices
GP Inc.
{Canaida)

ATS Andlaucr
Operating Trust
{Omtario}

19.9% BO. 194!

100%

(GP Units)
ATS Andlaucr Transportation
Scrvices Limited Parnership
{Manitoba)
Notes:
(H Ordinary LP Units, representing 80.1% of the LP Units.
2} Exchangeable LP Units representing 19.9% of the LP Units. Each Exchangeable LP Unit is exchangeable into one
Unit. subject to customary antrdilution adjustments. The holders of Exchangeable LP tinits dso hold one Special
Voting Unit for each Exchangeable LI Unit held. The Speciat Voting Units entitle the holders of Exchangeable LP
Units to such number of votes at meetings of Voting Unitholders as is equal to the number of Units into which the
related Exchangeable LP Units arc then exchangeable. Sce "Retained Interest and Exchange Righis™ and "ATS
Andlauver Income Fund — Units and Special Voting Units™.
{3) The Vendor is owned by the Founding Shareholder.
4) Included are 180,700 Units owned by Andlauer Management Group Inc. (“AMG")}, a company controlled by Michael

Andlauer.



INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
General Overview

The Canadian freight transportation industry can be defined by two categories: the business-to-business segment and
the business-to-consumer segment. The business-to-consumer segment includes goods shipped between businesses
and individual consumers. The business-to-business segment includes the transportation of goods between
businesses, The Fund is focused exclusively on the business-to-business segment of the transportation industry.

The Canadian Freight Transportation Industry

The transportation of goods and the provision of distribution services between businesses are essential in the
functioning of an economy. A country's trade and economy are dependent on its transportation and distribution
capabilities as companies rely on these services and related infrastructure to conduct their businesses and to
distribute their products to retailers and end-users.

The commercial freight transportation industry in Canada is segmented into various modes of transportation: air,
rail, marine, trucking, and other ground transportation.

Trucking Segment

The Canadian commercial trucking industry is typically separated into three main segments: courier services, for-
hire trucking and private trucking. These segments are increasingly being supported by a fourth segment, logistics
and value added services.

Courier Services

Courier services represented approximately 10% of the Canadian trucking industry in 2004, Management believes

that the courier services segment is the fastest growing segment in the Canadian commercial trucking industry.

Courier services include the transport of envelopes, packages and other items at an expedited rate.

The courier service industry may be divided into two major segments;

() Overnight or later delivery: Shipments that are delivered at least onc day after the day they are picked up.
This segment of the market includes shipments delivercd within Canada, to the United States or other

countrics around the world. This segment represents the majority of market activity,

(b) Same day/messenger: Shipments that are delivered the same day they are picked up. By definition, these
tend to be primarily local and/or regional deliveries,

Typical courier service providers limit the weight of packages to 70 pounds, while more specialized courier service
providers such as the Fund may also provide the flexibility to distribute packages in excess of 70 pounds.

The typical courier service providers offer both business and consumer deliveries and limit package size duc to the
physical design of their conveyor and handling systems.

For-Hire Trucking

For-hire commercial trucking, representing approximately 47% of the Canadian trucking industry in 2004, involves
freight transportation services offered to third parties in exchange for compensation. The for-hire trucking segment
is typically scparated into two areas: TL and LTL services,

TL carriers are those that move large shipments (greater than 10,000 pounds) on irregular routes providing service
on a point-to-point basis with no intermediate stops or handling. LTL carriers pick up smaller shipments (less than




10,000 pounds) and consolidate the goods to fill a trailer. These goods are then taken to a final destination terminal
at which they are sorted and distributed. LTL services are often provided on scheduled routes.

The Canadian for-hire trucking industry is diversified across the country with a majority of traffic operating within
the borders of Ontario and Quebec.

Private Trucking

Private trucking, which involves freight transportation scrvices conducted by a company transporting its own goods,
represented approximately 43% of the trucking industry in 2004. The Fund currently performs no private trucking
services.

Air Cargo and Air Freight Forwarding Industry Segment

The Canadian air carge industry involves the transport of goods by aircraft at an expedited rate from location to
location. The air cargo industry may be separated into two main scgments:

(a) Cargo that is transported on dedicated cargo aircraft by dedicated air cargo companices; and
(b) Cargo that 1s transported in the cargo holds of passenger aircraft by passenger airline companies.

Each scgment of this industry carries cargo on domestic routes between Canadian destinations, and on transborder
{United States) or international routes, between Canadian and non-Canadian destinations. The majority of the air
freight cargo s from domestic transport.

The Canadian air freight forwarding industry involves those companies such as the Fund that do not transport cargo
themselves, but contract space for their customers from air cargo and passenger airline companies.

Logistics Services and Value Added Segment

A relatively recent development in the transportation industry is the growth of the distribution and logistics services
segment. This segment involves the provision of services relating to the planning, implementation and control of the
flow and storage of goods, services and related information in the freight transportation process between the point of
origin and the point of consumption. Such value added services are cssential to the effective and strategic

management of the supply chain and these services integrate and complement the various modes of transport in the
industry.

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS
History of the Vendor

The Vendor was founded in 1991 by the current President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP, Michael
Andlaver. The business began by offering its first customers nationwide air freight forwarding and ground
transportation services through facilities in Toronto, Montreal, Calgary and Vancouver, supplemented by
transportation agents in other locations. Significant demand for its customized services led the Vendor to further
expand its range of service offerings in order to work more closely with its customers in additional arcas of their
supply chains,

The Vendor's rapid growth cnabled it to expand its distribution network actoss Canada by strategically establishing
facilities in sclect markets. This expansion allowed the Vendor to provide greater control and consistency of service
to its customers by reducing its use of agents.




History of the Fund Since Incepticn

On September 30, 20035, the Fund completed its initial public offering of Units. The Fund issued 9,324,200 Units at
$10.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of $93,242,000. The Fund used the proceeds of the offering to indirectly acquire
an 80.1% interest in the Partnership. The Partnership subsequently used these proceeds and borrowings under its
Credit Facility to acquire certain of the net assets used in the Canadian transportation solutions business (the
"Purchased Assets”) from ATS Andlaver Transportation Services Inc. (the "Vendor") for total consideration
consisting of 398,406,55} in cash and 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units (collectively, the "Acquisition"). The
remaining 19.9% interest in the Partnership is held by the Vendor, which is contrelied by Michael Andlauer, the
President and Chiel Executive Officer of the GP, the gencral pariner of the Pantnership.

The Units commenced trading on the TSX at the opening on September 30, 2005 under the symbol "ATS.UN",

On January 15, 2007, the Fund filed with the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX™) an application and received
approval. to repurchase, throngh the facilities of the TSX for cancellation, up to 871,436 of its outstanding Units,
representing approximately 10% of the “public float™ of the Units outstanding on January 15, 2007, calculated in
accordance with the rules of the TSX. As at the datc of this Annual Information Form, the Fund has made no
repurchases of Units under the normal course issuer bid.

As at the date hercof, the Fund is not aware of any material changes in the Fund's business that the Fund expects wili
occur during the current financial year.

Significant Acquisitions

As at the date hercof the Fund has not completed any acquisitions for which a Business Acquisition Report has not
yel been filed.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
Overview

The Partnership is a single source, fill-service transportation solutions provider for major consumer product
companics requiring valuc added business-to-business transportation solutions in Canada. The Partnership provides
a broad range of transportation services designed to deliver reliable, flexible, and cosweffective distribution services
that fulfill its customers' specific needs. These services are provided using courier, air freight forwarding, LTL and
TL transportation modes, and include a full range of value added specialized service and logistics capabilities. The
Parinership has experienced strong growth through its ability to identify and service sclect consumer product
industry segments that require specialized supply chain service, efficiency and secunity. Management believes that
the Partnership’s bundled service offering differentiates it from its competitors.

Headquartered in the Greater Toronte Area (Etobicoke). Ontario, the Partnership currently serves its approximately
1,400 customers from a network of 23 facilities across Canada. The Partnership focuses on the transportation of
high value products that are time sensitive, including pharmaceuticals, DVDs, telecommunication devices (such as
wireless handsets and satellite dishes) and cosmetics. The Partnership’s customers include major manufacturers and
consumer product companies in the entertainment, healthcare, telecommunications and electronics industries
including Bell Distribution Inc., Buena Vista Home Entertamment, 20" Century Fox Home Ententainment, L'Oreal
Canada, Pfizer Canada Inc., Sony Pictures Home Entertainment and Veterinary Purchasing. The Partnership has
established long-term relationships with its customers serving some of its major customers since 1991,

Business Strengths
Management believes that the following business strengths set the Partnership apart from its competitors and will

enable it to maintain its leadership position in the markets in which it competes, continue to grow revenue and
maintain cash flow stability.




One Stop Source of Transportation Solutions

The Partnership's broad range of specialized services and its national distribution network of 23 facilities provide its
customers with comprehensive solutions for their product transportation nceds. The Partnership provides courier
services, LTL trucking, TL trucking, air freight forwarding services, and premium value added services such as
temperature management services, returns management and appointment delivery. Management believes that the
Partnership's "one-stop” solution is unique in krms of its value added services in the Canadian transportation
industry, providing it with a competitive advantage that is difficult to duphcate.

Specialized Target Market Segments

The Partnership transports goods for customers with high value products n growing industries, particularly
consumer products industries such as health care and entertainment that require specialized logistics and supply
chain capabilities. Management believes that these customers are willing 1o pay a premiun for the higher quality
and value addcd services the Partnership provides, as service failures or product damage can be significantly more
costly than transportation costs. These higher-value items include products such as pharmaceuticals, DVDs and cell
phones. The Partnership has experienced strong growth by selectively targeting and servicing these markets.

Variable Cost Model

The Partnership operates on a variable cost business model. Management believes the Partnership maintains fewer
fixed assets than the majority of its competitors, a strategy that it believes allows it to be more flexible and adaptive
to changes in the marketplace. This model also allows the Partnership to focus on its customers' special requirements
and not on the management of owned assets. The Paninership pursues this strategy through several practices:

. The majority of the Partnership's pickup and delivery drivers arc owner-operators. The use of owner-
operators allows the Partnership to minimize fixed operating costs and capital requirements associated with
the purchase and maintenance of equipment, as well as maintain flexibility in operations.

. The Partnership leases its terminal facilities,

. The Partnership leases the majority of its equipment in order to limit fixed overhead and to maintain a
newer, more reliable and technologically advanced fleet.

. The Partncrship uses Air Canada and Cargojet as its air cargo agents maintaining flexibility over its
intcgrated competitors, as the Partnership does not own any airplane asscts and has the ability to expand
and contract air cargo capacity as necessary.

. The Partnership limits spending on marketing and advertising, focusing on customer retention and
expanding its scrvice offering to its existing customers and relying more on word-of-mouth referrals for
new customer generation.

. The Partnership uses contract warehouse labour for a portion of its warchouse staffing requirements
allowing for greater flexibility in the size of its labour force.

Diversified and Long-Term Customer Relationships

The Partnership currently serves a diversified group of approximately 1,400 customers operating in various
industries and across geographic borders. In fiscal 2006, the Parinership's largest customer accounted for 4.90% of
revenue, the top five customers accounted for 18.54%, the top 10 customers accounted for 31.56% and the top 30
customers accounted for 54.32%. None of the Partnership’s other customers accounted for more than 1% of its
revenue in fiscal 2006. The Partnership’s customers operate in the cntertainment, healthcare, telecommunications
and other industries across Canada and North America. This diversity in customers provides a high degree of



stability to the business. Furthermore, the Partnership's 23 facilities throughout Canada help to limit its exposure to
adverse economic conditions in any geographic market.

The Partnership has established long-term relationships with many of its customers. Management believes that the
Partnership handles the majority of its clients' domestic transportation requirements. The Partnership continues to
cnhance existing customer relationships by delivering value added services and maintaining clear standards of
performance and customer satisfaction throughout its organization. The Partnership’s top 30 customers in fiscal 2006
have been customers for an average of approximately nine years and some have been customers since the Vendor's
inception.

Successful Growth Record

The Partnership has demonstrated a sustainable growth strategy with steady improvement in revenue and operating
cash flows. Management has grown the business through significant new customer development and to a limited
extent through strategic acquisitions.

Predictable and Stable Demand

Management believes that demand for domestic transportation and distribution services is supported by economic
trends and the necessity for consumer product companies to provide their products to consumers in a timely manner.
Management believes that demand for the Partnership's services is stable and recession-resistant. Between 200} and
2003, a period of economic slowdown, the Vendor was able to increase revenue, while continuing to atiract new
customers and add facilities.

Strong Management Team and Significant Retained Interest

Led by Michael Andlaver, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP. who founded the Vendor and the
Business, Management of the GP has played a significant role in establishing what Management believes is the
Partnership's leading market position in the nationat business-to-business transportation of higher value consumer
products, The Partnership has a strong and experienced management tcam with an average of 19 years of experience
in the transportation industry, many of whom had been with the Vendor almost from inception. The Partnership has
strong centraf leadership, as well as solid regional management. With the growth of its business, the Partnership has
compiemented its longstanding senior management team with experienced executives fromn direct transportation
industry competitors,

The Vendor has a 19.9% interest in the Partnership. Mr. Andlauer holds a 100% indirect equity interest in the
Vendor. In addition, AMG, a company controlled by Michael Andlauer, owns 1.9% of the outstanding Units of the
Fund. This retained interest reflects Mr. Andlater's commitment to the Partnership and, together with Management's
participation in the LTIP, aligns Management's interest with the interests of Unithelders

Growth Strategy and Competitive Landscape

The Partnership has a strong record of growth. The Partnership's growth strategy has two key compenents: (i) to
continue to grow revenue and cash flow organically by focusing on increasing sales 1o existing customers, obtaining
profitable new customers and improving operational efficiencies across its fleet and national network of terminals;
and (ii) to grow through acquisitions as consolidation continues in the transportation industry. Management believes
that its national scope, focus on quality and reliable service, value added Jogistical services and integrated air md
ground transporiation solutions network provide the Partnership with advantages that differentiate it from its
competitors.

Organic Growth

The Partnership has historically grown organically by responding to its existing customers’ evolving service
requirements. The Partnership's strategy is to increase revenue through cross-selling existing and new services to its
large and diverse customer base. to kimit the rate of expense growth, to employ technology-driven efficiencies to




increase operating profit and to provide superior service and compectitive pricing. The Partnership employs a
disciplined sales approach designed to retain and expand scrvice offerings (o existing customers and to develop new
cusiomer relationships. The Partnership will continue to focus its sales efforts on its target customers in the
entertainment, pharmaceutical, healthcare, telecommunications and other consumer product industries by leveraging
its principal competitive strength — its customized, integrated national distribution platform.

Acquisitions

The transportation industry is highly fragmented, with the Partnership being one of the growing participants. The
fragmented nature of the industry provides an opportunity for the Partnership to consolidate smaller regional
distributors that could be strategically integrated into its operations.

The industry has already experienced significant consolidation among large operators, but remains fragmented with
many smaller independent and regional operators. The Partnership could enhance its competitive position through
the acquisition of companies that could provide specialized services to its customers or who have customer
relationships that align with the Partnership’s target market focus. Management intends to make selective
acquisitions of appropriate businesses to the extent that Management believes that those acquisitions will (i} result in
increased revenue, and (ii) increase or maintain distributions to Unitholders.

Competition and Strategic Positioning

The Partnership offers a suite of transportation services to its customers creating a single source for transportation
solutions to meet their Canadian transportation nceds. Management believes that this ability differentiates the
Partnership from its competitors. The most significant competitive factors in the industry are reputation, range and
quality of service and price.

The Partnership competes with many different companies and services on a local, regional, and national basis. The
Partnership's competitors include couriers, LTL carriers, TL carmers, various molor carriers, cxpress companics,
freight forwarders, air couriers and other transportation services companies. There are national competitors within
each of the types of transportation service that the Partnership offces and there are also a few large regional or
product line specific carriers and many smaller regional and local competitors within each segment. The Pannership
has a strong reputation for providing consistent quality services and for having the ability to adapt to the needs of its
customers, The Partnership differentiates itself from its competitors by being one of the few companies to provide
the full range of courier, LTL trucking and air freight forwarding services on a national basis.

Products and Services

The Partnership offers a suite of ground and air transportation services that provide its diversified customer base
with the ability to source ali of their transportation needs from a single transportation solutions provider. The
Partnership enhances its service offering with the provision of logistic and value added services. The Partnership's
principal services can be described as follows:

Courier Services

The Partnership has an extensive courier scrvice network providing coast-to-coast courier services to its customers.
The Pannership operates in 23 facilities across Canada processing approximately 25,000 shipments per day (50,000
packages) in 2006. A significant portion of these shipments is fo retail destinations. lts courier network is designed
to handle shipments of up to 300 pounds enabling the Partnership to service a broader range of a customer's
shipment requirements compared to many of its courier competitors {whe are generally restricted to smaller
shipment weighis of 70 pounds by their distribution infrastructure). The flexibility to service this weight category in
a courier format is a distinctive feature of its operations and a competitive advantage, particularly when considering
the trend towards larger shipments tnto retail locations. With daily scheduted dehivery across the country,
Management believes this service to be a highly competitive method for national delivery of these types of
shipments. Intra-provincially, most points are served overnight through the Partnership's extensive ground
operations network.



The Partnership's couricr network services customer requirements ranging from the delivery of only a few packages,
to coordinated mass nationwide distributions such as the release of new DVDs and vidcos for its national DVD and
video rental store clients. Every package is tracked throughout the distribution process from pickup to delivery, with
each status change rccorded through the use of the Partnership’s electronic shipping and tracking management
information system. Thc system provides an audit trail for every package to assure sccure and dependable service
for each transaction. which Management believes is an important service feature for customers shipping high value
and time sensitive consumer products.

The Partnership's courier services accounted for approximately 38% of its revenue in fiscal 2006 (35% in fiscal
2005). Additional value added services offered to complement its courier services include appointment delivery,
returns managemen!, package tracking systems and lempcrature management service. Sce "Description of the
Business — Value Added Services”,

Less than Truckload (LTL) Trucking

Through its 23 facilities the Partnership also provides its customers with an expedited and consistent LTL service
processing approximately 1,800 LTL shipments per day (18.000 picces). By offering its customers both courier and
LTL services, the Partnership is able 1o provide a single source solution to its customers that can reduce the number
of carriers delivering into a consignee's facilities, allowing them to be more efficient. The Partnership has been able
to feverage the package tracking technology developed for its courier shipments and apply it to LTL shipments, a
service that Management believes is provided by few of its competitors.

The Partnership provides this trucking service to its customers through a2 combination of owneroperator and
employee drivers, In more remote locations where the Partnership does not currently maintain a commercial
presence, the Partnership complements its services with partnerships or alliances with other carriers. LTL shipments
are typically destined for customers' distribution centres or wholesalers' facilities.

The Partnership’s LTL services accounted for approximately 48% of its revenue in fiscal 2006 (46% in fiscal 20035).
Additional value added services offered to complement its LTL services include: appointment delivery, returns
management, package tracking systems and temperature management service. See "Description of the Business —
Value Added Services™.

Air Freight Forwarding

Management believes that the Partnership is one of the largest domestic air freight forwarding companies in Canada,
handling on average approximately 1,600 shipments per day {3,500 pieces). The Partnership has longstanding
rclationships and contracts with both Air Canada and Cargojet and guaranteed contracted spice on sclected routes to
meet its customers' air freight needs. Air carge shipments are staged at the Partnership's facilities across the country
and tendered directly to Air Canada or Cargojet for airport to airport furtherance. The Partnership's dedicated siaff
assumes custody of consignments at the receiving airport, which reduces the risk of third-party caused delays and
enhances the security of the goods. The Partnership's air freight forwarding services accounted for approximately
14% of its revenue in fiscal 2006 (19% in fiscal 2005).

Value Added Services

The Partnership provides a full range of value added services to its customers that complement its core
transportation services outlined above. The Partnership differentiates itself from its competitors through its ability to
coordinate nationwide distribution while providing bundled customized transportation solutions to its customers.
The Partnership possesses a unique ability to adapt and respond to the individual needs of its customers, which is
something Management believes few other transportation and distribution companies are able to do. Some of the
differentiated services available to its customers are outlined below.



Leading Package Tracking Systems

The Partnership’s shipping and tracking management information system allows customers and their consignecs to
attain shipment status information including pickup date and time, linehaul scans, out for delivery scans, delivery
scans, proof of delivery and appointment details on-line or through the Parinership's customer service department.
This service is essential to customers desiring just-in-time delivery, increased security and full access to shipment
information. The Partnership also provides chain of signature services offering additional security for high value
products. Each time a shipment is transferred to a facility or driver, a signature is obtained to monitor the shipment
throughout the supplty chain. While many courier companies provide track and trace and chain of signature services,
Management believes that the Partnership's ability to offer this service on both LTL shipments and courier
shipments differentiates it from its competitors.

Temperature Management Services

The Parinership offers its customers heated ground transportation services to protect shipmenis from freezing during
the winter months. The Parinership also offers temperature management services where temperature is maintained
within specified ranges as required by customers with certain types of higher value goods such as pharmaceuticals or
health care products that are sensitive to temperature and temperature fluctuations. The Partnership has made
substantial investments in temperature management services for its trailers and facilities and now has the capability
to monitor and manage temperature conditions for temperature sensitive products throughout the shipment process,
as well as provide documented proof of the temperature environment for the duration of a shipment. Management
belicves that it is at the forefront of developing these services and that this investment will lead to further growth in
its customers in the health care and pharmaceutical industries. Health Canada regulates storage, transportation
methods and procedures that may affect the quality of a drug, including guidelines in respect of the monitoring of
the temperature of drugs. Management believes these guidelines will continve to develop, creating further
requirements for the transportation of pharmaceuticals. The Health Canada guidelines are being adopted by the
pharmaceutical industry and many companies within the industry are using the Partnership as part of their
compliance plan.

The Partnership has 15 facilies with temperature controlled arcas, and 51 linehaul trailers and 61 pickup and
delivery units equipped with and qualified to offer temperature management services. The Partnership has virtually
all its personnel trained in temperature management service related procedures through an in-house training
program.

Appointment Services

As large retailers focus on streamlining their inbound logistics process, Management believes companies are placing
more demands on their suppliers to deliver on time and complete orders. As part of this initiative, many retatlers
require appointment deliveries and may levy significant penalties on suppliers for service failures. Through its
network of facilities and personne) dedicated to this function, the Partnership offers its customers consistent
standardized appointment services 10 all major centres in Canada. The ability to meet such standards, particularly
with respect to high value goods, has allowed the Partnership to consolidate customer relationships. Its ability to
provide rcliable appointment service has made the Partnership a preferred carrier for several leading retail and
distribution companies such as Fuimre Shop Lid., Loblaw Companies Limited, London Drupgs Limited and
McKesson Canada.

Returns Management

The Partnership manages both the delivery, return and potential recalls for its customers (e.g., DVDs,
pharmaceuticals and other consumer products). Although returns typically make up only a small portion of a
customer's total shipping volume, they can represent a significant cost if the product is Tost or damaged. Returns can
also require a significantly greater effort for the customer to process if proper procedures are not followed by the
transportation service company, particularly in the case of high value and time sensitive products such as
pharmaceuticals, With staff dedicated to this service, the Partnership's ability 1o effectively manage this process
differentiates it from many other transportation companies. Part of the Partnership’s success in establishing a strong




market position in providing transportation services to the entertainment industry is due to this ability to provide
returns management services.

Facilities

The Partnership offers s transportation solutions through a nationwide network of facilities located in 23 centres
across Canada. The Partnership’s headquarters are in the Greater Toronto Area (Etobicoke) where it has its largest
terminal. The Partnership's facilities are designed as mixed-use facilities and are able 1o handle courier, LTL, and air
freight forwarding shipments in the same facility. The facilities are designed to maximize cfficient handling of
shipments by providing warehousing. staging and distribution functions to the transportation process. With
approximately 838,000 square feet of terminal facilities, the Partnership has the necessary space to meet its
customers' short term storage needs

As part of its variable cost mode] of operations, the Partnership leases all of its facilities in an cffort to limit capital
costs. Below is a list of the Partnership's facilities:

Location Square Feet Lease Expiry Date
CaAlBATY ottt bt b et bbb 69,433 August 2011
Comwall....... 9,171 October 2009
B AMOMEON <ottt emmeee e ee e e emen b e smsemr e e ee et aeans 39,789 October 2013
Etobicoke (Head Office) ...t 8,580 Dccember 2008
ERODICOKE ...t et rasnema s s snn s s s eman 340,081 December 2012
2 Ei LU 0 O 9,145 October 2008
Hamilton... 12,363 Meonth-te-month
Hanover... 2.500 Meonth-to-month
Kelowna...... 6,000 August 2007
Lethbride oo 3.000 March 2010
London......covmecene e 10,333 July 2007
Moncton.. 12,750 February 2013
MontRal ... e 125,000 February 2020
Nanaimo ......... Shared space n/a
INAPANBE ottt tem e s s e s ene s st eames st cea b e 2.000 November 2007
Ottawa ..., 17,250 July 2007
QUEDBEC Gl ot e et emen et 12,763 May 2007
T [T O Y U O O 3,100 Scptember 2008
Regina........... it6i6 July 2011
Saskatoon.....ceicicneccceinins 10,000 July 2008
Vancouver,.. 106,520 February 2016
VICLORR «..oocevevcvrerresreecseesesenree s vrsernssereseass 4,650 April 2010
Windsor......... 3,728 September 2009
Winnipeg...... 26,794 January 2010
Total Square Feet. 846,566

The Partnership believes it has good relationships with its landlords and expects to extend its leases or obtain
suitable alternatives as the leases approach the end of their terms. Management belicves that alternative facilities
would be available to the Partnership on market terms.



Equipment

As of December 31, 2006, the Partnership operated 269 trailers and 96 power units. In addition, the Partnership has
access to an additional 160 power units under contract with owner operators.

Power Units Number of Units
Leased......... IR, “ rrereeanrreeren 93

DIWIIE ..o rrrreves v vrerrsr e rerrre s es s e e sesbearse b aseRe s b et sbesbeseeasasrbesabersenabe s saabe s besabe e sbrbensssane sbensmns 3

TOUBL . oottt e sas et e seae b1 e b e s b sebessebabe b s S ammnns et e b e e EeAes S e me e A s badea SR b e bemadea b et baaeArasnsareaban 96
Trailers Number of Units
Leased .. 248
Owned........... 21
Total............ ceemereneeieiaes .- oot seeren 269

The Partnership monitors the age of its equipment and maintains a modern fleet. The average lcased power unit is
1.6 years old with the majority of the leases expiring between 2010 and 2012. The average leased trailer unit is 2
years old with the majority of the leases cxpiring between 2012 and 2014. Most of the Parinership’s power unit
leases provide that maintenance costs arc borne by the lessor. Currently, 51 linehaul trailers and 61 pickup and
delivery units are equipped with and qualificd 1o offer temperature management services.

Capital Expenditures

The Partnership’s capital expenditures can be categorized as maintenance capital and growth capital,

Maintenance Capital Expenditures

With its variable cost model and its strategy to lcase rather than own assets, the Parinership does not require
extensive annual maintenance capital expenditures on equipment (most power units include maintenance by the
lessor, rather than by the Partnership), fixtures or facilities to support its operations. Mainlenance capital
expenditures arc funded by cash flow from operations. Although Management docs not currently expect any
substantial increases in its maintenance capital expenditures in the near future, there are risks and uncertainties that
may affect maintenance capital expenditure requirements, which include the occurrence of unforeseen events such
as fire, flood, natural disaster, accident, technology failure and vandalism.

Growth Capital Expenditures

In addition 1o maintenance capital expenditures, the Partnership makes, from time to time, expenditures to promote
growth — principally the addition of new terminals and information management systems to better service its
customers, broaden its geographic network or better monitor its operations. Growth capital expenditures are funded
through cash held back from distributions to the Fund and under the Credit Facility. Growth related expenditures are
determined on a case-by-case basis. In determining whether to make those expenditures, the Partnership generally
assesses its capacity to scrvice its customers to ensure that the expenditure will cnhance cxisting cash flow.
Management believes there will be an increase in growth capital expenditure for 2007 due to the move to a new
facility in Toronto in 2007, which is expected to enable the Partnership to process larger volumes of freight than it
can using the existing facility.




Personnel

As of December 31, 2006, the Partnership employed or engaged approximately 900 individuals across Canada
serving several different functions. The breakdown of employee and independent contractor functions can be seen
below

Category umber
Owner-Operator Drivers 263
Employees
Operations {including Partnership drivers) 406
AGMIMISIIALION .cocereere et ras e sersraes 159
Management .......cocooivnevernreneens 44
Sales .... 18
627
Total 890

Management believes it has good relationships with its employees, none of whom are subject to collective
bargaining agreements. Management believes that the Partnership has experienced lower than industry average
lurnover rates among its drivers through its favourable human resource policies including offering drivers
competitive compensation packages, focusing on driver safety and training, and operating on scheduled linehaut
runs. The general employment pressures in Western Canada, parnticularly Alberta, are being counteracted with
initiatives such as revised compensation and employee relocation

Information Management Systems

The Partnership has a comprehensive shipping and tracking information management system designed to support its
strategic goals, the core of which, Andlauver Transportation Logistics Automation System or "ATLAS", is internally
developed and supportcd. This program was implemented over the last four years using up-to-date hardware and
software development. ATLAS is a fully integrated system that supports the Partnership's finance, administration,
operations, sales, and customer service departments. A key feature of ATLAS is the ability to manage all shipments
regardless of mode or size giving full scanning, tracing, rating, and rcporting capabilities.

The Partnership has invested and continues to invest in information technology and is committed to maintaining
leading edge technology. In addition to the core ATLAS system, the Partnership has developed and implemented
systems for customer shipping, clectronic data interchange, image processing, costing, pickup and delivery dispatch
and linchaul management. Emerging market opportunities such as pharmaceutical temperature needs are
aggressively supported with information technolegy development. The Partnership has recently developed and
impiemented an on-board real-time temperature management system that Management believes represents the state
of the art for temperature monitoring and management.

Management believes that competition increasingly is based on a distributor's ability to integrate its transportation
and information systems with its customers’ systems to provide unique transportation solutions at competitive prices.
Management believes that the Partnership is a leader in systems integration. ATLAS' features include capabilities to
enhance the processing of reverse logistics freight, invoicing and accounts receivable management and on-time
perforthance measurement.

Safety and Insurance
The Partnership prides itself on its safety record and its safety management program. The Partnership has put in

place policies that are designed to contribute to and to promote a safe work environment. The Partnership maintains
a high level of safety awarcness and seeks to continually improve safety performance.




The Partnership carries broad insurancc coverage for its operations, including motor vehicle liability insurance,
cargo insurance and commercial gencral hability insurance. Management believes that the Partnership has relatively
low insurance costs compared to the gencral trucking industry average as it employs primarily owner-operators in its
linehaul and pickup and delivery operations. Owner-operators own their equipment and thus are motivated to
maintain their equipment at very high levels. The Partnership’s owner-operator compensation policies have allowed
the Partnership to retain drivers with more experience, which also assists the Partnership in managing its insurance
costs.

Fuel Costs

The cost of fuel represents a significant component of operating costs in the transportation industry. The trend
toward higher fuel costs since mid-2003 has exerted significant cost pressure on the industry. The Partnership has
historically been able to pass on substantially all fuel price increases to its customers through fuel surcharges, which
tt adjusts weekly.

Regulation

The transportation industry in Canada is subjcct to federal and provincial laws and regulations. The Partnership is
required to comply with laws, licences, permits and regulations of each jurisdiction in which it operates including
safety regulations that affect the safety of vehicles and the manner in which they are operated. Management believes
that the Partnership holds all necessary licences, permits and registrations for its current and expected operations.

Environmental

The Partnership's operations and properties are subject to environmental laws and requirements in the jurisdictions
in which it operates relating but not limited to air emissions and transport and warchousing of potentially harmful
products. The Partnership is a certified carrier of dangerous goods and holds the necessary licences, equipment and
training to provide such services. While not a major pan of its business, the Partnership docs from time to time
transport sensitive materials for its pharmaceutical and health care customers.

Management does not believe that the financial and operational effects of environmental protection requirements on
capital expenditures, earnings and the competitive position of the Partnership in the current financial year and in
future years will be material.

Trademarks
The Partnership has three registered and two pending trademarks for use in Canada, including the "ATS" logo.

Contracts

Management does not currently believe that there are any contracts upon which the Partnership's business is
substantially dependant, including any contract to sell the major part of the Partnership's products or services or to
purchase the major part of the Partnership’s requirement for goods, services or raw materials. In addition,
Management does not currently believe that there are any franchises or licences or other agrcements to use a patent,
formula, trade secret, process or trade name upon which the Partnership's business depends.

Management does not currently believe that there any aspects of the Partnership's business that could reasonably be
expected to be affected in the current financial year by the renegotiation or termination of contracts or subcontracts.

Seasonality

The activitics of the Fund are subject to general demand for freight transportation. Histortcally, demand has been
relatively stable with the exception of the winter months, in which demand slightly decreases, and the fall months, in
which demand increases. Consequently, the Fund’s activities in the last six months of the year are usually stronger
than the first six months of the year,
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RETAINED INTEREST AND EXCHANGE RIGHTS
Retained Interest

The Vendor owns 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units representing 19.9% of the LP Units. See "Corporate Structure —
Intercorporate Relationships” and "General Development of the Business - Three Year History of the Fund".

Exchange Rights

The Exchangeable LP Units are indirectly exchangeable for Units on the basis of one Unit for each Exchangeable
LP Unit. The exchange procedure may be initiated by the holder of an Exchangeable LP Unit at any time and from
time to time by delivering to the GP, as escrow agent under the Exchange Agreement, a notice of exchange and a
unit certificate in respect of that portion of its Exchangeable LP Units to be exchanged, duly endorsed in blank for
transfer. The GP will give notice of the proposed exchange to ATSOT, which will acquire Units from the Fund in
consideration for the issuance of ATSOT Units in the number required to complete the exchange. ATSOT will
deliver to the GP, as escrow agent, the requisite number of Units. The GP will effect the exchange procedure by
causing to be issued in the name of ATSOT a unit certificate for that number of Ordinary LP Umits to be issued on
the exchange, entering ATSOT i the register of limited partners of the Partnership in respect of such additional
Ordinary LP Units, causing the Exchangeable LP Units so tendered for exchange to be cancelled, and delivering 10
the previous holder of the Exchangeable LP Units that number of Units of the Fund to be received on the exchange.

Yoting Rights

Holders of Exchangeable LP Units also hold Special Voting Units of the Fund that are attached to, and are
evidenced by, the certificates representing the Exchangeable LP Units. The Special Voting 1nits entitle the holders
thereof to vote in all votes of Voting Unitholders {including resolutions in writing) as if they were the holders of the
number of Units that they would receive if all their Exchangeable LP Units were exchanged for Units. See "ATS
Andlauer Income Fund — Units and Special Voting Units",

Dilution Rights and Economic Equivalence

The Exchange Agreement provides that in the event that there is a change in the number of Exchangeable LP Units,
or the number of Units outstanding as a result of a subdivision, consolidation, reclassification, capital reorganization
or similar change in the Exchangeable LP Units or Units (other than a consolidation of Units immediately following
a distribution of Units in lieu of a cash disiribution), the exchange ratio will be adjusted by the Fund. The Exchange
Agreement also provides that the Fund will not issue or distribute Units to the holders of all or substantially all of
the then outstanding Units (other than a distribution of Units in lieu of cash distribution), issue or distribute rights,
options or warrants to the holders of ail or substantially all of the then outstanding Units or issue or distribute
property of the Fund to the holders of all or substantiatly all of the then outstanding Units unless, in each case, the
econontic equivalent thereof (as determined by the Trustees) is issued or distributed simultaneously to the holders of
Exchangeable LP Units.

Reclassification of Units

I at any time while any Exchangeable LP Unit is outstanding there is any reclassification of the Units outstanding,
any change of the Units into other units or securities or any other capital reorganization or distribution of the Fund
or any consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement, merger or other form of business combination of the Fund with or
into any other entity resulting in a reclassification of the outstanding Units (other than in certain events specified in
the Exchange Agreement), then the Exchange Rights will be adjusted in a manner approved by the Trustecs, acting
reasonably, so that holders of Exchangeable LP Units will be entitled to receive, in liew of the number of Units
which they would otherwise have been entitled, the kind and number or amount of securities that they would have
been entitled to receive as a result of such event if, on the effective date thereof, they had beun the registered holder




of the number of Units which they would have received had they exercised the Exchange Rights immediately before
the effective date of any such transaction.

Registration Rights

The Vendor Group has been granted "demand” and "piggy back” registration rights by the Fund that will enable
them to require the Fund to file a prospectus and otherwise assist with a public offering of Units subject to certain
limitations, with the Fund's expenses to be bomne by the Vendor Group (or on a pro rata basis if both the Vendor
Group and the Fund are offering Units) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Exchange Agreement, In the
event of a "piggy back™ offering, the Fund's financing requirements are to take priority.

ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

The Fund is an unincorporated open-ended trust governcd by the laws of the Province of Ontario and created
pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. The Fund is a "mutual fund trust” for the purposes of the Tax Act, but the Fund
ts not a mutual fund under applicable securities laws. Accordingly, the Fund cannot carry on business and its
purposes are limited under the Tax Act to investing and activities ancillary to investing.

The Fund is not a trust company and is not registered under applicable legislation governing trust companies as it
does not carry on or intend to carry on the business of a trust company. The Units are not "deposits” within the
meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada) and are not insured under the provisions of
that Act or any other legislation.

The following is a summary description of the material provisions of the Declaration of Trust. This summary is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Declaration of Trust & copy of which can be obtained on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com

Activities of the Fund

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund's operations and activities shall be restricted to:

(a) acquiring, investing in, holding, transferring. disposing of or otherwise dealing with the debt and equity
securitics of any of the ATS Andlauer Entities, and other corporations, partnerships, trusts or other Persons
involved, directly or indirectly, in the freight transponation business and businesses related, anciflary or
incidenal thereto, and such other investments as the Trustees may determine;

(b) acquiring, investing in, holding, transferring. disposing of or otherwise dealing with securities issued by, or
loans made to any of the ATS Andlauer Entities, or any other business entity or other Person in which a
ATS Andlauer Entity has or is concurrently acquiring an interest;

{c) investing in securities of other issuers that mect the Fund's investment criteria;

(d) disposing of all or any part of the property of the Fund;

(c) holding cash in interest bearing accounts with Canadian financial institutions or investing such monies in
Permitted Investments;

(f) issutng Units, Special Voting Units and other securities of the Fund including, without limitation, rights,
warrants, convertible securities or options to acquire Units or Special Voting Units or other sccuritics of the
Fund;

(g) issuing debt securities {(including debt securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, Units, Special

Vating Units or other securities of the Fund) or otherwise borrowing, morigaging, pledging. charging.
granting a security interest in or otherwise encumbering any of the Fund's assets as security for any of its
obligations, liabilities or indebtedness;




{h) guaranteeing (as guarantor, surety or co-principal obligor) the payment of any indebtedness, liability or
obligation of any ATS Andlauer Entity or the performance of any obligation of any ATS Andlauer Entity,
and mortgaging, pledging, charging, granting a security interest in or othcrwise encumbering all or any part
of the Fund's assets as security for such guarantee and subordinating its rights under any Redemption Notes
issued by an ATS Andlauer Entity to other indebtedness and obligations;

(i) purchasing, repurchasing or redeeming securities issued by the Fund;
() satisfying the obligations, liabilitics or indebtedness of the Fund;
(k) performing its obligations under the Administration Agreement, the Securityholders Agreement, the

Exchange Agreement and all matters ancillary thereto; and

)] undertaking such other activities, or taking such actions {including investing in securitics), related to or in
connection with the foregoing or as contemplated by the Declaration of Trust or as may be approved by the
Trustees from time to time,

provided that the Fund shall not undertake any activity, take any action, or purchase or authorize the purchase of any
investment that would not be allowed for a mutual fund trust under subsection 132(6) of the Tax Act. In connection
with this duty, the Trustees have broad authority and are entitled to take such actions as they consider necessary or
appropriate in accordance with the Declaration of Trust to preserve the mutual fund status of the Fund, including as
described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund -— Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership”.

Units and Special Voting Units

The beneficial intercsts in the Fund is divided into interests of two classes, described and designated as "Units” and
"Special Voting Units”, respectively. An unlimited number of Units and Special Voting Units are issuable pursuant
to the Declaration of Trust. Each Unit is transferable and represents an equal undivided beneficial interest in any
distributions from the Fund whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other amounts and in the net assets
of the Fund in the event of 2 termination or winding-up of the Fund. The Units are not subject to future calls or
assessments and cntitle the holder thereof to one vote for each whole Unit held at all mectings of Voting
Unitholders. Except as described under "Redemption Right” below. the Units have no conversion, retraction,
redemption or pre-emptive rights,

The Special Voting Units are not cntitled to any interest or share in the Fund, in any distribution from the Fund
whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other amounts, or in the net asscis of the Fund in the event of a
termination or winding-up of the Fund. Special Voting Units may, however, be redeemed by the holder at any time
for nominal consideration.

Special Voting Units may be issued in series and are only issued in connection with or in relation to Exchangeable
LP Units and, if the Trustees so determine, other securities exchangeable, directly or indirectly, for Units
(collectively, "Exchangeable Securities''), in each case for the purpose of providing voting rights with respect 10
the Fund to the hoiders of Exchangeable Securities. Special Voting Units are issued in conjunction with, and are
attached to, the Exchangeable LP Units (or other Exchangeable Securities) to which they relate, and are evidenced
only by the certificates representing such Exchangeable Securitics. Special Voting Units are not transferable
separately from the Exchangeable Securities to which they are attached. Each Special Voting Unit entitles the holder
thereof to that number of votes at any mecting of Voting Unitholders that is equal to the number of Units that may
be obtained upon the exchange (direct or indirect) of the Exchangeable LP Unit or other Exchangeable Security to
which it is attached. Upon the exchange or conversion of an Exchangeable Security for Units, the Special Voting
Unit that is attached to such Exchangeable Security will immediatcly be cancelled without any further action of the
Trustees, and the former holder of such Special Voting Unit will ceasc to have any rights with respect thereto.

Issued and outstanding Units and Special Voting Units may be subdivided or consolidated from time to time by the
Trustecs without the approval of Voting Unitholders. No centificates will be issued for fractional Units and fractional
Units will not entitle the holders thereof to vote.




Issuance of Units

The Fund may issuc Units or rights to acquire Units at those times, to those persons, for that consideration and on
the terms and conditions that the Trustees determine, including pursvant to any Unitholder rights plan or any
incentive option or other compensation plan established by the Fund. Units may be issued in satisfaction of any non-
cash distributions of the Fund to Unitholders on a pro rata basis, The Declaration of Trust provides that immediately
after any pro rata distribution of Units to all Unitholders in satisfaction of any non-cash distribution, the number of
outstanding Units will be consolidated such that cach Unitholder will hold after the consolidation the same number
of Units as the Unitholder held before the non-cash distribution (except where 1ax was required to be withheld in
respect of the Unitholders share of the distribution as described below). In this case, each centificate representing a
number of Units prior to the non-cash distribution is deemed to represent the same number of Units after the non-
cash distribution and the consolidation. Where amounts so distributed represent income, non-resident Unitholders
will be subject to withholding tax and, accordingly, the consolidation will not result in such non-resident Unitholder
holding the same number of Units, Such non-resident Unitholders will be required to surrender the certificates (if
any) representing their original Units in exchange for a certificate representing their post-conselidation Units.

Trustees

The Fund must have a minimum of three Trustees and a maximum of seven Trustecs, the majority of whom must be
residents of Canada (within the meaning of the Tax Act). The Trustees supervise the activities and manage the
affairs of the Fund. The Trustees also scrve as the trustees of ATSOT and as directors of the GP. See "Trustees,
Directors and Officers".

Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Vendor Group has the right to clect onc trustee so long as the
Vendor Group holds, directly or indirectly, Units or LP Units representing (on a diluted basis) not less than 10% of
the outstanding Units. The remaining Trustees are selected by Voting Unitholders. The same individuals are
Trustees, trustees of ATSOT and dircctors of the GP. Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Trustees are
required to elect the Trustees as the trustces of ATSOT and under the terms of the ATSOT Declaration of Trust, the
trustecs of ATSOT are required to elect the trustees of ATSOT as directors of the GP.

Trustees, other than the Trustee appeointed by the Vendor Group, are appointed at each annual meeting of Voting
Unitholders 1o hold office for a term expiring at the close of the nexi annual meeting. A quorum of the Trustees,
being a majority of the Trustees then holding office, may fill a vacancy in the Trustees, except a vacancy resulting
from an increase in the number of Trusiees (other than as provided below) or from a failure of the Voting
Unitholders to elect the required number of Trustees at a meeting of the Voting Unitholders called for such purpose.
In the absence of a quorum of Trustees, or if the vacancy has arisen from a failure of the Voting Unitholders to elect
the required number of Trustees at a meeting of the Voting Unitholders called for such puipose, the Trustees must
forthwith call a special meeting of the Voting Unitholders to fill the vacancy. If the Trustees fail to call such meeting
or if there ae not Trustees then in office, any Voting Unitholder may call the meeting. The Trustees may, with the
consent of the Vendor Group for so long as it has the right to appoint a Trustee, prior to the first annual meeting of
Voting Unitholders or between annual meetings of Voting Unitholders, appoint one or more additional Trustees to
serve until the next annual meeting of Voting Unitholders, but the number of additional Trustees so appointed may
not at any time exceed one-third of the number of Trustees who held office at the expiration of the immediately
preceding annual meeting of Voting Unitholders.

A Trustee may resign upon written notice to the Fund and may be removed by a resolution passed by a majority of
the Voting Unitholders. A vacancy created by such removal may be filled at the same meeting, failing which it may
be Hlled by the remaining Trustees.

The Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to its terms and conditions, the Trustces will have full, absolute and
exclusive power, control and authority over the assets of the Fund and over the affairs of the Fund to the same extent
as if the Trustees were the sole and absolute legal and beneficial owners of the assets of the Fund, and may, in
respect of the assets of the Fund, exercise any and all rights, powers and privileges that could be exercised by a legal
and beneficial owner thereof. Subject to such terms and cenditions, the Trustees are responsible for, among other
things: (i) supervising the activities and managing the investments and the affairs of the Fund; (ii} maintaining
records and providing reports to Voting Unitholders: (iii) effecting payments of distributable cash from the Fund to
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Unitholders; (iv} acting for, voting on behalf of and representing the Fund as a holder of ATSOT Units and other
securitics; {v) voting in favour of the Fund's nominees to scrve as trustees of ATSOT; and (vi) causing ATSOT to
volc in favour of the Fund's nominees as directors of the GP.

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Trustees must act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best
interests of the Fund and in connection therewith must exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a
reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. The Declaration of Trust provides that each
Trustee and officer of the Fund, as well as former Trustees and officers, and their respective heirs and legal
representatives, will be entitled to indemnification from the assets of the Fund in respect of the exercise of that
person's powers, and the discharge of that person's dutics, provided that the person acted honestly and in good faith
with a vicw to the best interest of the Fund and, in the casc of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that
is enforced by a monetary penalty, where the person had reasonable grounds for believing that his or her conduct
was lawful.

Cash Distributions

The Fund currently makes monthly cash distributions of its available distributable cash to Unitholders to the extent
determined prudent by the Trustees. The amount of cash available for distribution will be equatl to the distributions
(if any) on or in respect of the ATSOT Units owned by the Fund and all other amounts, if any, from any other
investments {rom time to time held by the Fund received in such period, less amounts that are paid, payable,
incurred or provided for in such period in connection with: {a} administrative expenses and other obligations of the
Fund; {(b) amounts that may be paid by the Fund in connection with any cash redemptions or repurchases of Units;
(c) satisfaction of debt service or other obligations of the Fund on account of both principal and interest; and (d) any
amount that the Trustees may reasonably consider to be necessary to provide for the payment of any costs, expenses,
obligations or liabilities including any tax liabtlity of the Fund, that have been or are reasenably expected to be
incurred in the activities and operations of the Fund (to the exient that such costs, expenses, obligations or liabilities
have not otherwis ¢ been taken into account in the calculation of the available distributable cash of the Fund).

The Fund may make additional distributions in excess of the aforementioned monthly distributions during the year,
as the Trustces may determine. The distribution deciared in respect of the month ending December 31 in each year
will include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of the Fund for such
year as 1s necessary to ensure that the Fund will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act in such
year.

Any income of the Fund that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that the Fund
does not have any income tax liability under Part | of the Tax Act, be distributed to Unitholders in the form of
additional Units. Such additional Units will be issucd pursuant to applicable exemptions under applicable secunties
laws, discretionary exemptions granted by applicable sccuritics regulatory autheritics or a prospectus or similar
filing.

The Fund currently makes monthly cash distributions to Unitholders of record on the Jast business day of each
month or such other date as may be determined from time to time by the Trustees and the distributions are paid
generally on the 15th day of the following month. See "General Development of the Business — Three Year History
of the Fund” and "Distributions”.

Unitholders who are non-residents of Canada will be required to pay all withholding taxes payable in respect of any
distributions of income by the Fund, whether such distributions are in the form of cash or additional Units, Non-
restdents should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of investing in the Units.

The Fund, ATSOT and the Partnership have considerable discretion in determining the amount of cash distributions.
Cash distributions are not guaranteed and will fluctuate with, among other things, the Partnership's performance. See
"Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Structure of the Fund — Cash Distributions”.
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Redemption Right

Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the holders thereol upon delivery to the Fund of a duly completed
and properly executed notice requesting redemption in a form approved by the Trustees specifying the number of
Units to be redeemed. As the Units will be issued in book-entry form, a Unitholder who wishes 1o exercise the
redemption right will be required to obtain a redemption notice form from the Unitholder's investment dealcr. As of
the close of business on the date the Units are surrendered for redemption, all rights to and under the Units tendered
for redemption shall (subject to the following) be surrendered and the holder thercof shall be entitled to receive a
price per Unit (the "Redemption Price”) equal to the lesser of:

(a) 90% of the Market Price of the Units on the principal stock exchange on which the Units are listed (or, if
the Units are not listed on any stock exchange, on the principal market on which the Units are quoted for
trading) during the peried of the last 10 rading days during which the Uniis traded on such stock exchange
or market ending immediately prior to the date on which the Units were tendered for redemption; and

(b) the Closing Market Price of the Units on the date on which the Units were tendered for redemption on the
principal stock exchange on which Units are listed (or, if Units are not listed on any stock exchange, on the
principat market on which the Units are quoted for trading).

For the purposes of detcrmining the Redemption Price, "Market Price” for a specified trading period will be the
amount equal to the weighted average of the trading prices of the Units on the applicable market or exchange for
each of the trading days on which there was a trade during the specified trading day period; provided that if there
was trading on the applicable exchange or market for fewer than five of the trading days during the specified trading
day period, "Market Price” for a specified trading period will be the average of the following prices established for
each of the trading days during the specified trading day period: the average of the last bid and ask prices for cach
trading day on which there was no trading and the weighted average trading prices of the Units for each trading day
on which there was trading. For the purposes of determining the Redemption Price, "Closing Market Price” will be:
(i) an amount equal to the closing price of the Units on the applicable market or exchange if there was a trade on the
specified date and the applicable market or exchange provides a closing price; (11) an amount equal to the average of
the highest and lowest prices of Units on the applicable market or exchange if there was trading on the specified date
and the applicable market or exchange provides only the highest and lowest trading prices of Units traded on a
particular day; or (iii) the average of the last bid and ask prices on the applicable market or exchange if there was no
trading on the specified date.

The agpregate Redemption Price payable by the Fund in respect of any Units surrendered for redemption during any
calendar month will be satisfied by way of a cash payment by the Fund no later than the last day of the calendar
month following the calendar month in which the Units were tendered for redemption, provided that the entitlement
of the Unitholders to receive cash upon the redemption of their Units is subject to the limitations that:

(a) the total amount payable by the Fund in respect of such Units and all other Units tendered for redemption in
the same calendar month may not exceed $50,000, provided that the Trustees may, in their sole discretion,
waive such limitation in respect of all Units tendered for redemption in any calendar moenth;

(b) at the time such Units are tendered for redemption, the outstanding Units must be listed for trading on a
stock exchange or quoted on another market that, in the sole discretion of the Trustees, provides a
representative fair market value price for the Units; and

{c) the normal trading of Units must not be suspended or halted on any stock exchange on which the Units are
listed (or, if not listed on a stock exchange, on any market on which the Units are quoted for trading) on the
date that the Units are tendered for redemption or for more than five trading days during the 10 trading day
period prior to the date on which the Units are tendered for redemption,

If a Unitholder is not entitled to receive cash upon the redemption of Units as a result of one or more of the
foregoing limitations, then cach Unit tendered for redemption will, subject to any applicable regulatory approvals,
be redeemed by way of a distribution in specie of Redemption Notes. Where the Fund makes a distribution in specie
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of Redemption Notes on the redemption of Units of a Unitholder, the Fund currently intends to designate to that
Unitholder any income or capital gain realized by the Fund as a result of the distribution of Redemption Notes 10 the
Unithelder on the redemption of such Units.

It is anticipated that the redemption right described above will not be the primary mechanism for holders of Units to
dispose of their Units. Redemption Notes that may be distributed in specie 10 Unitholders in connection with a
redemption will not be listed on any stock exchange and no market is expected to devclop in Redemption Notes and
they may be subject to resale restrictions under applicable securities laws. Redemption Notes so distributed may not
be qualified investments for trusts poverned by Exempt Plans depending upon the circumstances at the time.

Terms of Redemption Notes

The following is a summary of the general terms of any Redemption Notes that may be issued by the Fund. The
following summary assumes such Redemption Notes are issued by the Fund. If the Redempiion Notes are issued by
a subsidiary of the Fund, the following description will apply equally in all respects to such subsidiary of the Fund.

Redemption Notes witl be issuable in Canadian currency in denominations of $100 and integral muhiples of $100.
Each Redemption Note will maturc on a date determined at the time of issuance (provided that in no event shall the
maturity date be sct at a date subsequent to the first business day following the fifth anniversary of the date of
issuance of such note) and bear interesi at a market rate of interest determined at the time of issuance, in each case as
determined by the Trustees, and the interest shall be payable monthly, in arrears, with such payment to be made on
the 15th day of the month following the month to which such payment relates. On maturity, the Redemption Notes
will be repaid by paying to the holder thereof the principal amount of the outstanding Redemption Notes that have
then matured, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon.

The Redemption Notes will be redecmable in whole or in part at the option of the Fund prior to maturity. The
redemption price will be equal to the principal amount of the Redemption Notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid
interest, The redemption price will generally be payable in cash, however, if the Fund chooses to redeem some or all
of any outstanding Redemption Notes, the Fund may, in its discretion, issue other unsecurcd promissory notes of the
Fund in full or partial payment of the redemption price for such outstanding Redemption Notes.

The Redemption Notes will be unsecured debt obligations of the Fund. Payment of the principal amount and interest
on the Redemption Notes will be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of the principal of and
accrued and unpaid interest on, and all other amounts owing in respect of, all senior indebtedness, which will be
defined as all indebtedness, Tiabilities and obligations of the Fund which, by the terms of the instrument creating or
evidencing the same, is not expressed to rank in right of payment in subordination to or pari passu with the
indebtedness evidenced by the Redemption Notes. The Redemption Notes will provide that upon any distribution of
the assets of the Fund in the event of any dissolution, liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceedings
relative to the Fund, the holders of all such senior indebtedness will be entitled to receive payment in full before the
holders of the Redemption Notes are entitled to receive any payment.

Repurchase of Units

The Fund will be allowed, from time to time, 10 purchase Units for cancellation in accordance with applicable
securities faws and the rules prescribed under applicable stock exchange or regulatory policies.

Meetings of Voting Unitholders

The Declaration of Trust provides that meetings of Voting Uhitholders will be required to be called and held
annually, for the purpose of: (i) the presentation of the audited financial statements of the Fund for the immediately
preceding fiscal year; (ii) the election of Trustees (other than the Trustee appointed by the Vendor Group); (iii) the
appointment of auditors of the Fund for the ensuing year; (iv) gencrally. any other matter that requires a resolution
of Voting Unitholders; and {v} transacting such other business as the Trustees may determine or as may be properly
brought before the meeting. The Declaration of Trust provides that the Voting Unitholders will be entitled to pass
resolutions that will bind the Fund only with respect to:
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{a) the election or removal of Trustees, subject to the right of the Vendor Group to appoint a Trustee;

{b) any amalgamation, arrangement, other merger or capital reorganization of the Fund with any other entity,
cxcept in conjunction with an internal reorganization ot the acquisition by the Fund or 2 ATS Andlauer
Entity of the securitics or asscts of another entity;

(c) the appointment or removal of nominees of the Fund chosen by the Voting Unitholders to serve as trustees
of ATSOT, except filling casual vacancies;

(d) the appointment or removal of the auditors of the Fund;

{e) the appointment of an inspector to investigate the performance by the Trustees in respect of their respective
responsibilities and duties in respect of the Fund;

(N the approval of amendments to the Declaration of Trust (as described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund
— Amendments to the Declaration of Trust™);

{g) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Fund;

{h) the exercise of certain voting rights attached to the securities of ATSOT or the Partnership held directly or
indirectly by the Fund, subject to the provisions of any sccurityholders agreement including, without
limitation, the Securityholders Agreement;

(i) the election of nominees of the Fund to act as directors of the GP or the removal thereof, except filling
casual vacancies;

) the dissolution of the Fund prior to the end of 11s term; and

(k) such other business as the Trustees may determine or as may properly be brought before the meeting,
including, without limitation, any other matters required by securities law. stock exchange rules or other
laws or regulations to be submitted to Voting Unitholders for their approval, including, if so required, the
ratification of any Unitholder rights plan, distribution reinvestment plan, Unit purchase plan, Unit option
plan or other compensation plan.

No other action taken by Voting Unitholders or any other resolution of the Voting Unitholders at any meeting will in
any way bind the Trustees.

Resolutions (i) electing or removing nominees of the Fund as Trustees, (ii) appointing or removing the auditors of
the Fund, (iii) with respect to the exercise of certain voting rights attached to the securities of ATSOT or the
Partnership held, directly or indirectly, by the Fund, (iv) where applicable, ratifying any Unitholder rights plan,
distribution reinvestment plan, Unit purchase plan, Unit option plan or other comnpensation plan requiring Voting
Unitholder approval under securities law, stock exchange rules or other laws or repulfations, and (v) where
applicable, relating to matters required by securities law, stock exchange rules or other laws or regulations to be
submitted to Voting Unitholders, must be passed by a simple majority of the votes cast by Voting Unitholders. The
balance of the foregoing matters must be passed by a resolution of the Voting Unithelders passed by not less than 66
2/3% of the votes cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Voting Unitholders called for the purpose of
approving such resolution, or approved in writing by the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of the Voting Units
entitled to vote on such resolution (a "Special Resolution™).

Subject to the foregoing limitations, a meeting of Voting Unitholders may be convened at any time and for any
purpose by the Trustees and must be convened if requisitioned in writing by the holders of not less than 5% of the
Voting Units then outstanding. A requisition must state in reasonable detail the business proposed to be transacted at
the meeting,
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Voting Unitholders may attend and vote at all mectings of the Voting Unitholders cither in person or by proxy and a
proxy helder reed not be a Voting Unitholder. Two persons present in person and cither holding personally or
representing by proxy in the aggregate at least 10% of the votes attached to all outstanding Voting Units will
constituic a quorum for the transaction of business at all such meetings. At any meeting al which a quorum is not
present within one-half hour after the time fixed for the holding of such meeting, the meeting, if convened upon the
request of the Voting Unitholders, will be terminated {not adjourned), but in any other case, the meeting will stand
adjourned to a day not less than 14 days later and to a place and time as chosen by the chair of the meeting, and if at
such adjourned mecting a quorum is not present, the Voting Unitholders present eitherin purson or by proxy will be
deemed to constitute a quorum.

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions as to the notice required and other procedures with respect to the
calling and holding of meetings of Veoting Unitholders.

Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership

In order for the Fund to maintain its status as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act, the Fund must not be
established or maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents within the meaning of the Tax Act
Accordingly, for so long as is required by the Tax Act to meet such tesl, the Declaration of Trust provides that at no
time may Non-residents be the beneficial owners of more than 49% of the Units. This 49% limitation will be applied
with respect to the issued and outstanding Units of the Fund on both (i) a non-diluted basis and (i1} a fully -diluted
basis (the limitation will apply in either case) calculated on the assumption that any Units issuable at the time of
czlculation to holders of Exchangeable LP Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement have been issued and are held
by holders of Exchangeable LP Units.

If at any time the Trustees, in their sole discretion, determine that it 1s advisable and in the best interests of the Fund
to act so that the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the Trustees may take
one or more actions including the following:

(a) the Trustees may perform residency searches of Unitholder and bencficial Unitholder mailing address lists
and take such other steps as specified by the Trustees, at the cost of the Fund, to determine or estimate, to
the extent practicable, the residence of the beneficial owners of Units;

(b) the Trustees may require declarations as to the jurisdictions in which bencficial owners of Units are
resident or declarations from Unitholders as to whether such Units are held by or for the benefnt of
beneficiaries ("Non-resident Beneficiaries") that are Non-residents;

(c) the Trustees. following the issuance of a public announcement to such effect, may refuse 1o accepl a
subscription for Units from or issue or register a transfer of Units to a person unless the person provides a
declaration that the person is not a Non-resident (or, in the discretion of the Trustees, that the person is not
a Non-resident Beneficiary) and does not hold his or its Units for a Non-resident Beneficiary;

(d) the Trustees may place such other limits on Unit ownership by Non-residents as the Trustees may deemn
necessary in their sole discretion, including unilaterally altering the limit on Non-resident ownership above,
to the extent required, in the opinion of the Trustees, 1o maintain the Fund's status as a mutual fund trust;
and

(e) if, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees, in their sole discretion, determine that further action is
required so that the Fund continues to qualify as a mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the
Trustees may send a notice to such Unitholders, chosen in inverse order to the order of acquisition or
registration or in such manner as the Trustees may consider equitable and practicable, requiring them 10 sell
their Units or a portion thereof within a specified period of not more than 60 days. If the Unitholders
receiving such notice have not sold the specified number of Units or provided the Trusices with satisfactory
evidence that they are not Non-residents and do not hold their Units for the benefit of Non-resident
Beneficiaries within such period, the Trustees may sell such Units on behalf of such Unitholders, and in the
interim, the voiing and distribution rights attached to such Units shall be suspended. Upon such sale, the
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affected holders shall cease to be Unitholders and their rights shall be limited to recciving the net proceeds
of sale.

In any situation where it is unclear whether Units are held for the benefit of Non-resident Beneficiaries, the Trustees
may exercise their discretion in determining whether such Units are or are not so held.

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust

The Declaration of Trust may be amended or altered from time to time with the consent of the Voting Unitholders
by a Special Resolution, except that any amendment that affects the rights or interests of the holders of Special
Voting Units in a2 manner or to an extent different from other Voting Unitholders or the rights of the Vendor Group
1o appoint a Trustee also requires the approval of such holders or the Vendor Group. as the case may be.

The Trustees may, at their discretion and without the approval of the Voting Unitholders, make certain amendments
to the Declaration of Trust, including amendments: (i) for the purpose of ensuring continuing compliance and
conformity of the Fund, its activities and the Declaration of Trust with applicable laws, regulations, requirements or
policies of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Trustees, Unitholders and/or Special Voting Unit
holders, the Fund, or any ATS Andlauer Entity; (ii) which, in the opinion of counsel to the Trustees, provide
additional protection or added benefits for Unitholders; (iii) to remove any conflicts or nconsistencies in the
Declaration of Trust or to make minor changes or corrections that, in the opinion of the Trustees, are nccessary or
desirable and not prejudicial to the Unitholders or Special Voting Unitholders; {iv) which, in the opinion of the
Trustees, arc necessary or desirable as a result of changes in taxation laws or policies of any governmental authority
having jurisdiction over the Trustees or the Fund; or (v) for the purpose of ensuring that the Fund continues to
qualify as a muteal fund trust under the Tax Act. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the Trustees may not
amend the Declaration of Trust in a manner that would result in the Fund failing to qualify as a mutueal fund trust
under the Tax Act.

Term of the Fund

The Fund has been established for a term ending 21 years afier the date of death of the last surviving issue of Her
Majesty, Queen Elizabeth 11, alive on August 22, 2005. On a date selected by the Trustees that is not more than two
years prior to the expiry of the term of the Fund, the Trustees are obligated to commence to wind-up the affairs of
the Fund so that it will terminate on the expiration of the term. In addition, at any time prior to the expiry of the term
of the Fund, the Veting Unitholders may by a Special Resolution require the Trustees to commence the termination,
liquidation or wind-up of the affairs of the Fund.

The Declaration of Trust provides that, upon being required to commence the termination, liquidation or winding-up
of the affairs of the Fund, the Trustees will give notice thercof to the Voting Unitholders, which notice shall
designate the time or times at which Voting Unitholders may surrender their Voting Units for cancellation and the
date at which the register of Voting Units will be closed. After the date the register is closed, the Trustees will
proceed to wind up the affairs of the Fund as soon as may be rcasonably practicable and for such purpose will,
subject to any direction to the contrary in respect of a termination authorized by a resolution of the Voting
Unitholders, sell and convert into money the ATSOT Units and all other assets comprising the Fund in one
transaction or in a serics of transactions at public or private sales and do all other acts appropriate 1o liquidate the
Fund. After paying, retiring, discharging or making provision for the payment, retirement or discharge of all known
liabilities and obligations of the Fund and providing for indemnity against any other outstanding liabilities and
obligations, the Trustees will distribute the remaining part of the proceeds of the sale of the ATSOT Units and other
assets comprising the Fund together with any cash forming part of the asscts of the Fund among the Unitholders in
accordance with their pro rata interests. If the Trust is unable to sell all or any of the ATSOT Units or other assets
which comprise part of the Fund by the date set for termination, the Trustees may distribute the remaining ATSOT
Units or other assets in specie directly to the Unitholders in accordance with their pro 1ata interests subject to
obtaining all required regulatory approvals.
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Take-over Bids

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions to the effect that if a take-over bid is made for the Units and 90% or
more of the Units on a fully diluted basis (other than any Units held at the date of the take-over bid by or on behalf
of the offeror or associates or affiliates of the offeror) are taken up and paid for by the offeror, the offeror will be
entitled to acquire the Units and the Exchangeable LP Units held by holders who did not accept the take-over bid, on
the same terms on which the offeror acquired Units pursuant to the take -over bid.

The Declaration of Trust and the Exchange Agreement include provisions to facilitate the exchange of Exchangeable
L.P Units for Units so that a holder of Exchangeable LP Units may exercise its rights to exchange all or a portion of
such holdings for Units, including conditionally, in erder to tender to a take-over bid.

Exercise of Certain Voting Rights Attached to Securities of ATSOT, the GP and the Partnership

The Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund will not vote any securities of ATSOT, nor permit ATSOT to vote
any securities of the GP or the Partnership to authorize:

(2) any sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the direct or indirect assets of ATSOT, the
GP, the Partnership or any of their respective affiliates, except in conjunction with an internal
reorganization of any of these entities, as applicable, pursuant to a good faith charge, pledge, mortgage,
lien, security interest or other encumbrance granted by ATSOT over any assets of ATSOT in the ordinary
course of business pursuant to any guarantee or any obligation of ATSOT. the GP, the Partnership or any of
their respective affiliates;

(£3))] any amalgamation, arrangement or other merger of ATSOT, the GP, the Partncrship or any of their
respective affiliates, with any other entity, except in conjunction with an internal reorganization of any of
these entities, as applicable;

(<) the winding-up or dissolution of ATSOT, the GP, the Partnership or any of their respective affiliates prior
to the end of the term of the Fund except in conjunction with an internal reorganization of these entities, as
applicable;

(d) any material amendment to the constating document of any of ATSOT, the Parinership or the GP to effect

any change that would be prcjudicial to the Fund or the Unitholders; or

(e) any other matter that, under the ATSOT Declaration of Trust. requires the approval of the holders of Units
by Special Resolution;

without the authorization of the Voting Unitholders by a Special Resolution.
Information and Reports

The Fund will furnish to Voting Unitholders, in accordance with applicable securities laws, such financial
statements of the Fund {including quarterly and annual financial statements) and other reports as are from time to
time required by applicable law, including prescribed forms needed for the completion of Unitholders’ tax returns
under the Tax Act and equivalent provincial legislation. Prior to each meeting of Voting Unitholders, the Trustees
will provide the Voting Unitholders (along with notice of such meeting) all such information as is required by
applicable law and the Declaration of Trust to be provided to Voting Unithelders.

The Trustees, the trustees of ATSOT and directors and senior officers of other subsidiaries of the Fund, including
the GP and the Partnership, will be required to fite insider reports and comply with insider trading provisions under
applicable Canadian securities tegislation in respect of trades made by such persons in Units.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the GP will perform functions similar 10 a chief
executive officer and chief financial officer in respect of the Fund. As such, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
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Financial Officer of the GP will execute the certificates required to be filed pursuant to Multilateral Instrument 52-
109 — Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings.

In addition, the Fund has undertaken to the securities commissions or other securities regulatory authorities in each
of the provinces of Canada that for so long as the Fund is a reporting issuer under applicable securities laws, it will:

. trcat the Partnership as a subsidiary of the Fund; however, if generally accepted accounting principles
prohibit the consolidation of financial information of the Partnership and the Fund, for as long as the
Partnership (and any of its significant business interests) represents significant assets of the Fund, the Fund
will provide Unitholders with separate financial statements for the Paninership (and any of its significant
business interests);

. take appropriate measures to require cach person who would be an insider of the Partnership if the
Partnership were a reporting issuer to (a) file insider reports about trades in Units (including securities that
are exchangeable into Units), and (b} comply with statutory prohibitions against insider trading; and

. annually certify that it has complied with this undertaking, and file the certificaie on the System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR) concurrently with the filing of its annual financial
slatements.

In future intertm and annual filings, the Fund will include rclevant information and discussions comparing the
Fund's business with the Business. The Fund believes that comparative financial information relating to revenue,
cost of sales and general and administrative expenses are appropriate to include in the operating results of the Fund.
The information will be provided on a comparative basis in future interim and annual management discussion and
analysis.

Book-Entry Only System

Registration of interests in and transfers of the Units are made only through a book-based system administered by
CDS. Units must be purchased, transferred and surrendered for redemption through a participant in the CDS
depository service (a "CDS Participant”), All rights of Unitholders must be exercised through, and all pavments or
other property to which the Unitholder is entitled will be made or delivered by, CDS or the CDS Participant through
which the Unitholder holds the Units. Upon a purchase of any Units, the Unitholder will reccive only a customer
confirmation from the registered dealer that is a CDS Participant and from or through which the Units are purchased.
References in this annual information form to a Unitholder mean, unless the context otherwise requires. the owner of
the beneficial interest in those Units.

The ability of a beneficial owner of Units to pledge those Units or otherwise take action with respect 1o the
Unitholders interest in those Units (other than through a CDS Participant}) may be limited due to the lack of a
physical certificate,

The Fund has the option to terminate registration of the Units through the CDS book-entry only system, in which
case centificates for the Units in fully registered form would be issued to beneficial owners of those Units or their
nominees.

Financial Year End

The fiscal year end of the Fund is December 31.

Contlicts of Interest

The Declaration of Trust contains "conflict of interest” provisions that serve to protect Unitholders without creating
undue limitations on the Fund. The Declaration of Trust provides that if a Trustee or an officer of the Fund is a party

to a material contract or transaction or proposed material contract or transaction with the Fund or any of its affiliates,
or is a director or officer of, or has a material interest in, any person who is a party to a material contract or
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transaction or proposed material contract or transaction with the Fund, such Trustee or officer of the Fund or any of
its affiliates, as the case may be, shall disclose in writing to the Trustees or request to have entered in the minutes of
meetings of the Trustees the nature and extent of such interest. Except in certain specified circumstances, a Trustee
who is a party to or so interested in such a material contract or transaction will be precluded from voting on such a
material contract or transaction but the presence of such Trustee at the relevant meeting shall be counted towards
any quorum requirement. These provisions in the Declaration of Trust are intended to be equivalent to the provisions
of the CBCA applicable to directors and officers of a corporation.

Rights of Unitholders

The rights of the Unitholders are established by the Declaration of Trust. Although the Decliration of Trust confers
upon a Unitholder many of the same protections, rights and remedies as an investor would have as a shareholder of a
corporation governed by the CBCA, there do exist significant differences. The Declaration of Trust includes
provisions intended to limit the Hability of Unitholders for liabilities and other obligations of the Fund, although no
statutory provisions historically confirmed the limited liability status of Unitholders in a manner comparable to
shareholders of a CBCA corporation. However, on December 16, 2004, the Trust Beneficiaries® Liabilin: Act, 2004
received Royal Assent. That statute provides that Unitholders of the Fund are not liable, as beneficiaries of a trust,
for any act, default, obligation or liability of the Fund or the Trustees, arising after December 16, 2004, That statute
has not yet been judicially considered and it is possible that reliance on the statute by a Unitholder could be
successfully challenged on jurisdictional or other grounds.

Many of the provisions of the CBCA respecting the governance and management of a corporation have been
incorporated in the Declaration of Trust. For example, Unitholders are entitled to exercise voting rights in respect of
their holdings of Units in a manner comparable to shareholders of a CBCA corporation and 10 elect trustces and
auditors. The Declaration of Trust also includes provisions modeled after comparable provisions of the CBCA
dealing with the calling and holding of meetings of Unitholders and Trustees, the quorum for and procedures at such
meetings and the right of investors to participate in the decision-making process where certain fundamental actions
are proposed to be undertaken. The matters in respect of which Unitholder approval is required under the
Declaration of Trust are generally less extensive than the rights conferred on the shareholders of a CBCA
corporation, but effectively extend to certain fundamental actions that may be undertaken by the Fund's subsidiary
entities, as described under "ATS Andlaver Income Fund — Exercise of Certain Voting Rights Aitached to
Securities of ATSOT, the GP and the Partnership”.

These Unitholder approval rights are supplemented by provisions of applicable securities laws that arc generally
applicable to issuers {(whether corporatiens, trusts or other entities) that are "reporting issuers” or the equivalent or
listed on the TSX.

Unitholders do not have recourse to a dissent right under which sharchelders of a CBCA corporatien are entitled to
receive the fair value of their shares where certain fundamental changes affecting the corporation are undertaken
{such as an amalgamation, a continuance under the laws of another jurisdiction, the sale of all or substantially all of
its property, a going private transaction or the addition, change or removal of provisions restricting (i} the business
or businesses that the corporation can carry on, or (i3} the issue, transfer or ownership of shares). As an altemative,
Unitholders seeking to terminate their investment in the Fund are entitled to receive, subject to certain conditions
and limitations, their pro rata share of the Fund's net assets through the exercise of the redemption rights provided by
the Declaration of Trust, as described under "Redemption Right" above. Unitholders similarly do not have recourse
to the statutory oppression remedy that is available to sharcholders of a CBCA corporation where the corporation
undertakes actions that are oppressive, unfairly prejudicial to or disregarding of the interests of securityholders and
certain other parties.

Sharcholders of a CBCA corporation may also apply to a2 court to order the liguidation and dissolution of the
corporation in those circumstances, whereas Unitholders could rely only on the general provisions of the Declaration
of Trust that permit the winding up of the Fund with the approval of a Special Resolution of the Unitholders.
Shareholders of a CBCA corporation may also apply to a court for the appointment of an inspector to investigate the
manner in which the business of the corporation and its affiliates is being carried on where there is reason to believe
that fraudulent, dishonest or oppressive conduct has occurred. The Declaration of Trust aliows Unitholders to pass
resolutions appoeinting an inspector to investigate the Trustees’ performance of their respensibilities and duties, but
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this process would not be subject to court oversight or assure the other investigative procedures, rights and remedies
available under the CBCA. The CBCA also permits shareholders to bring or intervene in derivative actions in the
name of the corporation or any of its subsidiaries, with the leave of a court. The Declaration of Trust does not
include a comparable right of the Unitholders to commence or participate in legal proceedings with respect to the
Fund.

ATS ANDLAUER OPERATING TRUST

The ATSOT Declaration of Trust contains provisions substantially similar to those of the Duclaration of Trust. The
following is a summary, which does not purport to be complete, of certain provisions of the ATSOT Declaration of
Trust insofar as they differ from those of the Declaration of Trust. Reference is made to the ATSOT Declaration of
Trust for the full text of its provisions.

General

ATSOT is an unincorporated trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to the ATSOT
BDeclaration of Trust. The operations and activities of ATSOT are restricted to, among other things, acquiring,
investing in, transferring, disposing of and otherwise dealing with debt and equity securities of the GP, the
Partnership and other corporations, partnerships, trusts or other persons involved, directly or indirectly, in the
distribution and freight transportation and transportation solutions business, and all businesses and activities
ancillary or incidental thereto and such other investments as the trustees of ATSOT may determine. The fiscat year
end of ATSOT is December 31,

Trustees of ATSOT

ATSOT must have a minimum of three trustees and a2 maximum of seven trustees. A majornity of the trustees of
ATSOT must be residents of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act. The trustees of ATSOT supervise the
activities and manage the affairs of ATSOT. The trustees of ATSOT are the persons who serve as the Trustees, No
person other than the Fund, as the holder of all of the outstanding ATSOT Units, has the right to appoint any trustees
of ATSOT. See "Trustees, Directors and Officers”.

The ATSOT Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, the trustees of ATSOT
have full, absolute and exclusive power, control and authority over the assets of ATSOT and over the affairs of
ATSOT to the same extent as if the trustees of ATSOT were the sole and absolute beneficial owners of the assets of
ATSOT, and may, in respect of such assets, exercise any and all rights, powers and privileges that could be
exercised by a legal and beneficial owner thereof. Subject to such terms and conditions, the trustees of ATSOT are
responsible for, among other things: (i) acting for, voting on behalf of and representing ATSOT as a holder of LP
Units and a holder of GP Common Shares; (ii) maintaining records and providing 1eports to the ATSOT
Unitholders; (iii) supervising the activities and managing the investments and affairs of ATSOT; and (iv) effecting
payments of distributable cash from ATSOT to the ATSOT Unitholders.

No additional remuneration is paid to the Trustees for also serving as trustees of ATSOT.
Trust Units

An unlimited number of ATSOT Units may be issued pursuant to the ATSOT Declaration of Trust. The Fund holds
all of the issued and outstanding ATSOT Units. Each ATSOT Unit is transferable and represents an equal undivided
beneficial interest in any distributions from ATSOT whether of net income, net realized capital gains or other
amounts, and in the net assets of ATSOT in the event of termination or winding-up of ATSOT. Al ATSOT Units
have equal rights and privileges. The ATSOT Units are not subject to futute calls or assessments. Except as set out
below under "Redemption Right”, the ATSOT Units have no conversion, retraction, redemption or pre-emplive
rights,
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Cash Distributions

ATSOT intends to make monthly cash distributions of its distributable cash to the extent determined prudent by the
trustees of ATSOT. The amount of cash to be distributed monthly per ATSOT Unit to the ATSOT Unitholders will
be equal to a pro rata share of distributions on or in respect of Ordinary LP Units owned by ATSOT and all other
amounts, if any, from any other investments from time to time held by ATSOT received in such peried, less
amounts which are paid, payable, incurred or provided for in such period in connection with:

(a) administrative expenses and other obligations of ATSOT;

{b) any interest expense incurred by ATSOT:

{c) principal repayments in respect of any debt obligations of ATSOT;
(d) any cash redemptions or repurchases of the ATSOT Units; and

(e} any amount that the trustees of ATSOT may reasonably consider to be necessary to provide for the
payment of any costs or expenses, including any tax liability of ATSOT, that have been or are reasonably
cxpected to be incurred in the activities and operations of ATSOT (1o the extent that such costs or expenses
have not otherwise been taken into account n the calculation of the available distributable cash of
ATSOT).

Such distributions are payable to holders of record of ATSOT Units on the last business day of each month and are
paid within 15 days following each month end. The cash distributions payable by ATSOT are intended to be
received by the Fund before its related cash distribution to Unitholders.

The distribution dectared by the trustees of ATSOT in respect of the month ending December 31 in each year wilt
include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of ATSOT for such year
as is necessary to ensure that ATSOT will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act in such year.

Any income of ATSQOT that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that ATSOT
does not have any income tax liability under Part 1 of the Tax Act, be distributed to the ATSOT Unitholders in the
form of additional ATSOT Units. The value of each ATSOT Unit so issued will be equal to the redemption price
thereof. The ATSOT Declaration of Trust provides that immediately after any pro rata distribution of ATSOT Units
in satisfaction of any non-cash distribution, the number of outstanding ATSOT Units will be: consolidated such that
cach holder of ATSOT Units will hold after consolidation the same number of ATSOT Units as the holder held
before the non-cash distribution.

Unit Certificates

As ATSOT Units are not intended to be issued or held by any person other than the Fund, registration of interests in,
and transfers of, the ATSOT Units are not made through the book-entry only system. Rather, holders of ATSOT
Units are entitled to receive certificates therefore,

Redempiion Right

The ATSOT Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the holders therecof upon delivery 1o ATSOT of a duly
completed and properly executed notice requiring ATSOT to redeem the ATSOT Units. in a form reasonably
acceptable to the trustees of ATSOT, together with the certificates for the ATSOT Units representing the ATSOT
Units to be redecmed and written instructions as to the number of ATSOT Units to be redeecmed. Upon tender of
ATSOT Units by a holder thercof for redemption, the holder of the ATSOT Units tendered for redemption will no
longer have any rights with respect to such ATSOT Units other than the right 1o receive the redemption price for
such ATSOT Units, as determined under the ATSOT Declaration of Trust. The redemption price for each ATSOT
Unit tendered for redemption will be equal to:
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Where

A = the redemption price per Unit calculated as of the close of business on the Redemption Date;

B = the aggregate number of Units outstanding as of the close of business on the Redemption Date;

C = the aggregate unpaid principal amount and accrued interest thereon of and any indebtedness of ATSOT
held by or owed to the Fund and the fair market value of any other assets or investments held by the Fund
{other than ATSOT Units) as of the close of busincss on the Redemption Date;

D = aggregate unpaid labilities of the Fund (prior to any redemption of Units for such date) as of the close of
business on the Redemption Date; and

E = the aggrepate number of Units outstanding held by the Fund as of the close of business on the Redemption

Date.

The trustees of ATSOT will also be entitled to call for redemption, at any time, all or part of the outstanding ATSOT
Units registered in the name of the holders thereof other than the Fund at the same redemption price per ATSOT
Unit applicable to redemptions on demand by holders of ATSOT Units, provided that the calculation of the
redemption price shall be made with reference to the date the trustees of ATSOT approved the redemption of
ATSOT Units.

The aggregate redemption price payable by ATSOT in respect of any ATSOT Units tendered for redemption by the
holders thereof during any month will be satisfied, at the option of the trustees of ATSOT, (i) in immediately
available funds by cheque; (ii) by the issuance to or to the order of the holder whose ATSOT Units are 10 be
redeemed of such aggregate amount of unsecured, subordinated promissory notes of ATSOT as is equal to the
aggregate redemption price payable to such holder of ATSOT Units; or (iii) by any combination of funds and
unsecured, subordinated promissory notes of ATSOT as the trustees of ATSOT shall determine in their discretion, in
each such case payable or issuable on the last day of the calendar month following the calendar month in which the
ATSOT Units were so tendered for redemption.

Restrictions on Trustees' Powers

The ATSOT Declaration of Trust provides that the trustees of ATSOT may not, without the approval of the holder
of ATSOT Units:

(2) subject to certain exceptions, appoint or change the auditors of ATSOT;

(b) amend the ATSOT Declaration of Trust except n certain limited circumstances similar to those under
which the Declaration of Trust may be amended without consent of Voting Unitholders;

(c) sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of ATSOT's assets, exchange all or substantiaily all
of the property of ATSOT other than in the ordinary course of business or in connection with an internal
reorganization;

(d) authorize the termination, liguidation or winding-up of ATSOT, other than at the end of the term of
ATSOT or in connection with an internal reorganization; or

(e) authorize the combination, merger or similar transaction of ATSOT with any other person or other than in
connection with an internal reorganization.
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ATS ANDLAUER TRANSPORTATION SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
General

The Partnership is alimited partnership formed under the laws of Manitoba. The business of the Partnership is to
develop, acquire, make investments in and conduct the business and ownership, operation and lease of assets and
property in connection with, the freight transportation business, together with all activities anciliary or incidental
thereto and such other businesses and activities as the board of directors of the GP may determine. The following is
a summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the LP Units and certain provisions of the Limited
Partnership Agreement, which summary is not intended to be complete. Reference is made to the Limited
Partnership Agreement and the full text of its provisions for a complete description of the LP Units.

General Partner

The general partner of the Partnership is the GP. As general pariner of the Partnership, the GP has been issued one
GP Unit for nominal consideration. The GP Unit entitles the holder thereof to one vote for each whole unit held at
all meetings of holders of partnership units and to an allocation of 0.001% of the income or loss of the Partnership
for each fiscal year. As general partner and holder of the GP Unit, the GP has the authority to manage the business
and affairs of the Paninership and has unlimited liability for the obligations of the Partnership. See "ATS Andlauer
Transportation Services GP Inc.".

LP Units

The Partnership is entitled to issue various classes of partnership interests, for such consideration and on such terms
and conditions as may be determined by the GP. The Partnership has issued and outstanding 9,324,200 Ordinary LP
Units (which are held by ATSOT) and 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units (which are held by the Vendor). The
Partnership also has issued and outstanding one GP Unit {which is held by the GP). The Ordinary LP Units represent
an 80.1% interest in the Partnership and the Exchangeable LP Units represent a 19.9% interest in the Partnership.

The Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units entitle the holders thercof to one vote for each whole unit
held at all meetings of holders of the LP Units and have cconomic rights that are equivalent in all material respects,
except that Exchangeable LP Units are exchangeable, directly or indirectly, on a one-forone basis (subject to
customary antrdilution protections) for Units at the option of the holder at any time. Additienally, Exchangeable LP
Units arc accompanicd by Special Voting Units that entitle the holder to receive notice of, attend and to vote at all
meetings of Voting Unitholders. Sce "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights — Exchange Rights”. Distributions on
the LP Units are made proportionately to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchanguable LP Units, such that
agpregate per unit distributions on the Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units are the same.

Distributions

The Partnership has a policy to distribute its distributable cash to the extent determined prudent by the board of
directors of the GP, inciuding a holdback equal to an amount deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees.
Distributions are made on the Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units within 15 days of the end of each
month and are intended to be received by ATSOT before its related distribwtions to thi: Fund. Distributions are
payable to the holders of LP Units of record on the last day of the period im respect of which the distribution is to be
paid. The Partnership may, in addition, make a distribution at any other time

Distributable cash will represent, in general, all of the Partnership's EBITDA, after:

(a) satisfaction of its debt service obligations (principal and interest) under credit facilities or other agreements
with third parties, including amounts payable under the Credit Facility;

(b) paying awards under the LTIP or other incentives to Management and other personnel;
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(c) retaining reasonable working capital reserves, sustaining capital cxpenditure reserves, renewal reserves,
upgrade and renovation reserves or other reserves, including reserves to stabilize distributions to the
partners, as may be considered appropriate by the GP; and

(d) expenditures in excess of reserves.

Capital and other expenses, including amounts required to enable the Partnership to pay equal monthly distributions
based on anticipated future distributable cash, may be financed with drawings under one or more credit facilities that
may be established by the Partnership.

Distributions of distributable cash are made in the following order of priority:
(1) first, to the holder of GP Units, 0.001% of the Pantnership's income;
(i} thereafter, 1o the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units on a pari passu basis.

Allocation of Net Income and Losses

The tncome or loss of the Partnership for each fiscal year is allocated to the GP and to the remaining partners as 1o
0.001% and 99.999%, respectively. The income for tax purposes of the Partnership for a particular fiscal year is
allocated to each partner other than the GP by multiplying the total income allocated to such partners by a fraction,
the numerator of which is the total sum of the cash distributions received by that partner with respect to that fiscal
year and the demominator of which is the total amount of the cash distributions made by the Partnership to all
partners {other than the GP) with respect to that fiscal year. The amount of income allocated te a partner may exceed
of be less than the amount of cash distributed by the Partnership to that limited partner.

If, with respect to a given fiscal year, no cash distribution is made by the Partnership to its partners, or the
Partnership has a loss for tax purposes, one-twelfth of the income or loss, as the case may be, for tax purposes of the
Partnership for that fiscal year will be allocated to the GP and the remaining partners at the end of cach month
ending in that fiscal year, as to 0.001% and 99.999%, respectively, and to each remaining partner in the proportion
that the number of LP Units held at each of those dates by that partner is of the total number of LP Units issued and
outstanding at each of those dates.

Income and Joss of the Partnership for accounting purposes is allocated to each partner in the same proportion as
income or loss is allocated for tax purposes.

The fiscal year end of the Partnership is December 31,
Liquidation Entitlement

In the event of adissolution of the Partnership, the GP will distribute the net proceeds fromn the liquidation of the
Partnership (after payment of expenses and provision for adequate reserves) as follows:

(i) firsi, to the holders of GP Units, 0.001% of the proceeds from the liquidation; and

(it) thereafier, to the holders of Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable LP Units in accordance with 1he
aggregate number of Units of each class issued and outstanding.

Reimbursement of the GP

The Partnership reimburses the GP for all direct costs and expenses incurred in the performance of its duties under
the Limited Partnership Agreement,
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Limited Liability

The Partnership operates in a manner so as to ensure, to the greatest extent possible, the limited liability of the
limited partners. Limited partners may losc their limited liability in certain circumstances. The GP will indemnify
the limited partners against all claims arising from assertions that their respective liabilities are not limited as
intended by the Limited Partnership Agrecment unless the liability is not so limited as a result of or arising out of
any act of such limited partner. The GP has no significant assets or financial resources, however, and therefore the
indemmity from the GP has nominal value.

Transfer of Partrership Units

LP Units are not transferable except in compliance with the Securityholders Agreement to the Fund or to members
of the Vendor Group. Further, LP Units may not be transferred to a person who is not resident in Canada for
purposes of the Tax Act. A LP Unit will not be transferable in part, and no transfer of a LP Unit will be accepted by
the GP unless a transfer form, duly completed and signed by the registered holder of the LP Unit, has been remited
to the registrar and transfer agent of the GP. In addition, a transferee of a LP Unit must provide to the GP such other
instruments and documents as the GP may require in appropriate form completed and executed in a manner
acceptable to the GP and must pay the administration fee, if any, required by the GP. A transferee of a LP Unit will
not become a partner or be admitted to the Partnership and will not be subject to the obligalions and entitled to the
rights of a partner under the Limited Partnership Agreement until the foregoing conditions are satisfied and such
transferec is recorded on the Partnership's register of partners.

Amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement

The Limited Partnership Agreement may only be amended with the consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding partnership units voted on the amendment at a duly constituted meeting or by a written resclution of
partners holding more than 66 2/3% of the outstanding partnership units entitled to vote at a duly constituted
meeting (a "Partnership Special Resolution’). Notwithstanding the foregoing:

(a) no amendment will be permitted to be made to the Limited Partnership Agreement altering the ability of the
limited partners to remove the GP involuntarily, changing the liability of any limited partner, allowing any
iimited partner to exercise control over the business of the Partrership, changing the right of a partner 1o
vote at any meeling, adversely affecting the rights, privileges or conditions attaching 1o any of the LP Units
or GP Units, reducing the percentage of income allocable to limited partners to below 99.999% or changing
the Partnership from a limited partnership to a general partnership, in each case, without the unanimous
approval of the partners;

{b} no amendment can be made to the Limited Partnership Agreement that would adversely affect the rights
and obligations of any particular limited partner without similarly affecting the rights and obligations of all
other limited partners without the unanimous approval of the partners; and

(c) no amendment that would adversely affect the rights and obligations of the GP, as general partner, will be
permitted to be made without its consent.

The foregoing approval requirements are subject to additional restrictions on, or conditions to the approval of,
amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement pursuant to the Declaration of Trust and the Securityholders
Agreement.

The GP may call meetings of partners and will be required to convene a meeting on receipt of a request in writing of
the holder(s) of not less than 10% of the outstanding partnership units. Each partaer is entitled te one vote for each
partnership unit held. A guorum of a meeting of partners consists of one or more partners present in person or by

proxy.
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ATS ANDLAUER TRANSPORTATION SERVICES GP INC.
General
The GP is a corporation incorporated under the CBCA to act as the general partner of the Partnership.
Capital of the GP

The authorized share capital of the GP consists of an unlimited number of GP Common Shaies. The Fund indirectly
through ATSOT owns 100% of the outstanding GP Common Shares. ATSOT acquired its GP Common Shares from
the GP for nominal consideration. Each GP Common Share entitles the holder thereof to receive notice of and to
attend all meetings of shareholders of the GP and o one vote per share at such meetings (other than meetings of
another class of shares of the GP). The GP Common Shares entitle the holders thereof to receive in any year
dividends as and when declared by the board of directors on the GP Common Shares. In the cvent of a liquidation of
the GP, holders of the GP Common Shares, after payment of or other proper provision for all of the liabilities of the
GP, are entitled to share rateably in all remaining assets of the GP. The articles and by laws of the GP contain
standard restrictions, which restrict all shareholders from transferring their GP Common Shares without the consent
of the directors or sharcholders of the GP.

Functions and Powers of the GP

The GP has the authority to manage the business and affairs of the Partnership, to make all decisions regarding the
business of the Partnership and to bind the Partnership in respect of any such decision. The GP is required to
exercise its powers and discharge its duties honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Partnership and to
excrcise the care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent person in comparable circumstances,

The authority and power vested in the GP to manage the business and affairs of the Partnership includes al) authority
necessary or incidental to carry out the objects, purposes and business of the Partnership, including the ability to
engage agents 10 assist the GP to carry out its management obligations and administrative functions in respect of the
Partnership and its business.

Restrictions on Authority of the GP

The authority of the GP is limited in certain respects under the Limited Partnership Agreement. The GP is
prohibited, without the prior approval of the other partners given by a Partnership Special Resolution, from
dissolving the Partnership or sclling, exchanging or otherwise disposing of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Partnership (otherwise than in conjunction with an internal reorganization that has been approved by the Fund).

Withdrawal or Removal of the GP

The GP is permitied to resgn as general partner on not less than 180 days' prior written notice to the pariners,
provided that the GP may not resign if the effect thercof would be to dissolve the Partnership. The GP may be
removed as general pariner of the Parinership, without its consent, if: (i) the shareholders or directors of the GP pass
a resolution in connection with the bankruptey, dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the GP, or the GP commits
certain other acts of bankruptcy or ceases to be a subsisting corporation, provided that certain other conditions are
satisfied, including a requirement that a successor general partner agrees to act as general partner under the Limited
Parinership Agreement; or (ii) a Partnership Special Resolution has been passed and a successor general partner has
agrecd to act as general partner under the Limited Partnership Agreement.

RISK FACTORS
The following is a summary of certain risk factors relating to the affairs of the Fund and the business of the

Partnership. The following information is 2 summary only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to, and must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this annual
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information form and the documents incorporated by reference hercin (if any). Unitholders and potential
Unitholders should consider carefully the information contained herein and, in particular, the following risk factors.

These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing the Fund and the Partnership. Additional risks and
uncertaintics not currently known to the Fund or the Partnership, or that the Fund or the Partnership currently
consider immaterial, may also impair the operations of the Fund or the Partnership. 1f any such risks actually occur,
the business, financial condition, or liquidity and results of operations of the Partnership, and the ability of the Fund
to make distributions on the Units, could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Relating to the Parinership and its Business
General Economic Conditions

The price of fuel, equipment, and other input costs, insurance costs, interest rates, fluctuations in customers’ business
cycles and national and regional economic conditions are economic factors over which the Partnership has little or
no control. Demand for transportation services is closely linked to the state of the overall economy. Consequently, a
decline in general economic growth may adversely impact the Partnership’s performance. In addition, significant
increases in fuel prices, equipment prices, other input prices, interest rates or insurance costs, to the extent not offset
by increases in transportation rates or contractual surcharges, or disruptions in fuel supply, would reduce
profitability and could adversely affect the Partnership's ability to service its debts or maintain distributions. There
can be no assurance of the Partnership's ability to pass on fuel or other cost increases in the fiture and, in such event,
cash distributions may be reduced. The Partnership cannot predict the mpact of future economic conditions and
there is no assurance that the operations of the Partnership will continue to be profitable.

Competition

The Partnership faces competition from a variety of national and regional competitors. Many of these competitors
“have strong financial. marketing and other resources. There can be no assurance that the Partnership will be able 1o
compete successfully against its current or future competitors or that competition will not have a material adverse
effect on the Partnership's results of operations and financial condition, and on the amount of cash available for
distribution to Unitholders,

Reliance on Major Customers; Contract Renewals

The Partnership's top five customers accounted for approximately 18.54% of the Partnership’s revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2006, and the largest customer accounted for approximately 4.90% of such revenue (see
"Description of the Business — Business Strengths - Diversified and Long-Term Customer Relationships"). Although
a significant percentage of the Partnership's customers are under contract, most of those contracts can be terminated
on short notice. In addition, most of the Partnership's customer contracts are subject to rencwal annually. There can
be no assurance that the Pannership's current customers will continue their relationships with the Partnership or that
contracts that come up for renewal will be renewed or, if they are renewed, that customers will contract for the same
volume amounts to be transported or that they will pay the same rates and surcharges as they have in the past. The
loss of one or more major customers, the failure to renew customer contracts, or any decrease in transportation
volumes purchased or prices paid or any other changes to the terms of service under renewed contracts could have a
material adverse effect on the Partnership's profitability and, as a result, the amount of cash available for distribution
to Unitholders. A significant portion of the Partnership's custemer contracts, including contract renewals, are subject
to competitive tender processes, and there cazn be no assurance that the Partnership will be successful in acquiring
new business or retaining existing business subject Lo competitive tender.

Dependence on Personnel

The success of the Partnership has been largely dependent on the skills and expertise of its management personnel,
particularly Michael Andlauer, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP. The continued success of the
Partnership will be dependent upon its ability to retain the services of such personnel and recruit and retain other key
employees for its business. .
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The failure to attract and retain a sufficient number of qualified drivers and owncr-operittors could also have a
material adverse effect on the pofitability of the Partnership. Any shortage of qualified drivers and/or owner
operators may result in the inability of the Partnership to accept new customers or the inability of the Partnership to
meet existing customer obligations. It would also be expected to result in an escalation of compensation levels for
drivers/owner-operators and other hourly paid employees, which the Partnership may not be successful in offsetting
through transportation rate increases. Any of the foregoing could result in a material adverse affect on the
Partnership resulting in a reduction in cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Labour Relations

The success of the Partnership’s business depends on a large number of employees and independent contractors.
Although none of the Parinership’s employees are currently unionized, any organized work stoppage or other similar
job action may have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's business, financial condition, liquidity and results
of operations. In addition, there can be no assurance that some or all of the employces of the Partnership will not
unionize in the future. Such an occurrence could increase labour costs and thereby have a material adverse effect on
the Partnership's business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Insurance

The Partnership’s operations are subject to risks normally inherent in the transportation industry, including potential
liability. which could result from, among other circumsiances, personal injury or property damage arising from
maotor vehicle accidents. The availability of. and ability to collect on, insurance coverage for these types of liabilities
is subject to factors beyond the control of the Partnership. In addition, the Parinership may become subject to
liability hazards in circumstances where it cannot or may ¢lect not to insure (because of high premium costs or other
reasons}), or fer occurrences that exceed maximum coverage under its policies. The Partnership has no control over
changing conditions and pricing in the insurance markciplace and the cost or availability of various types of
insurance may change in the future. To the extent that any future increase in costs cannotl be passed on to the
Partnership's customers in increased transportation rates, increases in insurance costs could reduce future
profitability and reduce cash availabie for distribution to Unitholders. Further, the inability to obtain insurance in the
future for certain types of losses may require the Partnership to limit the services it provides or the areas in which it
operates thereby reducing the revenues of the Partnership and potentially reducing the cash available for
distribution. Lastly, the occurrence of a significant uninsured loss could have a material adverse effect upon the
Partnership and reduce cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Information Technology

The Partnership has made significant investments in information technology and relics on its information systems to
supporl its business model. In the event that irreparable damage was caused to the Partnership's information systems
and databases or the information contained in its information systems was lost, the Partnership's operational ability
would be impaired and its ability to provide service to its customers compromised. In such event, the Partnership's
financial condition, results of operation, and the amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders could be
materially adversely affecied.

Use of Third Party Transportation Providers

As an air freight brwarder, the Partnership purchases atr cargo capacity from aircraft operators. Changes in the
availability or price for air cargo could have a matcrial adverse effect on the Partnership's operations and financial
condition thereby reducing cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

The Partnership routinely purchases linehaul services from truckload carriers. Changes in the availability or price of

such services could have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's operations and financial condition, thereby
reducing cash available for distribution to Unitholders.
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Weather

Harsh weather conditions can impede the transportation of goods and increase operating costs or reduce customers’
or their consignees’ requirements for goods, which can have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's cash flow
and, as a result, cash available for distribution to Unitholders. In addition, unusual weather patterns, including
extended periods of precipitation or lack of precipitation can have a similar adverse imp act.

Regulation

Notwithstanding that the transportation industry is largely deregulated in terms of entry into the industry, each
carrier must obtain a license from or register with provincial regulatory authoritics in order to carry goods extra-
provincially or o transport goods within any province. Regulation of the operations of transportation companies has
become more stringent over time and is expected to continue to do se going forward. Changes in regulations
applicable to the Partnership could increase operating costs and have a material adverse effect on the Partnership's
operations and financial condition thereby reducing cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

The right 1o continue to hold applicable licenses and permits is generatly subject to maintaining satisfactory
compliance with regulatory and safety guidelines, policies and regulations. Although the Partnership is committed to
compliance and safety. there is no assurance that the Partnership will be in full compliance at all times with such
guidelines, policies and regulations. Consequently, at some future time, the Partnership could be required to incur
significant costs to maintain or improve its compliance record.

Environmental Considerations

The Partnership and its operations and properties are subject to extensive federal, provincial, municipal and local
cnvironmental laws and requirements relating to, among other things, air emissions, the managemcnt of
contaminants including hazardous materials {including the generation, handling, storage, transportation and disposal
of such contaminants}, discharges and the remediation of environmental impacts (such as the contamination of soil
and water, including ground water). See "Description of the Business— Environmental”.

The nisk of environmental liability is inherent in transportation operations, historic activities associated with such
operations and the ownership, management or control of real estate. Canadian laws gencrally impose potential
liability on the present or former owners or occupants of properties on which contamination has occurred. Although
Management is not aware of any contamination which, if remediation or clean-up were required, would have a
material adversc cffect on the Partnership, there can be no assurance that the Partnership wall not be required, at
some future date, 1o incur significant costs to comply with environmental laws, or that its operations, business, assets
or cash flow will not be materially adversely affected by current or future environmental laws.

Potential Unknown Liabilities

In connection with the Acquisition, there may have been unknown liabilities assumed by the Partnership, including
those associated with prior acquisttions and dispositions by the Vendor as well as environmental issues, for which
the Partnership may not be indemnified pursuant to the indemnities provided under the Acquisition Agreement. In
particular, to the extent that the Vendor, as the previous owner of the Business, failed to comply with or otherwise
violated applicable laws, including environmental or health and safety laws, the Partnership may be legally and
financially responsible for these violations. The discovery of any material liabilities could have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition and results of operations of the Partnership and, as a result, the amount of cash
available for distribution to Unitholders. The Vendor has provided certain representations and warranties to the
Partnership under the Acquisition Agreement and has agreed to indemnify the Partnership for breaches of
representation and warranties. However, as the Vendor may have limited assets and financial resources, other than
its intercst in the Partnership, this indemnity may have nominal value.
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Capital Expenditures

The timing and amount of capital expenditures made by the Partnership will directly affect the amount of cash
available for distribution to Unitholders, In the event that the Partnership's capital costs escalate, there is no
assurance that the Parinership will be able to recover such increased costs through rate increases to its customers,
and in such event, cash available for distribution to Unitholders may be reduced.

Leverage and Restrictive Covenants

The ability of the Fund and the Partnership to make distributions or make other payments or advances will be
subject to applicable taws and contractual restrictions in the instruments governing any indebtedness of those entities
(including the Credit Facility). The degree to which the Partnership is leveraged could have important consequences
for Unitholders including: (i) the Partnership's ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital
expenditures or acquisitions in the future may be limited; (ii) all or part of the Partnership's cash flow from
operations may be dedicated to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Partnership's indebtedness,
thereby reducing funds available for future operations or for distribution to Unitholders; (iii) certain of the
Partnership’s borrowings will be at variable rates of interest, which exposes the Partnership to the risk of increased
interest rates; and (iv) the Partnership may be more vulnerable to economic downturns and be limited in its ability to
withstand competitive pressures. These factors may adversely impact the Partnership’s cash flow and, as a result, the
amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

Interest expense is estimated for the purpose of estimating distributable cash of the Fund based on current market
conditions that are subject to fluctuations. Such fluctuations could result in an unanticipated material increase in
interest rates that could in turn have a material adverse cffect on cash available for distribution to Unitholders.

The Credit Facility contains numerous restrictive covenants that mit the discretion of Management with respect to
certain business matters. These covenants place significant restrictions on, among other things, the ability of the
Partnership to create liens or other encumbrances, 1o pay distributions or make certain other payments, investments,
loans and guarantees and to scil or otherwise dispose of assets and merge or consolidate with another entity. In
addition, the Credit Facility contains a number of financial covenants that require the Partnership to meet certain
financial raties and financial condition tests. A failure to comply with the obligations in the Credit Facility could
result in a default, which, if not cured or waived, could result in a termination of distributions by the Partnership and
permit acceleration of the relevant indebtedness. If the indebtedness under the Credit Facility were to be accelerated,
there can be no assurance that the assets of the Partnership would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness.

Any failure of the Partnership to repay or refinance any or al! of the Credit Facility at its maturity date on acceptable
terms or to comply with applicable covenants under its credit facilities could have a material adverse effect on the
Partnership and its cash flow and. as a resuli, the amount of cash available for distribution to Unitholders and the
value of the Units. There is no assurance that the Partnership will be able to refinance any or all of the Credit
Factlity at its maturity date on acceptable terms, or on any basis.

Availability of Future Financing

The Partnership’s principal sources of funds are cash gencrated from its operating activities and borrowing capacity
under the Credit Facility. Management believes that funds from these sources will provide the Partnership with
sufficient liquidity and capital resources to meet its current and future financial obligations at existing business
levels. Despite Management’s expectations, however, the Partnership may require additional equity or debt financing
to meet its financing requirements. There can be no assurance that this financing will be available when required or
available on commercially favourable terms or on terms that are otherwise satisfactory to the Partnership, in which
event the financial condition of the Partnership may be matenally adversely cffected and the amount of cash
available for distribution to Unitholders may be reduced.
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Ability to Sustain and Manage Growth

The Partnership may not be able to carey out its strategy, which includes the possible acquisition of other
transportation companies, and depends in part on the availability of suitable candidates at valuations accretive to the
Partnership and the availability of required financing. In addition, the Partnership may face competition for
acquisitions from other participants in the transportation industry and from financial buyers with greater financial
resoutces. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that, if the Partnership acquires what it considers to be a suitable
candidate in accordance with its growth strategy, the Partnership will be able to successfully integrate the operations
of the acquired company into the Partnership's operations on an accretive basis.

Dependence on External Funding Sources

The Parinership, like other public transportation companies, relies significantly on external funding sources to
finance its operations and growth. Management currently believes that the Partnership's cash flow from operations
and funds available under the Credit Facility will satisfy the Partnership’s capital requircments for the next 12
months. The Parnership's ability to obtain additional financing will be dependent upon its future operating
performance, gencral cconomic and competitive conditions and financial, business and other factors, many of which
are beyond the Partnership's control.

Risks Relating to the Structure of the Fund

Dependence on ATSOT and the Partnership

Cash distributions to Unitholders will be entirely dependent on the ability of ATSOT to mike distributions on the
ATSOT Units. Payments by ATSOT will depend, in turn, on the ability of the Partnership to satisfy its debt service
obligations under the Credit Facility and the Partnership’s ability to pay distributions on the Ordinary LP Units.

Distributions to Unitholders will be entirely dependent on the ability of the Partnership to pay its operating expenses
and to pay distributions. The sole source of cash flow of the Partnership is the operation of the Business. In the
conduct of the Business, the Partnership pays expenses and incurs debt and other obligations to third parties. These
expenses, debts and obligations could impact the Partnership's ability to produce positive opurating results.,

The Partnership is entirely dependent upon its business operations to pay distributions to ATSOT, and the
Partnership’s ability to do so is subject to the risks encountered by the Partnership in the operation of its business,
including the risks relating to the Canadian freight transportation industry referred to above, and the results of
operations and financial condition of the Partnership. .

In addition, the securities markets have experienced significant market wide and scctoral price and volume
fluctuations from time to time that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of
particular issuers. Such fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of the Units,

Nature of Units

The Units are hybrid securities in that they share certain attributes common to both cquity securities and debt
instruments. The Units do not represent a direct investinent in ATSOT or the Partnership and should not be viewed
as securities of ATSOT or the Partnership. As holders of Units, Unitholders do not have the statutory rights
normally associated with ownership of shares of a corporation including, for example, the right to bring "oppression”
or "derivative” actions. In addition, the benefit of certain statutes applicable to corporations, such as the Companies’
Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada), the Bankrupitcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) and, in some cases, the Winding
Up and Restructuring Act (Canada), may not be applicable to the Fund. The Units represent a fractional interest in
the Fund. The Fund's only assets are the ATSOT Units, The price per Unit is a function of anticipated distributable
cash of the Fund.
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The Units are not "deposits" within the meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act (Canada)
and are not insured under the provisions of that Act or any other legislation. Furthermore, the Fund is not a
trust company and, accordingly, is not registered under any trust and loan company legislation as it does not
carry on or intend 1o carry on the business of a trust company. In addition, although the Fund qualifies as a
"mutual fund trust” as defined by the Tax Act, the Fund is not a "mutual fund" as defined by applicable
securities legislation.

Cash Distributions

Although the Fund intends to distribute the cash it receives, less expenses and amounts, if any, paid by the Fund in
connection with the redemption of Units, there can be no assurance regarding the amounts of income to be generated
by the Partnership and ATSOT and paid to the Fund. The actual amounts of distributions paid by the Fund to the
Unitholders will depend upon numerous factors, including profitability, debt covenants and obligations, the
availabitity and cost of acquisitions, fluctuations in working capital, the timing and amount of capital expenditures,
applicable law and other factors beyond the control of the Fund, ATSOT and the Pannership. Cash distributions are
not guaranteed and will fluctuate with the Partnership's performance. The Partnership and ATSOT have the
discretion to cstablish cash reserves for the proper conduct of their business. Adding 1o these reserves in any year
would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution by the Fund in that year. There can be no assurance as to
the levels of cash distributions to be paid by the Fund, if any. The market value of the Units may deteriorate if the
Fund is unable 1o meet its cash distribution targets in the future, and such deterioration may be material.

Structural Subordination of the Units

In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization of the Partnership or any of the Fund's other subsidiaries,
holders of wrtain of their indebtedness and certain trade creditors will gencrally be entitled to payment of their
claims from the assets of the Partnership and those subsidiarics before any assets are made avatlable for distribution
to the Fund. The Units are effectively subordinated to most of the mdebtedness and other liabilities of the
Partnership and the Fund's other subsidiaries. Neither the Partnership nor any of the Fund's other subsidiaries are
limited in its ability to incur secured or unsecured indebtedness.

Leverage and Restrictive Covenants

The Parinership has third party debt service obligations under the Credit Facility and any replacement or other credit
facilities. See "Material Contracts — Credit Facility”. The degree to which the Parinership is leveraged could have
important consequences to the holders of the Units, including: (i) a portion of the Partnership's cash flow from
operations will be dedicated to the payment of the principal of and interest on its indebtedness, thereby reducing
funds available for distribution to the Fund: (ii) certain of the Pannership's borrowings will be at variable rates of
interest, which exposes the Partnership to the risk of increased interest rates. The Partnership's ability 1o make
scheduled payments of principal and interest on, or to refinance, its indebtedness will depend on its future operating
performance and cash flow, which are subject to prevailing economic conditions, prevailing interest rate levels, and
financial, competitive, business and other factors. many of which are beyond its control.

The Credit Facility contains certain customary operating covenants that limit the discrction of Management with
respect lo certain business matters. These covenants place restrictions on, among other things, the ability of the
Parinership to incur additional indebtedness, to create liens or other encumbrances, to pay distributions or make
certain other payments, investments, Joans and guarantees and to sell or otherwise dispose of assets and merge or
consolidate with another entity. A failure to comply with the obligations in the agreements in respect of the Credit
Facility could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could permit acceleration of the relevam
indebtedness. If the indebtedness under the Credit Facility were to be accelerated, there can be no assurance that the
Partnership's assets would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness.

The Partnership may need to refinance its available credit facilities or other debt and there can be no assurance that
the Partnership will be able to do so or be able to do so on terms as favourable as those currently in place. If the
Partnership is unable to refinance these credit facilitics or other debt, or is only able to refinance these credit
facilities or other debt on less favourable and/or more restrictive terms, this may have a material adverse effect on
the Partnership’s financial position, which may result in a reduction or suspension of cash distributions to
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Unitholders. In addition, the terms of any new credit facility or debt may be less favourable or more restrictive that
the terms of the existing credit facilities or other debt. which may indirectly limit or negatively impact the ability of
the Fund to pay cash distributions.

Restrictions on Potential Growth

The payout by the Partnership of substantially all of its operating cash flow will make additiona) capital and
operating expenditures dependent on increased cash flow or additional financing in the future. Lack of those funds
could limit the future growth of the Partnership and its cash flow,

Tax Related Risks

The income of the Partnership, ATSOT and the Fund must be computed and will be taxed in accordance with
Canadian tax laws, all of which may be changed in a manner that could adversely affect the amount of distributable
cash. There can be no assurance that Canadian income tax laws respecting the treatment of mutual fund trusts will
not be changed in a manner that adversely affects the holders of Units. The Declaration of Trust provides that an
amount equal to the taxable income of the Fund will be distributed each year to Unitholders in order to eliminate the
Fund's taxable income and provides that additional Units may be distributed to Unitholders in lieu of cash
distributions. Unitholders will generally be required to include an amount equal to the fair market value of those
Units in their taxable income, in circumstances when they do not directly receive a cash distribution,

If the Fund ceases to qualify as a "mutual fund trust” under the Tax Act, the Units will cease to be qualified
tnvestments for Exempt Plans. The Fund will endeavour to ensure that the Units continue to be qualified
investments for Exempt Plans. The Tax Act imposes penalties for the acquisition or holding of non-qualified
investments in such plans and there is ne assurance that the conditions prescribed for such qualified investments will
be adhercd to at any particular time.

Finally, if the Fund ceases to qualify as mutual fund trust for purposes of the Tax Act, the Fund may be required to
pay tax under Part XI1I.2 of the Tax Act. The payment of Part XI1.2 tax by the Fund will affect the amount of cash
available for distribution by the Fund and may have adverse consequences for Unitholders.

On September 16, 2004, the Minister of Finance {Canada) relcased draft amendments to the Tax Act that, if adopted,
may cause the Fund to lose its status as a mutual fund trust in certain circumstances. Currently, a trust will not be
constdered to be a mutual fund trust if it is established or maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-residents
unless all or substantially all of its property is property other than “taxable Canadian property” as defined in the Tax
Act. The Fund has adopted mechanisms to ensure that the Fund is not maintained primarily for the benefit of Non-
residents. These draft amendments to the Tax Act provide that a trust would lose its status as a mutual fund trust if
the agpregate fair market value of all units issued by the trust held by one or more Non-residents or Nen-Canadian
Partnerships {(as defined herein) is more than 50% of the aggregate fair market value of all the units issued by a trust
where more than 10% (bascd on fair market value) of the trust's property is taxable Canadian property or cenain
other types of property. If the draft amendments are enacted as proposed, and if, at any time, more than 50% of the
aggregate fair market value of Units of the Fund were held by Non-residents and Non-Canadian Partnerships, the
Fund would thereafter cease to be a mutual fund trusi. The draft amendments do not currently provide any means of
rectifying a loss of mutual fund trust status. On December 6, 2004, the Minister of Finance ((Canada) tabled a Notice
of Ways and Means Motion to implement certain measures proposed in September 16, 2004 draft amendments.
However, such Notice did not inciude the above-mentioned proposal concemning mutual funds maintained primarily
for the benefit of Non-residents. In addition, the Minister of Finance (Canada) announced on December 6, 2004 and
in the 2005 Federal Budget that further discussions will be pursued with the private sector in this respect.

On October 31, 2006, the Minister of Finance {Canada) announced the "Tax Fairness Plan" and tabled a Notice of
Ways and Means Motion that proposes to significantly change the income tax treatment of most publicly traded
trusts and partnerships (other than certain real estate investment trusts), and distributions and allocations, as the case
may be, from these entitics to their investors. In particular, certain income earned by these entities will be taxed in a
manner similar to income eamed by a corporation, and distributions or allocations made by these entities to
investors will be taxed in a manner similar to dividends fromtaxable Canadian corporations. Such deemed dividends
will be eligible for the proposed new enhanced dividend tax credit if paid or allocated to a resident of Canada. These
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proposals will be effective for the 2007 taxation year for trusts and partnerships that commence public trading after
October 31, 2006, but will be delayed until the 201} taxation year for trusts and partnerships that were publicly
traded prior to November 1, 2006. The Fund is currently considering these proposals and the possible impact they
will have on the Fund and its investors, However, these proposals are not expected to have an immediate impact on
the Fund's tax treatment or distribution policy or the tax treatment of distributions to investors.

Future Sales of Units by the Vendor

The Vendor holds approximately 19.9% of the outstanding Units (assuming the exchange for Units of all of the
Exchangeable LP Units). If the Vendor sells a substantia} number of its Units in the public market, the market price
of the Units could fall. The perception among the public that such sales may occur could also result in a reduction in
the market price of the Units.

Ability to Recover from Vendor for Breaches of Acquisition Agreement

The Vendor has provided certain representations and warranties regarding the Business and certain other matters.
Following the completion of the transfer of the Business to the Partnership, the Vendor had sold a large portion of its
assets and may distribute all or a substantial portion of the proceeds that it received from such sale to its
shareholders. In the event that the Partnership or the Fund suffers any loss as a result of a breach of the
representations and warranties or any other term of the Acquisition Agreement by the Vendor, the Partnership may
not be able to recover the amount of its entire loss from the Vendor. The Vendor may not have sufficient property to
satisfy the Partnership’s or the Fund's loss.

Conflicts of Interest

Centain directors of the GP are associated with other companies or entities, which may give rise to conflicts of
interest. In accordance with the CBCA, dircctors who have a material interest in any perzon who is a party to a
material contract or proposed material contract with the GP are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose
that interest and abstain from voting on any resolution to approve that contract. In addition, the directors are required
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the GP. Sec "Conflicts of Interest” and "Interests
of Management and Others in Material Transactions”.

Unitholder Limited Liability

The Peclaration of Trust provides that no Unitholder, in its capacity as such, shall incur or be subject to any Hability
in contract or in tort in connection with the Fund or its obligations or affairs and, in the event that a court determines
Unitholders are subject 1o any such liabilities, the liabilitics will be enforceable only against, and will be satisfied
only out of the Fund's assets. Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, the Fund will indemnify and hold harmless each
Unitholder from any cost, damages, liabilitics, cxpenses, charges or losses suffered by a Unitholder from or arising
as a result of such Unitholder not having such limited Hability. The Declaration of Trust provides that all contracts
signed by or on behalf of the Fund must contain a provision to the effect that such obligation will not be binding
upon Unitholders personally. Unitholders will also have the benefit of the Trust Beneficiaries’ Liability Act
(Ontano), which came into force in December 2004. However, the effect of the Trust Beneficiaries’ Liability Act
(Ontario} has not been considered by any courts to date and there remains a risk, which is considercd by the Fund to
be remote in the circumstances, that a Unitholder could be held personally liable despite such statements in the
Declaration of Trust, for the obligations of the Fund to the extent that contractual, tax, statutory or tort claims are not
satisfied out of the assets of the Fund.

Under limited partnership legislation, a limited partner taking part in the management of a limited partnership is
potentialty responsible for partnership liabilities as a general partner. The investment of the Fund in the Partnership
is held through ATSOT and accordingly, the possibility of any such liability attaching to Unitholders is remote.




Distribution of Securities on Redemption or Termination of the Fund

Upon a redemption of Units or termination of the Fund, the Trustees may distribute Redemption Notes directly to
Unitholders, subject to obtaining all required regulatory approvals. There is currently no market for the Redemption
Notes that may be issued. In addition. any Redemption Notes that may be issued are not expected to be freely
tradable and are not expected to be listed on any stock exchange. See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Redemption
Right". Redemption Notes so distributed may not be qualified invesiments for trusts governed by Exempt Plans,
depending upon the circumstances at the time.

DISTRIBUTIONS
Distribution Record

Actual Distributions paid or declared per Trust Unit per month in each of the quarters since the Fund’s inception in
2005 are as follows:

Distribution per Unit per month "

2006 2005
January - March $0.0810
April - June $0.0932
Jaly - September $0.0941
October — December $0.0974 $0.0810
Special Distribution $0.2800 % $0.3993 ¥
Notes:
1)) Monthly information refers to the month in which the record date for the relevam distribution occurs, with the

distribution being paid in the following month.

2) The initial distribution for the period from September 30" to October 31™ 2005, inclusive, was $0.085 per Unit.

3) In December 2006 the Fund announced a special cash distribution of $0.2800 per Unit payable on March 15, 2007,

{4) Includes a special cash distribution of $0.3343 per Unit and a special non-cash distribution payable in Units with a
value of 30.065 per Unit dectared in December 2005 and payable on March 31, 2006

Distribution Policy

The Fund currently makes monthly distributions of its available distributable cash to Unitholders to the extent
determined prudent by the Trustees. Monthly distributions are paid to Unitholders of record on the last business day
of each calendar month or such other date as may be determined fom time to time by the Trustees and are paid
generally on the 15th day of the following month or the first business day following the 15th . The Fund currently
distributes $.0974 per Unit per month ($1.1688 per Unit per anoum). The amount of available distributable cash
and cash distributions is dependent on the performance of the Partnership and accordingly may vary over time. See
"ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Cash Distributions".

The Fund may make zdditional distributions in excess of the aforementioned monthly distributions during the year,
as the Trustees may determine. The distribution declared in respect of the month ending December 31 in each year
will include such amount in respect of the taxable income and net realized capital gains, if any, of the Fund for such
year as is necessary to ensure that the Fund will not be liable for ordinary income taxes under the Tax Act in such
year,

Any income of the Fund that is unavailable for cash distribution will, to the extent necessary to ensure that the Fund
does not have any income tax liability under Part | of the Tax Act, be distributed to Unitholders in the form of
additional Units. Such additional Units will be issued pursuant to applicabie exemptions under applicable securities
laws, discretionary exemptions granted by applicable securities regulalory authorities or a prospectus or similar
filing.
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The distributable cash of ATSOT is derived primarily from distributions on or in respect of Ordinary LP Units
owned by ATSOT. ATSOT makes monthly distributions to holders of ATSOT Units of its distributable cash after
satisfaction of its interest obligations, if any, less any administrative expenses and other obligations of ATSOT. See
"ATS Andlaucr Operating Trust — Cash Distributions”.

The Partnership makes monthly distributions of its distributable cash on the Ordinary LP Units and Exchangeable
LP Units, less a discretionary reserve at the discretion of the board of directors of the GP. The distribulable cash of
the Partnership is based on available cash from its opcrations. less amounts required for debt service obligations,
general and administrative expenses and other expense obligations. expenditures in excess of reserves, long-term
incentive plan awards and other incentives, reserves, and such other amounts as are considered appropriate by the
board of directors of the GP, Capital and other expenditures (including amounts to enable the Partnership to pay
equal monthly distributions based on expected annual cash distributions) may be financed with drawings under one
or more credit facilities of the Partnership, other borrowings or additional issuances of Units. See "ATS Andlauer
Transportation Services Limited Partnership — Distributions”.

The Fund, ATSOT and the Partnership have considerable discretion in determining the amount of cash
distributions. Cash distributions are not pguaranteed and available distributable cash will fluctuate with,
among other things, the Partnership’s performance. See ""Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Structure of
the Fund — Cash Distributions™.
The Credit Facility may in certain circumstances restrict the ability of the Partnership to pay distributions to the
holders of LP Units if the payment would result in default under the Credit Facility. See "Material Contracts —
Credit Facility".

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE
General Description of Capital Structure
See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund” for a description of the rights, privileges and restrictions attached to the Units
and the Special Voting Units. Sce "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights” for a description of the rights, privileges

and restrictions attached to the Exchange Rights.

See "ATS Andlaver Operating Trust" for a description of the rights, privileges and resttictions attached to the
securities of ATSOT.

See "ATS Andlauer Transportation Scrvices Limited Partnership” and "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights” for a
description of the rights, privileges and restrictions attached to the sccurities of the Partnership.

See "ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP hce.” for a description of the rights, privileges and restrictions
attached to the GP Common Sharcs.

Constraints

See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund - Limitation on Non-Resident Ownership™ for a description of the constraints
imposed on the ownership of the Units to easure that the Units have a required level of Canadian ownership and the
mechanism by which the level of Canadian ownership of the Units is monitored and maintained.

Ratings

To the knowledge of Management, no ratings, including provisional ratings, have been recetved from any rating
organization in respect of the Units of the Fund.

Secuarities Held in Escrow

To the Fund’s knowledge, no securities of the Fund are held in escrow,
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MARKET FOR SECURITIES
Trading Price and Yolume

The Units are listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the trading symbol "ATS.UN". The following table
sets forth the closing price range and trading velume of the Units as recorded by the TSX for each month in which
the Units traded in 2006,

Month High Low Volume
January 10.25 9.71 549,872
February 10.50 9.35 2,282,169
March 11.50 9.80 679,528
April 12.25 11.01 835,465
May 12.24 11.55 604,956
June 12.75 11.37 456,868
July 13.25 12.30 333,135
August 12.70 11.90 156,287
September 13.25 12.25 553,284
October 13.55 12.25 T75,165
November 11.99 10.15 773,640
December 11.65 10.90 269,678
For the year 13.55 935 8,270,047

Prior Sales

In addition to the Units, the Fund has 2,316,442 Special Voting Units and 2,316,442 Exchange Rights outstanding.
See "Description of Capital Structure — General Description of Capital Structure”. The issued and outstanding
Special Voling Units and Exchange Rights were issued for nominal consideration in connection with the
Acquisition.

TRUSTEES, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Trustees of the Fund

The Trustees of the Fund are Michacl Andlauer, David Matheson, Q.C.. Hanif (Chiko) Nanji, Brian Luborsky and
John Schiller, who also serve as the Trustees of ATSOT and as directors of the GP. M. Matheson, Q.C. is the
Chairman of the Trustees, the trustees of ATSOT and the board of directors of the GP. See "ATS Andlauer Income
Fund — Trustees" and "ATS Andlauer Operating Trust— Trustees of ATSOT".

Directors and Officers of the GP

The following table sets out certain information in respect of the directors and executive officers of the GP. The

term of office for each of the directors will expire at the time of the next annual mecting of securityholders of the
GP.




Name and Province/Country

of Residence

Position with GP
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Date Appointed as a
Director

Principal Occupation During Five
Preceding Years

MICHAEL ANDLAUER"

Ontario, Canada

DAVID MATHESON'?

Ontario, Canada

HANTIF (CHIKO) NANJJH

Quebec, Canada

BRIAN LUBORSKY!H?!
Ontario, Canada

JOHN SCHILLER"'¥3
Omarie, Canada

C. ROBERT BROGAN
Ontarie, Canada

BRIAN MASCARENHAS

Ontario, Canada

MICHEL LUNARDI
Quebec, Canada

TERRY JESSUP
Omtario, Canada

MARGARET SMITH
Nova Scotia, Canada

Trustee, Director,
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Trustee and Director

Trustee and Director

Trustee and Director

Trustee and Director

Senior Executive Vice-
President

Vice-President, Finance
and Chief Financial
Officer

Vice-President, Eastern
Operations and Sales

Senior Vice-President,
Ontario Operations and
Sales

Informanion Govemance
Officer and Corporate
Secretary

August 19, 2005

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2005

September 30, 2005

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

President and Chief Executive Officer of the
GP since August 2005. Prior thereto, Chief
Executive Officer of the Vendor since 1991,

Counsel, McMillan Binch Mendelsohn LLP
2002 to current,

President and Chief Executive Officer, Metro
Canada Logistics Inc. (a warchousing,
transportation management and customized
supply chain solutions firm) since 1988.

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Premier Salons {(an operator of salons and
spas) stnce 1984, and eamed a Charter
Accountant  designation in 1982 while
working as Coopers & Lybrand.

Retired since 2004, Prior thereto, President of
Kingsway Transport, an LTL, TL and
speciafized transport company, since 2002.
Prior thereto, Chief Operating Officer of
Maritime - Ontanio Freight Lines Limited, a
private LTL carrier company, from 2000 to
2002,

Senior Executive Vice-President of the GP
since August 2005. Prior thereto, President of
the Vendor since 2001.

Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial
Officer of the GP since August 2005. Prior
thereto, Chief Financial Officer of AMG (a
company founded to manage and operate
topistics and transportation companies) since
2003. Prior thereto, Controtler of the Vendor
since 1991.

Vice-President, Eastern Operations and Sales
of the GP since August 2005, Prior thereto,
Vice-President, Eastern Operations and Sales
of the Vendor since 2002, Prior thereto, a
variety of managenal and operational
positions with the Vendor since 1991.

Senior  Vice-President, Ontaric Operations
and Sales since August 2005. Prior thereto,
Senior  Vice-President of the Vendor since
199¢.

Information and Governance Officer since
2005 and Corporate Secretary since August
2006. Prior thereto, Senior Finance Branch
Officer Air Canada Jazz 2000- 2005, and
eammed a Chartered Accountant designation in
2000 while working at KPMG LLP.
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Notes:

{1 Trustee of the Fund and ATSOT.

{2} Member of the Audit and Governance Committee of each of the Fund and the GP {Mr. Luborsky Chair).
3) Member of the Compensation Committee of each of the Fund and the GP (Mr. Nanji Chair).

Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Vendor Group has the right to elect one trustce so long as the
Vendor Group holds, directly or indirectly, Units or LP Units representing (on a diluted basis) not less than 10% of
the outstanding Units. The remaining Trustees are selected by Voting Unitholders. The same individuals are to be
Trustees, trustees of ATSOT and directors of the GP. Under the terms of the Declaration of Trust, the Trustees are
required to elect the Trustees as the trustees of ATSOT and under the terms of the ATSOT Declaration of Trust, the
trustees of ATSOT are required to elect the trustees of ATSOT as directors of the GP. See "ATS Andlaver Income
Fund — Trustees".

Unit and LP Unit Ownership

As at the date hereof, the Trustees and the directors and executive officers of the GP, as a group, own beneficially,
directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, an aggregate of 652,843 Units and 2,316,442
Exchangeable LP Units, representing approximately 25.51% of the outstanding Units (assaming the exchange for
Units of all of the outstanding Exchangeable LP Units) and no GP Common Shares. The Vendor owns beneficially,
directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, 2,316,442 Exchangeable LP Units (19.9%) and
2,316,442 GP Common Shares (19.9%). AMG, a company controlied by Michael Andlauer, a trustee of each of the
Fund and ATSOT and a director and the President and Chief Executive Officer of the GP, owns beneficially,
directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, 100% of the outstanding securities of the Vendor, and
also owns 180,700 Units of the Fund (1.9%).

Cease Trade Orders, Bankrupicies, Penalties or Sanctions

To the knowledge of the Fund and the GP, other than as set forth below, no trustee, director or executive officer of
the Fund or the GP, or shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Fund or the GP 10 affect
materially the control of the Fund or the GP:

{a) is, as at the date of this annual information form, or has been, within the 10 years before the date of this
annual information form, a director or executive officer of any company (including the Fund and the GP)
that while that person was acting in that capacity:

(1) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the relevant company
access to any exemption under securitics legislation, for a peried of more than 30 consecutive
days;

(ii) was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer ceased 1o be a director

or cxecutive officer, in the company being the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order
that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities. legislation, for a period
of more than 30 consecutive days; or

(i) or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal
under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or
trusice appointed to hold its assets; or

{b) has within the 1¢ years before the date of this annual information form, become bankrupt, made a proposal
under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any
proccedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trusice
appointed to hold the assets of the director, officer or shareholder.

Mr. Luborsky was an officer and a director of Premier Salons International, Inc. ("PST'), a Delaware corporation
with operations in the United States, when it filed a petition for bankruptcy under chapter 11 of title 11, United
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States Code ("Chapter 11") in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the "Court") in
October 1999. He was also a director of PSI's direct parent company, GEMM Holdings, Inc. ("GEMM"), which
filed for Chapter |1 at the same time as PSI. Mr. Luborsky was the indirect owner of 85% of the common stock of
GEMM. The remaining 15% of GEMM's common stock was owned by a second shareholder. A final decree was
issued by the Court in December 2002 closing the Chapter 11 cases of each of PS1 and GEMM.

Mr. Matheson was the director and officer of Balmur Entertainment Limited, a private company, until November 14,
2001, Balmur Entertainment Limited filed a notice of intention to make a proposal to creditors at a creditors meeting
which was to be heid on August 26, 2002 and which was adjourned to October 23, 2003. at which the creditors did
not accept the proposal. Balmur Entertainment Limited was deemed bankrupt on October 23, 2003.

To the knowledge of the Fund and the GP, no trusice, director or executive officer of the Fund or the GP, or
shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Fund or the GP 1o affect materially the control of the
Fund or the GP, has been subject to:

(a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securitics legiskation or by a securities regulatory
authority or has cntered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority; or

(b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered
important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE INFORMATION

The full ext of the Fund's Audit and Governance Committee mandaic is attached as Schedule "B to this annual
information form. The board of directors of the GP has also esiablished an Audit and Governance Committee,
which undertakes substantiatly the same responsibilitics in respect of the GP and the Partnership as the Audit and
Governance Committee of the Trustees undertakes in respect of the Fund

Composition of the Audit and Governance Committee

The Audit and Governance Committee consists of three members, all of whom are independent and financially
literate in accordance with the definitions in Multilateral Insirument 52-110 - Audit Committees. The education and
experience of each Audit and Governance Committee member that is relevant to the performance of his
responsibilities as a member of said committee is outlined below:

Brian Luborsky (Chair)

Mr. Luborsky is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Premier Salons, a private company that he founded in
1984. Premier Salons operates 375 salons and spas throughout Canada and the United States. Mr. Luborsky has
more than 20 years experience in finance and holds a Bachetor of Commerce degree from the University of Toronto
and received a Chartered Accountant designation in 1982 while working at Coopers & Lybrand.

David Matleson, Q.C.

Mr. Matheson, Q.C., has over 15 years of expertence as a director in the Canadian transportation industry. He has
been a partner and a counsel of the Toronto law firm of McMillan Binch Mendelsohn LLP for over 25 years and
advises national and international clients on various corporate and governance matters. Mr. Matheson has served as
a member of numerous audit committees and corporate governance committees and over the course of his career has
acquired competence in the review of financial statements of major public companies and a familiarity with internal
controls and financial reporting procedures. Mr. Matheson presently serves as the Chair of the Audit Commitiee of
Clarke Inc. and the Chair of the Aundit and Governance Committees of both Newfoundland Capital Corporation
Limited and Tonbridge Power Inc. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree with a major in accounting from
Dathousie University and a Bachelor of Law degree from Dalhousie Law School.
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Hanif (Chike) Nanji

Mr. Nanji has been the President, Chicf Executive Officer and a director of Metro Canada Logistics Inc., a private
third-party provider of warehousing, transportation management and customized supply chain solutions since 1988.
He is also the Chairman of LDC Logistics Development Corporation, a private real estate development company,
the Vice-Chairman and director of Dairy Products in Motion Inc., a private dairy logistics company, and the Vice-
Chairman and a director of Spectrum Supply Chain Selations Inc., a private supply chain management company.
Mr. Nanji has a strong business background having over 20 years experience in the Canadian logistics industry
serving in executive positions overseeing large operating corporations.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit and Governance Commitiee Charter provides that the Audit and Governance Committee approves in
advance all permitted non-audit services to be provided to the Fund or any of its affiliates by the external auditors or
any of their affiliates, subjcct to any de minimus exception allowed by applicable law. The Audit and Governance
Committee is permitted to but has not delegated any of 1ts authonity to grant pre-approvals,

The Audit and Gevernance Commitiee has adopted policies and procedures with respect to the pre-approval of audit
and permitted non-audit services to be provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP. The Audit and Governance Committec
has established a budget for the provision of a specified list of audit and permitted non-audit services that the Audit
and Governance Committee belicves to be typical, recusring or otherwise lkikely to be provided by Deloitte &
Touche LLP. The budget generally covers the period between the adoption of the budget and the next meeting of the
Audit and Governance Commitice, but at the option of the Audit and Governance Committee it may cover a longer
or shorter period. The list of services is sufficiently detailed as to the particular services to be provided to ensure that
(i) the Audit and Governance Committec knows precisely what services it is being asked to pre-approve, and (i1) it is
not necessary for any member of management to make a judgment as to whether a proposedd service fits within the
pre-approved services.

The Audit and Governance Commitice has delegated authority to the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee
(or if the Chair is unavailable, any other member o the committee) to pre-approve the provision of permitted
services by Deloitte & Touche LLP which are not otherwise pre-approved by the Audit and Governance Commitice,
including the fees and terms of the proposed services {"Delegated Authority”). Any required determination about
the Chair's unavailability is required to be made by the good faith judgment of the applicable other member(s) of the
Audit and Governance Committee after considering all facts and circumstances deemed by such member(s) to be
relevant.  All pre-approvals pranted pursuant to Delegated Authority must be presented by the member(s) who
granted the pre-approvals to the full Audit and Governance Commitiee al its pext meeting,

All proposed services or the fees payable in connection with such services that have not alr¢ady been pre-approved
must be pre-approved by either the Audit and Governance ‘Committee or pursuant to Delegated Authority.
Prohibited services may not be pre-approved by the Audit and Governance Commilice or pursuant to Delegated
Authority,

External Auditor Service Fees

The following table provides information about the fees billed to the Fund for professional services rendercd by
Deloitte & Touche LLP to the Fund and its subsidiaries during fiscal 2006:
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($ thousands) 2006 2005

Audit Fees*'’... e 90,100 68,900

Audit Refated Fees ' 31800 130,080

Tax Fees e e e 6,590 12,807

AlLOther Fees ™iinieceeiieesneeeeeeecssssssiees s rertrteaen st en 73,596 9,540

Total . 202,386 221327

Notes:

(1) Represents the aggregate fees billed for audit services, which consists of the audit of the Fund's annual financial
statements and services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Represents the agpregate fees billed for interim reviews, assurance and related services that are reasonably related to

the performance of the audit or review of the Fund's financial statements and are not reporied as Audit Fees. During
fiscal 2006, these services included reviews of the Fund's quarterly financial statements. During fiscal 205, the
services provided in this category included a review of the Fund’s September 30, 2005 interim financial statements,
services rendered in connection with the Fund’s prospectus dated September 22, 2005 including the issuance of auditor
comfort and consent letters, a review of the July 31, 2005 interim financial statements of the Business and compilation
report on the pro forma financial statements of the Fund incorporated in the Business Acquisition report filed by the

Fund.

{3) Represents the aggregate fees billed for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning services. During fiscal 2005, the
services provided in this category included the preparation of GST/HST elections relating 10 the acquisition of the
Business,

{4) Represents the aggregate fees billed for products and services other than Audit Fees, or Tax Fees. During fiscal 2006,

the services provided in this category included consulting services relating 1o the disclosure controls and procedures of
the Fund, CEQ/CFO certification and structure and accounting for LTIP of the Fund.

CONFLICTS OF INTERES T

Centain directors of the GP are assoctated with other companies or entities, which may give rise to conflicts of
tnterest. In accordance with the CBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a
material contract or proposed material contract with the GP are required. subject to certain cxceptions, to disclose
that interest and abstain from voting on any reselution to approve that contract. In addition, the directors are required
to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best intcrests of the GP. See "Risk Factors— Risks Relating to the
Structure of the Fund — Conflicts of Interest” and "Interests of Management and Others in Material Transactions™.

Other than as described above and elsewhere in this annual information form, there arc no existing or potential
material conflicts of interest between the Fund or it subsidiaries and any trustee, director or officer of the Fund or its
subsidiarics

INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

There are no material interests, direct or indirect, of any trustee, director or exccutive officer of the Fund or the GP,
any person or company that is the direct or indirect beneficial owner of, or who exercises control or direction over,
more than 10% of any class or series of the Fund's outstanding voting securities, or any associate or affiliate of any
of the foregoing persons or companies, in any transaction during the year ended December 31, 2006 or during the
current financial year that has materially affected or will materially affect the Fund, other than as disclosed
elsewhere in this annual information form or as set forth below:

1. The Partnership provides transportation services to Concord, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor, and
receives transportation services from Concord.
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2 The Partnership provides office and warchousce space as well as certain administration services to Concord.

3. The Pannership provides transportation services to Logisti-Solve Inc. ("Logisti-Solve "), a company
controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

4. The Partnership provides warchouse space to Logisti-Solve.

5. The Partnership receives temporary labour services from Ready Staffing Solutions Inc., a company
controlled by Mr. Andlauer’s spouse.

6. The Partnership leases its Montréal terminal facilities from 9143-5271 Québec Inc., a company controlled
by Mr. Andlauer.

7. The Partnership rents equipment from Andlaucr Leasing Inc., a company controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

8. The Partnership leases its Hamilton and Mipanee terminal facilities from Andlaver Properties Inc., a
company controlled by Mr. Andlauer.

9. The Partnership provides transportation services to Spectrum Supply Chain Solutions Inc.. a company for
which a trustee of the Fund serves as a director and has significant influence.

For additional information in respect of the foregoing see note 11 to the Fund's audited annual financial statements

for the year ended December 31, 2006 which note is incorporated herein by reference. The Fund's financial
statements are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

PROMOTERS

The Vendor has taken the initiative in founding and organizing the Fund and may thercfore be considered to be a
promoter of the Fund for the purposes of applicable sccuritics legislation. See "General Development of the
Business”, "Description of the Business”, "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights”, "Trustces, Directors and
Officers”, "Interests of Management and Others in Material Transactions” and "Matertal Contracts".

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material legal proceedings to which the Fund is a party or in respect of which any of its property is the
subject, nor are any such proceedings known to the Fund to be contemplated. Management is not aware of any
penalties or sanctions, relating to securities legislation or otherwise, imposed by a court or regulatory authority
against the Fund or the Partnership during the period covered by this annual information form. Neither the Fund nor
the Partnership entered into any settlement agreement relating to securities law matters with any court or regulatory
authority during the period covered by this annual information form.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Units is CIBC Mellon Trust Company at its principal offices in Toronto,
Ontario,

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Fund did not enter inte any material contracts other than contracts
entered into during the ordinary course of business
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INTERESTS OF EXPERTS
Names of Experts

The only persons or companies who are named as having prepared or certified a statement, report or valuation
described or included in a filing, or referred to in a filing, made under National Instrument 51-102 by the Fund
during, or relating to, the Fund's most recently completed financial year, and whose profession or business gives
authority to the statement, report or valuation made by the person or company, are Deloitte & Touche LLP
(" Deloitte™).

Deloitte is independent in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct as outlined by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Fund may be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and on the Fund's website
at www atsincomefund.ca.

Additional information, inchuding directors' and officers' remuneration and indebtedness, principal holders of the
Fund's securities and securitics authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, is contained in the Fund's
information circular for its most recent annual meeting of unitholders, which may be found on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com,

Additional financial information is provided in the Fund's financial statements and management’s discussion and
analysis for the year ended December 31, 2006, which documents may be found on SEDAR at www sedar.com,



SCHEDULE "A"
GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In this annoal information form, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below, unless otherwise
indicated:

" Acquisition” means the acquisition by the Partnership from the Vendor of the Purchased Assets and the assumption
by the Partnership of certain related habilities as more particularly described under "General Development of the

Business™;

"Acquisition Agreement” means the asset purchase and sale agreement entered into between the Partnership and the
Vendor in respect of the Acquisition;

"Administration Agreement” mcans the administration agreement entered into between the Fund, ATSOT and the
GP;

"affiliate” has the meaning given to it in Section 1.2 of National Instrument 45-106 — Prospectus and Registration
Exemptions promulgated under the Securities Act (Ontanio);

"AMG" means Andlauer Management Group Inc., a majority shareholder of the Vendor controlled by Michael
Andlauer;

"associate” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securities Act (Ontario);

"ATS Andlaver Entities” means, and includes ATSOT, the GP, the Partnership, any of their affiliates and any other
direct or indirect subsidiary of the Fund;

"ATSOT' means ATS Andlauer Operating Trust, a trust establis hed under the laws of the Province of Ontario
pursuant to the ATSOT Declaration of Trust;

"ATSOT Declaration of Trust’ means the declaration of trust pursuant to which ATSOT was established, as the
same may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time, See "ATS Andlauer Qperating Trust™,

"ATSOT Unitholders" means, at the relevant time, the holders of the ATSOT Units;
"ATSOT Units" means the trust units of ATSOT,;
"Business” means the Canadian transportation sclutions business of the Vendor acquired by the Partnership;

"business day” means a day when banks are generally open for the transaction of business in Toronto, Omario, other
than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory or civic holiday;

"CBCA" means the Canada Business Corporations Act, as amended, including the regulations promulgated
thereunder;

“CDS” means The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited, and it’s wholly owned subsidiary, CDS Clearing
and Depository Services Inc, (CoreCo), collectively;

"Concord"' means Concord Transportation Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Vendor;
"CRA" means Canada Revenue Agency;

"Credit Facility" means the credit facilities entered into by the Partnership with a Canadian chanered bank
concurrent with the completion of the Acquisition. Sec "Material Contracts - Credit Facility™;
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"Declaration of Frust” means the declaration of trust pursuant 1o which the Fund was established, as the same may
be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. See "ATS Andlauer Income Fund”;

"Deferred Encome Plans” means, collectively, trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered
retirement income funds and deferred profit sharing plans, each as defined in the Tax Act;

"diluted basis" mcans, for purposes of the Sccurityholders Agreement, the number of Units outstanding assuming
the exchange of all Exchangeable LP Units;

"distributable cash” has thc meaning given to it under "Non-GAAP Measures”;

"EBITDA" has the meaning given to it under "Non-GAAP Measures™;

"Exchange Agreement” means the exchange agreement entered into among the Fund, ATSOT. the Partnership, the
GP and the Vendor providing for, among other things, the Exchange Rights, and demand and piggyback registration
rights. See "Retained Interest and Exchange Rights™;

"Exchange Rights" means the right of a holder of Exchangeable LP Units to exchange one Exchangeable LP Unit
for one Unit by delivering such Exchangeable LP Unit in exchange for a Unit. See "Retained Interest and Exchange
Rights";

"Exchangeable LP Units” means the exchangeable units of the Partnership held by the Vendor;

"Exchangeable Securities” means the Exchangeable LP Units and any other securitics that are exchangeable,
directly or indircctly, for Units;

"Exempt Plans" means, collectively, Deferred Income Plans and RESPs;
“Founding Shareholder” means AMG;

"Fund’ means ATS Andlauer Income Fund, 2 trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to
the Declaration of Trust;

"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles in Canada;

"GP" mcans ATS Andlauer Transportation Services GP Inc., a corporation incorporated under the CBCA;
"GP Common Shares” means the common shares in the capital of the GP;

"GP Units" means the ordinary general partner units of the Partnership held by the GP,

"Limited Partnership Agreement" means the limited partnership agreement, as amended, supplemented or restated
from time to time, between the Vendor, the GP and ATSOT, by which the Partnership is governed:

"LP Units" means, collectively, the Ordinary LP Units and the Exchangeable LP Units;
"LTIP" means the long-term incentive plan of the Partnership;
“LTL" means less-than-truckload;

"Management” means senior management of the GP;

"Non-Canadian Partnership’ means a partnership that is not a "Canadian partnership” within the meaning of the
Tax Act;
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"Non-Competition Agreement” means the non-competition agreement entered into among the Fund, the
Partnership, the GP and Michael Andlauer as more particularly described under "Material Contracts — Non-
Competition Agreement”;

"Non-resident” means a non-resident of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act;
"Ordinary LP Units" means the ordinary limited partnership units of the Partnership;

"Partnership’ mcans ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership, a limited parinership formed
under the laws of the Province of Manitoba;

"Partnership Special Resolution” mcans a resolution of the partners of the Parinership passed with the consent of
the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the LP Units and GP Units, in the aggregate, voted on such resolution at a duly
constituted meeting or by a written resolution of partners holding more than 66 2/3% of the LP Units and GP Units.
in the aggregate, entitled 10 vote at a duly constituted meeting;

"Permitted Investments” means: (i) obligations issucd or guaranteed by the Government of Canada or any province
of Canada or any agency or instrumentality thereof; (ii) term deposits, guaranteed investment certificates,
certificates of deposit or bankers' acceptances of or guaranteed by any Canadian chanered bank or other financial
institution, the short-term debt or deposits of which have been rated at least A" or the equivalent by Standard &
Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Company Inc., Moody's Investor Services, Inc. or Dominion Bond Rating
Services Limited; and (111)) commercial paper rated at least "R-1" or the equivalent by Dominion Bond Rating
Services Limited, in each case maturing not more than 180 days after the date of acquisition;

"Person'’ means any individual, partnership, association, body corporate, trustee, executor, administrator, legal
representative, government, regulatory authority or other entity;

"Purchased Assets” means the assets used in the Business acquired by the Partnership from the Vendor pursuant to
the Acquisition as more particularly described under "Description of the Business”;

"Redemption Date” means a date on which Units are surrendered for redemption;

"Redemption Notes” means unsecured, subordinated promissory notes that may be issued by the Fund {or a
subsidiary of the Fund including ATSOT) in satisfaction of the redemption price for Units in certain circumstances.
as further described under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Redemption Right”;

"Redemption Price” has the meaning given to that term under "ATS Andlauer Income Fund — Redemption Right";

"RESP" means a registered education savings plan as defined in the Tax Act;

"Securityholders Agreement” means the agreement entered into among the Fund, ATSOT, the Partnership, the GP
and the Vendor providing for, among other things, the governance of the GP;

"Special Resolution" means a resolution of the Voting Unitholders passed by not less than 66 2/3% of the votes
cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Voting Unitholders called for the purpose of approving such
resolution, or approved in writing by the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of the Voting Units entitled to vote on
such resolution;

"Special Voting Units" means the special voting units of the Fund, issued to or for the benefit of holders of
Exchangeable Securities and certified under the Declaration of Trust for the time being outstanding and entitled to
the benefits and subject to the imitations set forth therein;

"subsidiary” has the meaning set out in the Securities Act (Ontario) and includes a partnership or other entity;

"Tax Act' means the Jncome Tax Act {Canada), as amended, including the regulations promulgated thereunder;
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"TL" means truckload;

"Trustees"” mean the trustees of the Fund from time 1o time;

"TSX" means the Toronto Stock Exchange;

"Unif* means a trust unit of the Fund other than a Spectal Voting Unit;

"United States” or "U.S." means the United States, as defined in Rule 902(1) under Regulation S;
"Unitholders” means the holders of Units from time to time;

"Vendor" means ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Inc., a corporation incorporated under the CBCA and
owned by the Existing Shareholders;

"Vendor Group® means, collectively, the Vendor and any Existing Sharcholder and any shareholder, associate or
affiliate of the Vendor or an Existing Shareholder, including any family member of a shareholder of a Vendor or an
Existing Shareholder or any company, trust or other entity owned by or maintained for the benefit of any of such
Persons;

"Voting Units" means the Units and the Special Voting Units; and

"Voting Unitholders” means the Unitholders and the holders of Special Voting Units,

All dollar amounts set forth in this annual information form are in Canadian dollars.




SCHEDULE "B"
ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

The term "Fund” refers to ATS Andlaver Income Fund, the term "Trustees” refers to the trustees of the Fund, the
term "Administrator” refers to ATS Andlaver Transporiation Services GP Inc. (thc '"GP") in its capacity as
administrator of the Fund pursuant to the Administration Agreement between the Fund, ATS Andlauer Operating
Trust ("ATSOT") and the Administrator, and the term “Governance Agreements” refers, collectively, to the
Declaration of Trust of the Fund, the Administration Agreement, the Securityholders Agreement beiween the
Fund, ATSOT, the GP, ATS Andlauer Transportation Services Limited Partnership (the "ATS Andlaver LP") and
others, the Exchange Agreement between the Fund, ATSOT, the GP, the ATS Andlauer LP and others and the
Limited Partnership Agreement governing ATS Andlauer LP.

PURPOSE

The Audit and Governance Committee (the "Committee”) is a standing committee appointed by the Trustees to
assist the Trustees in fulfilling their oversight responsibilities with respect to the Fund's financial reporting including
responsibility to:

. oversee the integrity of the Fund's financial statements and financial reporting process, including the audit
process and the Fund's internal accounting controls and procedures and compliance with related legal and

regulatory requirements;

. oversee the qualifications and independence of the Fund's external auditors (who shali report directly to the
Committee),

. oversee the work of the Fund's financial management and external auditors in these areas; and

. provide an open avenue of communication between the external auditors, the Trustces, the board of

directors of the GP, the trustees of ATSOT, the Administrator and the officers (collectively,
"Management") of the Fund, the Administrator, the GP and ATS Andlaver LP.

The Commitice is also responsible for overseeing and assessing the functioning of the Trustecs and the commitiees
of the Trustees and for the development, recommendation to the Trustees, implementation and assessment of
effective governance principles. In addition, the Committee will undertake on behalf of the Trustees such other
governance initiatives as may be necessary or desirable 1o enable the Trustees to provide effective governance for
the Fund and contribute to the success of the Fund.

The Committee will also review and/or approve any other matter specifically delegated 1o the Committee by the
Board.

COMPOSITION AND PROCEDURES

In addition to the procedures and powers set out in any resolution of the Trustees, the Committee will have the
following composition and procedures:

| Composition

The Committee shall consist of no fewer than three members. None of the members of the Committee shall be an
officer or employee of the Fund, ATS Andlauer LP or the GP or any of their respective subsidiaries and each
member of the Committee shall be an "independent trustec” (in accordance with the definition of “independent
director” from time to time under the requirements ot guidelines for audit and governance committee service under
applicable securities laws and the rules of any stock exchange on which the Fund's units are listed for trading);



provided that the fact that a Trustee is also a director of the GP will not disqualify the Trustce from being a member
of the Committce provided that the Trustee would otherwise be eligible to be 2 member of the Committee.

2. Appointment and Replacement of Committee Members

Any member of the Committee may be removed or replaced at any time by the Trustees and shall automatically
cease 10 be a member of the Committee upon ceasing 1o be a Trustee. The Trustees may fill vacancies on the
Commitiee by election from among their number. The Trustees shall fili any vacancy if the membership of the
Committee is less than three Trustees. If and whenever a vacancy shall exist on the Committec, the remaining
mcmbers may exercise all its power so long as a quorum remains in office. Subject to the foregoing, the members of
the Committee shall be elected by the Trustees annually and cach member of the Commiitee shall hold office as
such until the next annual meeting of unitholders after his or her election or until his or her successor shall be duly
elected and qualified.

3. Financial literacy

All members of the Committee must be "financially literate” (as that term is interpreted by the Trustees in their
business judgment or as may be defined from time 1o time under the requirements or guidelines for audit commitiee
service under securitics laws and the rules of any stock exchange on which the Fund's units are listed for trading) or,
if permitted by applicable securities laws or stock exchange rules must become financially hiterate within a
reasonable period of time afier his or her appointment to the Commitice

4, Separate Executive Meetings

The Committee will meet at least once every gquarter, and more often as warranted, with the Chief Financial Officer
of the Administrator and the external auditors in separate executive sessions to discuss any matters that the
Committee or cach of these groups believes should be discussed privately.

5. Professional Assistance

The Committec may retain special legal, accounting, financial or other consultants to advise the Committee at the
Fund's expense and shall have sole authority to retain and terminate any search firm to be used to identify Trustee
candidates or any other consulting firm and to approve any such firm's fees and retention terms.

6. Reliance

Absent actual knowledge to the contrary (which will be promptly reported to the Trustces), each member of the
Committee shall be entitled to rely on (i) the integrity of those persons or organizations within and outside the Fund
from which it receives information, (ii)the accuracy of the financial and other information provided to the
Commiltee by such persons or organizations and (iii) representations made by the Administrator, ATS Andlauer LP
or the GP or their respective senior managements and the external auditors, as to any information technology,
internal audit and other non-audit services provided by the external auditors to the Fund and its subsidiaries.

7. Review of Charter

The Committee will periodically review and reassess the adequacy of this Charter as it deems appropriate and
recommend changes to the Trustees. The Committee will evaluate its performance with reference to this Charter.
The Committee will approve the form of disclosure of this Charter, where required by applicable securities laws or
regulatory requirements, in the annuat proxy circular or annual report of the Fund.

8. Delegation

The Committee may delegate from time to time 1o any person or committee of persons any of the Committee's
responsibilities that lawfully may be delegated.
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9. Reporting to the Trustees

The Committce will report through the Committee Chair to the Trustees following meetings of the Committee on
matters considered by the Committee, its activities and compliance with this Charter.

10. Whistleblowing

The Commitice shall be responsible to oversee the setting of policies for handling complaints or whistleblowing as
they may relate to financial reporting and processes, internal financial controls, financial risk management systems.
and internal and external audit functions, which policies shall be administered by the Administrator. In particular,
without limitation, the Chair with the Members of the Committee shall set policies for and oversee the establishment
of procedures to facilitate the submission, on a confidential and anonymous basis, of complaints, reports and
concerns by any person regarding (i) such financial, accounting, intemnal accounting controls or auditing matters, (i}
actual or potential violations of laws, rules or regulations in respect thereof and (iti) other suspected wrongdoing in
respect thereof. Such responsibilities and procedures shall be as prescribed by the Joint Code of Business Conduct
and shall include a policy on how complaints and whistleblowing should be submitted on a confidential basis and on
a confidential, investigative and reporting process.

SPECIFIC MANDATES OF THE COMMITTEE - AUDIT, ACCOUNTING, FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee will:
1. In Respect of the Fund's External Auditors

(a) review the performance of the external auditors of the Fund who shall report directly to the
Committee and are accountable to the Committee and the Trustees as the representatives of the
unitholders of the Fund, including the lead partner of the independent auditor team and make
recommendations to the Trustees as to the reappointment or appointmen of the external auditors
of the Fund to be proposed in the Fund's proxy circular for unitholder approval and shall have
authonty to terminate the external auditors;

(b) review the reasons for any proposed change in the cxternal auditors of the Fund which is not
initiated by the Committee or the Trustees and any other significant issues related to the change,
including the response of the incumbent auditors, and enquire as to the qualifications of the
proposed auditors before making its recommendation to the Trustees;

(<) approve the terms of engagement and the compensation to be paid by the Fund to the Fund's
external auditors;

(d) review the independence of the Fund's external auditors. including reports from the external
auditors respecting their indepcendence and consideration of applicable auditor independence
standards;

{e) approve in advance all permitted non-audit services to be provided to the Fund or any of its

affihiates by the external auditors or any of their affiliates, subject to any de minimus exception
allowed by applicable law; the Committee may delegate to one or more designated members of the
Committee the authority to grant pre-approvals required by this subsection;

() if the Committee approves an audit service within the scope of the engagement of the independent
auditor, such audit service shall be deemed to have becn pre-approved for purposes of this
subsection;




(g) review the disclosure with respect to its pre-approval of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Fund's external auditors;

(h) approve any hiring by the Fund or its subsidiaries of employees or former employees of the Fund's
present or former external auditors;

(i) review a written or oral report describing:
(i) critical accounting pelicies and practices to be used in the Fund's annual audit,
(1) alternative treatmenis of financial information within gencrally accepted accounting

principies that have been discussed with the Administrator or other Management and that
are significant to the Fund's financial statements, ramifications of the use of such
alternative disclosures and treatments, and the trecatment preferred by the external
auditors, and

(1ii) other material written communication between the Fund's external auditors and the
Administrator or other Management, such as any management letier or schedule of
unadjusted differences;

() review with the external auditors and Management the general audit approach and scope of
proposcd audits of the financial statements of the Fund, ATS Andlaucr LP and the GP, the
objectives, staffing, locations, co-ordination and reliance upon Managuement in the audit, the
overall audit plans, the audit procedures to be vsed and the timing and estimated budgets of the
audits;

k) if a review engagement report is requested of the external auditors, review such report before the
release of the Fund's interim financial statements: and

] discuss with the external auditors any difficulties or disputes that arose with the Adminisirator or
other Management during the course of the audit, any restrictions on the scope of activities or
access to requested information and the adequacy of the Administrator's or other Management's
responses in correcting audit-related deficiencies.

11. in Respect of the Fund's Financial Disclosure
(a) review with the external auditors and/or the Administrator, as appropriate:
() the Fund's audited financial statements and the notes and Managements' Discussion and

Analysis relating to such financial statements, the annual report, the financial information
of the Fund contained in any prospectus or information circular or other disclosure
documents or regulatory filings of the Fund and make recommendations to the Board for
their approval,

{1) the Fund's interim financial statements and the notes and Managements' Discussion and
Analysis relating to such financial statements and approve or recommend to the Trustees
their release to the public;

(i) the quality, appropriateness and acceptability of the Fund's accounting principles and
practices used in its financial reporting, changes in the Fund's accounting principles or
practices and the application of particular accounting principles and disclosure practices
by Management to new transactions or events;




(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)
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(iv) all significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the
preparation of the Fund's financial statements, including the effects of alternative
methods in respect of any matter considered significant by the external auditor within
generally accepted accounting principles on the financial statcinents and any "second
opinions"” sought by Management from an independent or other audit firm or advisor with
respect to the accounting treatment of a particular item;

(v) the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives on the Fund's financial statcments and
other financial disclosures;

(v any reserves, accruals, provisions or estimates that may have a significant effect upon the
financial statements of the Fund;

(vii) the use of special purpose entities and the business purpose and economic effect of off
balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, guarantecs and other relationships
of the Fund and their impaci on the reported financial results of the Fund;

{(viii)  any legal matter, claim or contingency that could have a significant impact on the
financial statements, the Fund's compliance policies and any material reports, inquiries or
other correspondence received from regulators or governmental agencies and the manner
in which any such legal matter, claim or contingency has been disclosed in the Fund's
financial statements;

(ix) the treatment for financial reporting purposes of any significant transactions that are not a
normal part of the Fund's operations; and

(x) the use of any "pro forma” or "adjusted" information not in accordance with gencrally
accepted accounting principles.

review and resolve disagreements between Management and the Fund's external auditors
regarding financial reporting or the application of any accounting principles or practices;

review carnings press releases, as well as financial information and earnings guidance provided to
analysts and ratings agencices, it being understood that such discussions may, in the discretion of
the Commitiee, be done generally (i.e., by discussing the types of information to be disclosed and
the type of presentation to be made) and that the Committee need not discuss in advance each
carnings release or each instance in which the Fund gives earning guidance;

establish and monitor procedures for (i) the review of public disclosure of financial information
extracted from the financial statements of the Fund, (ii) the receipt and treatinent of complaints
received by the Fund regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or audit matters, and
(iif) the anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or
auditing matters and review periedically with the Management these procedures and any
significant complaints received;

if requested by the Trustees, receive from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Administrator a certificate certifying in respect of €ach annual and interim report the
matters such officers are required to certify in connection with the filing of such reports under
applicable securities laws and receive and review disclosures made by such officers about any
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls or material weaknesses
therein and any fraud invelving the Administrator or its sentor officers or persons who have a
significant role in the Fund's internal controls; and



() review and discuss the Fund's major financial risk exposures and the steps taken to monitor and
control such exposures, including the use of any financial derivatives and hedging activities.

1. In Respect of Insurance
{(a) review periodically insurance programs relating 1o the Fund and its investments;

(b) review periodically the trustee and officer insurance policy applicable 1o the Fund and make
recommendations for its renewal or amendment or the replacement of the insurer; and

(c) administer all policies of or agreements by the Fund with respect to the indemnification by the
Fund of Trustecs and officers, if any, of the Fund.

IV. In Respect of Internal Controls

{a) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Fund's internal accounting, and financial controls
based on recommendations from Management and the extemal auditors for the improvement of
accounting practices and internal controls; and

{b) oversee compliance with internal controls and the Joint Code of Business Conduct.
V. Oversight Function

While the Commiltee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty of the Commitiee
to plan or conduct audits, 1o determine that the Fund's financial statements arc complete and accurate or are in
accordance with GAAP and applicable rules and regulations or to determine the adequacy of the mternal control
over financial reporting structure and the financial and other risk management systems of the Fund. These are the
responsibilities of Management and/or the Fund's external auditors. The Committee, its Chair and any Committee
members identified as having accounting or related financial expertise are Frustees, appointed to the Commitiee to
provide broad oversight of the financial, risk and control related activities of the Fund, and are specifically not
accountable or responsible for the day-to-day operation or performance of such activities. Although the designation
of a Committee member as having accounting or related financial expertise for disclosure purposes or otherwise is
based on that individual's education and experience, which that individual will bring to bear in carrying out his or
her duties on the Commitiee, such designation does not impose on such person any duties, obligations or liability
that are greater than the duties, obligations and liability imposed on such person as a member of the Committec and
as a Trustee in the absence of such designation. Rather, the role of a Commitice member who is identified as having
accounting or related financial expertise, like the role of all Committee members, is to oversee the process, not to
certify or guarantee the internal or external audit of the Fund's financial information or public disclosure.

SPECIFIC MANDATES OF THE COMMITTEE - GOVERNANCE

The Commitiee will, subject to and consistent with the Declaration of Trust of the Fund, the Securityholders
Agreement and any other applicable governance document:

VL. In Respect of Operations of the Trustees

{(a) assess the needs of the Trustees with respect to the conduct of the affairs of the Trustees,
including:

(1) the number of Trustees;
(ii) the frequency and location of Trustee and committee meetings;

{i1) procedures for ¢stablishing meeting agendas and the conduct of meetings; and
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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(iv) the availability, relevance and timeliness of discussion papers, reports and other
information required by the Trustees;

rccommend at the first meeting of the Trustees following each annual meeting, the allocation of
Trustees 1o each of the committees of Trustces and thereafier, where a vacancy occurs at any time
in the membership of any Board committee, recommend a particular Trustee to fill such vacancy;

oversee an cricntation program and continuing education for all Trustees in respect to the Fund;
such program should be designed so as new Trustees fully understand the role of the Trustees and
their committees, the contribution individual Trustees are expected to make (including, in
particular, the commitment of time and resources that the Fund expects from its Trustees) and the
nature and operations of the Fund's affairs and investments including the business and operations
of ATS Andlauer LP. Continuing education opportunities should be focused on enhancinp
individual Trustee's skills and abilitics as Trusteces and maintaining the currency of their
knowledge and understanding of the Fund's affairs including the business and operations of ATS
Andlaver LP; and

oversee the relationship between the Trustees on the one hand and officers of the Administrator on
the other hand and, if appropriate, make recommendations with a view fo ensuring that the
Trustees are able to function independently of Management.

In Respect of Governance

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(M

(2)

(h)

review periodically the Fund's approach to governance issues;

review periodically the mandate for the Trustees and the position description for the Chair of the
Trustees;

review periodically the charters of the committees of the Trusices and, where appropriate, make
recommendations thereon including changes in the role, size, composition and structure of the
committees;

conduct periodic surveys of Trustees with respect to their views on the effectiveness of the
Trustees, the Chair of the Board, each committee of Trusices and its Chair and individual
Trusiees;

evaluate regularly the effectiveness and contribution of the Chair of the Trustees and the Chair of
each commitice and the effectiveness and contribution of individual Trustees, having regard for
the mandate for the Trustees and position description, the results of surveys of the Trustees,
attendance at Trustee and Trustee committee meetings, overall contribution and, in the case of
individual Trustees, the competencies and skills the individual Trustee is expected to bring to the
Trustees;

recommend policies regarding succession in the event of an emergency or the retirement of the
Chair of the Trustees;

assess the effectiveness of the Trustees as a whole and each committee of the Trustees, including
the Committec baving regard to the mandate for the Trustees and each committee of the Trustees;

review the Fund's Trustee qualification criteria including the number of boards on which Trustees
may sit, Trustees tenure, retirement and succession; and

review the procedure to enable an individual Trustee to engage an outside advisor at the expense
of the Fund.
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In Respect of Trustee Composition and Trustee Nominations

(a)

(b)

(c}

(d)

(e}

)

review periodically the competencies, skills and personal qualities required of Trustees in order to
add value to the Fund, in light of:

{i) the activities of the Fund and the nature of its investments;

(i) the need to have a majority of the Trustees arc comprised of individuals, each of whom
meets  the requirements set out under the heading “COMPOSITION AND
PROCEDURES — 1. Composition” above;

(iii) the Declaration of Trust and the Securityholders Agreement and any other Governance
Agreements to which the Fund is a party; and

(iv) the Fund's Governance Guidelines.

as required, identify and recommend to the Trustees qualified Trustee nominees for election at the
annual meeting;

as required, recruit Trustee candidates and review any Trustce candidatcs recommended by
unitholders, based on the competencies, skills and personal qualitics required of Trustees in order
to add value to the Fund;

review the competencies, skills and personal qualities of cach existing Trustee, and the
contributions made by the Trustee to the effective operation of the Trustees and any significant
change in the primary occupation of the Trustee;

use best efforts to have candidates understand the demands and expectations of a Trustee and the
role of the Trustees and their commitiees; and

oversee an orientation program to familiarise new Trustees with the Fund's affairs and its
investments and the business and operations of the GP and the LP including the Fund’s reporting
structure, strategic pkans, significant financial, accounting and risk issues and compliance policies,
management and the external auditors.

In Respect of Reporting and Disclosure Requirements

(a)

(b)

review and approve the annual corporate governance report to be made in either the annual report
to unitholders or the proxy circular prepared in connection with the IFund's annual meeting
describing the corporate governance practices of the Fund with reference to the reporting
requirements of the Toronto Stock Exchange or other applicable securities law requirements;

review periodically the Joint Disclosure Policy.
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FORM 52-109F1
CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL FILINGS

I, Michael Andlauer, President and Chief Executive Officer of ATS Andlauer Transportation
Services GP Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of ATS Andlauer Income Fund for
the period ending December 31, 2006,

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not

misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period covered by
the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods presented in the
annual filings;

4. The issuer's other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issucr, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
the issuer's GAAP; and

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual
MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as
of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such evaluation; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer's internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer's most recent interim period that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: April 5, 2007
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FORM 52-109F1
CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL FILINGS

I, Brian Mascarenhas, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of ATS Andlauer Transportation
Services GP Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of ATS Andlauer Income Fund for
the period ending December 31, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period covered by
the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods presented in the
annual filings;

4. The issuer's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

{(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
the issuer's GAAP; and

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual
MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as
of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such evaluation; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer's internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer's most recent interim period that has materially

affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer's internal control over financial
reporting,

Date: April 5, 2007
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P
CIBC Mellon Trust Company C I IBC

March 2, 2007

Nova Scotia Securities Commission Securities Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador

Alberta Securities Commission Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission, Securities Division
The Manitoba Securities Commission Office of the Administrator of the Securities Act, New Brunswick
Ontario Securities Commission British Columbia Securities Commission

Registrar of Securities, Prince Edward Island Autorité des marchés financiers
Government of the Northwest Territories Government of Yukon

Government of Nunavut

Dear Sirs:

RE: ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

Pursuant to a request from our Principal, we wish to advise you of the following dates in connection
with their Annual Meeting of Unitholders:

DATE OF MEETING: May 7, 2007
RECORD DATE FOR NOTICE: March 26, 2007
RECORD DATE FOR VOTING: March 26, 2007
BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DETERMINATION DATE: March 26, 2007
SECURITIES ENTITLED TO NOTICE: N/A
SECURITIES ENTITLED TO VOTE: UNITS

Yours very truly,
CIBC MELLON TRUST COMPANY
Trust Central Services

cc: CDS & Co. (Via Fax)

PKINM_ATSAndlauer

| 320 Bay Street, P.O. Box 1 - Toronta, ON M5H 4A6 - Tel 416.643.5000 » www.cibcmellon,.com

CIBC Melion Trust Company is a licensed user of the CIBC and Mellon trademarks
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ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF UNITHOLDERS
TO: THE UNITHOLDERS OF ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND
TAKE NOTICE that an Annual Meeting (the "Meeting") of the holders ("Unitholders"} of trust units and special voting
units of ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the "Fund") will be held in the TSX Broadcast Centre, The Exchange Tower Main Floor,
130 King Street West, Toronto, Ontario on Monday, May 7, 2007, at 10:00 a.m. (Toronto time) for the following purposes:

1. to receive and consider the consolidated financial statements of the Fund for the period ended December 31, 2006 and
the auditors’ report thereon;

2. to appoint trustees of the Fund;
3. to appoint auditors of the Fund; and
4. to transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The specific details of the matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the Information Circular — Proxy
Statement accompanying and forming part of this Notice,

Unitholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person are requested to date and sign the enclosed
Instrument of Proxy and to mail it to or deposit it with CIBC Mellon Trust Company, P.(). Box 721 Agincourt, Ontario,
MIS 0Al, or for those investors wishing to return their proxies in person by delivering them to CIBC Mellon Trust
Company 320 Bay Street, Banking Hall Level, Toronto, Ontario. In order to be valid and acted upon at the Meeting,
forms of proxy must be returned to the aforesaid address not less than 48 hours before the time set for the holding of the
Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The record date for the Meeting is the close of business on March 26, 2007 (the "Record Date"). Unitholders of record
will be entitled to vote those trust units and special voting units included in the list of Unitholders prepared as at the Record Date
at the Meeting. No Unitholder who becomes a Unitholder after the Record Date shall be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario, this 2nd day of April, 2007,

BY ORDER OF THE TRUSTEES OF ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND

{Signed} "David Matheson"

Chair of the Trustees
ATS Andlaver Income Fund
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For Immediate Release

ATS ANDLAUER INCOME FUND ANNOUNCES DISTRIBUTIONS FOR
SECOND QUARTER 2007

Toronto, Ontario —ATS Andlauer Income Fund (the "Fund") (TSX: ATS.UN) announced today its
monthly distributions for each of the months of April, May and June 2007 as follows:

Record Date Distribution Date Ex-Distribution Date Distribution per Unit
April 30, 2007 May 15, 2007 April 26, 2007 $0.0974
May 31, 2007 June 15, 2007 May 29, 2007 $0.0974
June 29, 2007 July 16, 2007 June 27, 2007 $0.0974

On an annualized basis, this raises the Fund’s distributions from $0.975 per trust unit originally
contemplated in its prospectus dated September 22, 2005, to $1.1688 per trust unit. For those unitholders
holding units outside a tax deferred ptan, the Fund estimates that 98% of the distributions made in 2007
will be treated as taxable income for Canadian income tax purposes and the balance as return of capital.
The proportion of these figures may change when the actual results for the fiscal year are calculated.

The Fund is an open-ended trust that holds, indirectly, securities of ATS Andlauer Transportation
Services Limited Partnership ("ATS Andlauer LP"). ATS Andlauer LP is a leading single source
transportation solutions provider in Canada, providing integrated trucking, courier, air freight and value
added transportation and distribution services to consumer product companies. It operates facilities in 23
centres across Canada and serves approximately 1,400 diversified customers.

The Fund’s units trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol ATS.UN.

Additional information relating to the Fund, including all public filings, is available on www.sedar.com
and on the Fund’s website at www.atsincomefund.ca.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for historical information provided herein, this press release may contain information and statements of a forward-looking
nature concerning the future performance of the Furd, These statements are based on suppositions and uncertainties as well as
on management’s evaluation of future events. Such factors may include, without excluding other considerations, fluctuations in
quarterly results, evolution in customer demand for the Fund's services, the impact of price pressures exerted by competitors, and
general market trends or economic changes. As a result, readers are advised that actual results may dJiffer from expected results.
Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive. Additional information on these and other factors that
could affect the Fund's operations or financial results are included in reports on file with Canadian securities regulatory
authoritics and may be accessed through the SEDAR website (www.sedar.com) or at the Fund's website
{www.atsincomefund,ca). Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained in this news release are made as of the date of
this news release, and the Fund undertakes no obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be expiessly required by applicable
securities law.

For further information, please contact:

Michael Andlauer Brian Mascarenhas

President & Chief Executive Officer VP Finance, & Chief Financial Officer

ATS Andlaver Transportation Services GP Inc. ATS Andlauver Transportation Services GP Inc,
Suite 600, 190 Attwell Drive Suite 600, 190 Attwell Drive

Etobicoke, Ontario M9W 6H8 Etobicoke, Ontario M9W 6HS8

(416) 798-1379 ext 200 {416) 798-1379 ext 200

END



